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GENERAL INFORMATION
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:
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:
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Pinmill Farm
164 Katherine Street,
Sandton
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:
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Sandton
2146

TELEPHONE NUMBER/S :

+27 11 566 3000/1

EMAIL ADDRESS

:

info@icasa.org.za

WEBSITE ADDRESS

:

www.icasa.org.za

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

:

Auditor-General of South Africa

BANKERS

:

Nedbank
First National Bank
Investec Private Bank
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LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS/ACRONYMS
ADR

–

Alternative Dispute Resolution

ADSL

–

Asymmetrical Digital Subscriber Line

AGSA

–

Auditor-General of South Africa

APP

–

Annual Performance Plan

AREDC

–

Audit, Risk, Ethics and Disclosures Committee

ATU

–

African Telecommunications Union

B-BBEE

–

Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment

CAPEX

–

Capital Expenditure

CCC

–

Complaints and Compliance Committee

CEO

–

Chief Executive Ofcer

CFO

–

Chief Financial Ofcer

CRASA

–

Communication Regulators’ Association of Southern Africa

DoC

–

Department of Communications

DTT

–

Digital Terrestrial Television

ECA

–

Electronic Communications Act

ECNS

–

Electronic Communications Network Service

ECS

–

Electronic Communications Service

FL

–

Facilities Leasing

GAAP

–

Generally-Accepted Accounting Practice

GHz

–

gigahertz

GRAP

–

Generally Recognised Accounting Practice

ICT

–

Information and Communications Technology

ITU

–

International Telecommunications Union

IMT

–

International Mobile Telephony

MHz

–

megahertz

MTSF

–

Medium-Term Strategic Framework

OHS

–

Occupational Health and Safety

OpEx

–

Operational Expenditure

PAJA

–

The Promotion of Administration Justice Act

PEB

–

Party Election Broadcast

PFMA

–

Public Finance Management Act

QoS

–

Quality of Service

RIA

–

Regulatory Impact Assessment

SAPO

–

South African Post Ofce

SO

–

Strategic Objective

SOOG

–

Strategic Outcome-Orientated Goal

USAO

–

Universal Service and Access Obligations

WRC

–

World Radio Conference
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SECTION A

FOREWORD BY THE ACTING CHAIRPERSON
MANDATE
The mandate of ICASA, amongst others, is to
promote the convergence of
telecommunications, broadcasting and other
services contemplated in our pieces of
legislation; facilitate development of
interoperable and interconnected electronic
networks; and ensure efcient use of radio
frequency spectrum, information security and
network reliability.
In order to full this mandate, ICASA has
identied the promotion of the “digital
agenda” as one of its key strategic objectives
this nancial year and beyond. ICASA
recognises that the achievement of this
objective will require collaboration with
multiple stakeholders in the country (as well
as internationally). And of course, in order to
coordinate the contributions and efforts of
multiple stakeholders, ICASA has resolved to
establish a South African Fifth Generation
Forum (“the 5G Forum”), which supports
ICASA in making meaningful contributions to
and participating in the ITU processes for the
development of regulations and standards for
International Mobile Telecommunications
(“IMT”), in line with the IMT2020 vision.

Rubben Mohlaloga
Acting Chairperson

I

t gives me great pleasure to table the
ICASA's Annual Report for 2016/17
nancial year. The period under review
represents more hard work and commitment
to our strategy, operational objectives and
plans. Monitoring implementation of our
strategy provides regular feedback on the
progress of annual performance plans, and
together with evaluating the achievement or
non-achievement of predetermined objectives
and targets provides management, decision
makers and other stakeholders with
performance measurements.

COST TO COMMUNICATE
There has been calls for ICASA to look into
the cost of data which is still perceived as
high in South Africa. Given ICASA’s intervention
to reduce the cost of voice since 2010, it is only
proper that we heed the call to reduce the cost
of data.

In this strategy, we committed ourselves once
more to paying particular attention to the issues
that have an impact on the lives of the poor,
such as reducing the cost of communication,
promoting competition within the electronic
communications, broadcasting and postal
services sectors, as well as protecting the
interests of consumers.

In addition, consumers have changed
their ways and means of communicating,
something that lead to an increase in their
demand for data due to, among others,
the use of video and photo sharing,
applications download, and many more.
To this end, the concerns around the cost of
data have inevitably surpassed concerns over
the cost of voice. The cost of voice services
has reduced signicantly as a result of
ICASA's intervention in the wholesale voice
call termination markets. This nancial year,
we started the process to review procompetitive conditions imposed on licensees
in terms of the Call Termination Regulations.

The last three years has seen ICASA
improving in its performance and meeting its
planned objectives and this year we have
managed to perform beyond our set target of
60% to 74.5%. This is a real achievement
and we continue to ensure that we keep
the standard that we have set for ourselves.
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fostering economic transformation in SADC
through innovative but also effective
regulation.

This process will assist us to make a
determination on further reduction of call
termination rates. We have to concede that
there is no specic regulatory framework in
the data market as yet, however, the
Authority notes that there has been a
downward trend in data tariffs lodged and
charged by operators to consumers.
In order to address concerns raised by
stakeholders in respect of perceived high
cost of data in South Africa, ICASA has
undertaken a number of initiatives to
ensure that this matter takes priority:

.

.
.

We will also continue to assist in dealing
with issues relating to promoting
transparency, reducing the cost of roaming
for the people of SADC, frequency
coordination between ourselves,
neighboring SADC countries and of course
facilitate such processes and deliberations
between other member countries within the
region.
Lastly, I would like to convey my utmost
respect and gratitude to the Portfolio
Committees on Communications and
Telecommunications and Postal Services for
their valued inputs in our work, the two
Ministers in the same portfolios i.e.
Communications and Telecommunications
and Postal Services for their guidance in the
last nancial year.

We have established a Joint Task
Team with the National Consumer
Commission to address the
challenges raised by consumers
with regards to business practices
of mobile data services (i.e. expiry
of unused data bundles and out-ofbundle rates).
We continue to undertake an
international benchmark study on
South African mobile retail data
tariffs against other countries.
There are ongoing discussions with
the Department of
Telecommunication and Postal
Services with regards to
assignment of spectrum and on the
policy directive relating to rapid
deployment of infrastructure.

My gratitude further goes to the people of
South Africa for making their
communication needs known to ICASA
thereby helping us to continue to regulate
in their interest; and of course the licensees
for their continued contribution during
regulation-making processes and any other
regulatory engagement we have had with
them over the past year.

CRASA
The 2016/17 nancial year ended with a big
bang for ICASA when the Chairpersonship
of CRASA was bestowed upon us during the
Annual General Meeting of CRASA at the
Durban International Convention Centre in
March 2017. As the chair of this regulatory
body, we believe that the ICT sector is an
economic sector, it is up to us to come up
with innovative, targeted policies that can
assist in unlocking their potential, increase
employment to contribute to economic
development and transformation in the
sector.

Rubben Mohlaloga
Acting Chairperson
31 July 2017

For the next year as the chair, ours plans to
maximise the effect of developing the
economy of SADC, through support growth
of the cooperatives economy, facilitation of
trade and investment and increased
strategic economic infrastructure thereby
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SECTION A

OVERVIEW FROM THE ACTING CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

T

he 2016/17 nancial year has
been a year of great strides,
and many highs and lows for
ICASA.
We had set our Annual Performance
target at 60% for the year under
review over the MTEF cycle.
However, we managed to achieve
74.5% this nancial year, which
exceeds the target we had set
for ourselves. Looking at this year's
performance, it is commendable
considering the six-week long
industrial action we had in July
2016, which was a challenge to the
organisation.
In order to create a culture of highperformance and goal-directedness,
we launched ve organisational values
which indicated the dawn of a new wave of
energy amongst our employees. These are
Innovation, Collaboration, Accountability,
Results-driven and Stakeholder-centric. The
values have become our pillar and continue
to largely inuence our employees to strive
to achieve the best results.

Willington Ngwepe
Acting Chief Executive Ofcer

The Licensing Division published an
invitation to apply (ITA) for radio frequency
spectrum to provide mobile broadband
wireless access services for urban and rural
areas using the complementary bands
IMT700, IMT800 and IMT2600. The main
aim of licensing 700MHz, 800MHz and
2600MHz was to ensure nationwide
broadband access for all citizens by 2020 in
line with the National Development Plan
(NDP) and SA Connect Broadband Policy.
This process was challenged in Court and
an interdict was issued. We are, however, in
discussions with the Ministry of
Telecommunications and Postal Services to
nd an amicable solution to this matter. To
reduce regulatory burden for equipment
manufacturers and importers, the Licensing
Division published a position paper on
exemption of some devices from typeapproval. Consumer protection is our main
mandate, so we have also developed
regulations on Premium Rated Services
code of conduct to implement measures for
the protection of consumers from harmful
practices.

We cannot do this from our air-conditioned
ofces, hoping that the ordinary South
African will know and understand the role
we play and the services we offer to them.
Following a brand-awareness survey which
we commissioned in 2015, we decided to go
out to the communities and conduct a
public awareness campaign. For the period
under review, we have been to Polokwane,
Durban and Mdantsane.
The campaigns will continue in the next
nancial year and we hope to cover all nine
provinces. Not only do we focus on a
specic area which we have identied in
need of our presence, but we also involve
community/public broadcasters through
interviews and advertising to relay the
message to communities which we are
unable to reach. To increase our footprint
across the country, ICASA was able to
establish an ofce in Polokwane so that the
community of Limpopo can receive our
services at their doorstep. Building the
ICASA brand continues to be our main focus
in the coming years.

There were other initiatives undertaken
which are contained in this Annual Report,
including but not limited to, the review of
Number Portability Regulations and
publication of the commercial sound
broadcasting services ITA for the Northern
Cape.
We are also tasked with ensuring and
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We remain committed to making a difference
in the postal, broadcasting and
telecommunications sectors in our country
and SADC through our involvement in the
African continent and globally.

coordinating the country’s and the Authority's
participation and representation in the
international space, establish the country's
position in the ICT sector, and to coordinate
membership in international organisations at
international, continental or sub-continental
level. We take these tasks with great pride as
they stamp our presence in the sector
globally.

Willington Ngwepe
Acting Chief Executive Ofcer
31 July 2017

There are vast challenges facing the sector.
However, ICASA continues to focus on
building capacity and skills development to
establish itself as an efcient regulator. Our
organisational values and commitment to the
South African public guides us as we build a
sound corporate culture.

ICASA | 2016/17 ANNUAL REPORT
6

STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY AND CONFIRMATION OF
ACCURACY FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT

T

statements.

o the best of my knowledge and belief,
I conrm the following:
All information and amounts disclosed
in the annual report are consistent with the
annual nancial statements audited by the
Auditor-General. The annual report is
complete, accurate and free from any
omissions. The annual report has been
prepared in accordance with the guidelines on
the annual report as issued by the National
Treasury.

The external auditors are engaged to express
an independent opinion on the annual
nancial statements. In our opinion, the
annual report fairly reects the operations,
the performance information, the human
resources information and the nancial affairs
of the public entity for the nancial year
which ended on 31 March 2017.

The Annual Financial Statements
(Section F) have been prepared in
accordance with the standards applicable to
the public entity. The accounting authority is
responsible for the preparation of the annual

Rubben Mohlaloga
Acting Chairperson
31 July 2017

nancial statements and for the judgements
made in this information.
The accounting authority is responsible for
establishing and implementing a system of
internal control that has been designed to
provide reasonable assurance as to the
integrity and reliability of the performance
information, the human resources
information and the annual nancial

Willington Ngwepe
Acting Chief Executive Ofcer
31 July 2017
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STRATEGIC OVERVIEW
Stakeholder-centric

VISION
An inclusive digital society

Carrying out our duties with the
stakeholders in mind. Stakeholders are
central to what we do and we
welcome their feedback for a consistent
and effective partnership.

MISSION
To ensure that all South Africans have
access to a wide range of high-quality
communication services at affordable
prices

THE MANDATE OF ICASA
The Independent Communications
Authority of South Africa ('ICASA' or 'the
Authority') falls under schedule 1 of the
Public Finance Management Act No 1 of
1999 (PFMA). ICASA's mandate is set out
in the Independent Communications
Authority of South Africa Act, Act No 13 of
2000, (ICASA Act), Electronic Communications
Act, Act No 35 of 2005, as amended
(the EC Act), the Postal Services Act
No 24 of 1998 (the Postal Services Act)
and the Broadcasting Act, Act No 4 of 1999,
(the Broadcasting Act) for the regulation of
electronic communications, broadcasting
and the postal sectors in the public interest.

VALUES
Values are the essence from which
companies extract inspiration when
crafting strategies. These are concepts
that are entrenched in the fabric of every
organisation and by which they are judged.
All ICASA's regulatory activities are
centred on ve core values, which are
innovation, collaboration, accountability,
results-driven and stakeholder-centric.
Innovation
Willingness and ability to generate
viable new approaches and solutions.

.
. Finding different and better ways of
applying best solutions to meet
stakeholder needs.

The legislation empowers ICASA to grant
licences, monitor licensee compliance
with licence terms and conditions,
develop regulations, plan and manage
the radio frequency spectrum and
protect consumers.

Collaboration
'silos' by developing a
conscious mind-set that aligns our work
to organisational vision and strategy.

. Eradicate

. Create synergies internally to fast-track
organisational performance.
Accountability
Execution of daily work in a proactive
manner; and
Taking full responsibility for the work
that we do in collaboration with others.

.
.

.Results-driven
Achieving high quality results that are
.

consistent with organisational
standards.
Coaching and performance assessment
against goals, as well as identifying
areas of improvement.
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CONSTITUTIONAL MANDATE
obligations, including the roll-out of street
addresses and the provision of retail postal
services in underserviced areas.

The Constitution of the Republic of
South Africa
The Constitution of the Republic of South
Africa (RSA) mandates Parliament to
establish an independent regulatory
institution which is required to provide for
the regulation of broadcasting in the public
interest and to ensure fairness and a
diversity of views broadly representing
South African society (s 192).

The Promotion of Administration
Justice Act, No. 3 of 2000 (PAJA)
PAJA gives effect to the right to
administrative action that is lawful,
reasonable and procedurally fair and to the
right to written reasons for administrative
action, as contemplated in section 33 of
the Constitution.

The Broadcasting Act 4 of 1999
The Act claries the powers of the Minister
and ICASA respectively and provides for
the regulation of broadcasting activities in
the public interest.

Department of Communications
The Department of Communications (DoC)
policy framework is embedded within and
aligned to broader government priorities
and policy, as promulgated.
The Authority believes its strategic
objectives will contribute directly to the
DoC's outcomes as identied in the
Minister's Performance Agreement,
relating specically to Outcome 12,
namely providing an efcient, effective and
development–oriented public service, and
Outcome 14, which is to provide a diverse,
socially cohesive society with a common
national identity.

The Electronic Communications Act,
No. 36 of 2005 (ECA), as amended
The ECA promotes convergence in the
broadcasting, broadcasting signal
distribution and telecommunications
sectors and provides the legal framework
for convergence of these sectors.
Substantive functions of the Authority
pertain to issuing licences and regulating
the broadcasting, electronic
communications and postal services in
South Africa.

Outcome 12: providing an efcient,
effective and development–oriented
public service
Outcome 12 contemplates that
information technology is an important
tool for providing service delivery. It can be
used to make services more accessible,
reduce the cost of accessing services,
The Postal Services Act, No. 124 of
streamline administrative processes and
1998
improve turnaround times, thus
The Postal Services Act requires the
Authority to licence and monitor the South strengthening administrative
African Post Ofce (SAPO) in relation to the accountability and responsiveness. It is the
promotion of customer care standards and aim of government to identify those areas
of IT that have the greatest potential to
the provision of universal service
improve access to services.
ICASA has concurrent regulatory
oversight/jurisdiction with the Competition
Commission on competition matters
(Chapter 10 of the ECA as well as section
4B(8)(b) of the ICASA Act).
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Outcome 14: providing a diverse,
socially cohesive society with a
common national identity
Outcome 14 contemplates that sharing of
common space across race and class will
be enabled through instituting community
dialogues. This will be promoted by the
narrative that facilitates healing, social
cohesion, nation building, dialogue and
trust. This will require that the use of
currently marginalised languages be
increased. Furthermore, the broadcast
media, especially the national broadcaster,
will be encouraged to air programmes that
popularise narratives and visions of a nonsexist, non-racial, equal and democratic
South Africa. The Authority will promote
social cohesion through the licensing of
regional and local broadcast media and
promotion of the broadcast of local
content.

outcomes as identied in the Minister's
Performance Agreement, relating
specically to Outcome 6, namely an
efcient, competitive and responsive
economic infrastructure network.

The Department of
Telecommunications and Postal
Services policy framework
The Department of Telecommunications
and Postal Services (DTPS) policy
framework is embedded within and aligned
to broader government priorities and
policy, as promulgated. The Authority's
strategic objectives contribute to the DTPS

LEGISLATIVE MANDATE
The Independent Communications
Authority of South Africa Act 13 of 2000, as
amended
The Act establishes ICASA to:
Ÿ perform its functions through Council as
contemplated in section 5, and to be
independent and subject only to the
Constitution and the law, to be impartial
and to perform its functions without fear
or favour.
Ÿ exercise the powers and perform the
duties conferred upon it.
Ÿ act in a manner that is consistent with
the obligations of the Republic under
any applicable international agreement,
according to section 231 of the
Constitution.
conclude concurrent jurisdiction
agreements with any regulator in
respect of areas of regulatory overlaps.
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SECTION B

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

T

in total, out of which it achieved 44 and did
not fully achieve 15. The gures translate to
74.5% achievement and 25.5% nonachievement for the year under review.

he Authority started the 2016/17FY on
the backdrop of a remarkable
performance of 76% in 2015/16FY
against the set target of 50%. Given that
year targets are set over the MTEF period,
the target for the year under review,
2016/17FY, was set at 60% as per the
Authority's 2015/16 – 2019/20FY Strategic
Plan and Annual Performance Plan. Based on
the 2016/17FY target of 60%, the Authority's
performance for the year under review,
marks a performance which exceeds the
2016/17FY MTEF target of 60% by 14.5
percentage points. This achievement is highly
commendable given the industrial action
challenges experienced by the Authority
during the 2016-17FY. However, comparing
the 2015/16FY performance of 76% to the
2016/17FY performance of 74.5%, the
Authority has dropped in performance by 1.5
percentage points. Table 1 below presents the
Authority's summary of performance for the
2016/17FY. The Authority planned 59 outputs

Table 1: Overall Annual Performance (2016/17FY)
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Services, Legal, Risk & Complaints and
Compliance Committee as well as Regions
presented a uniform performance of 100%
each on their planned outputs.

There are four key messages which stand out
in terms of Figure 1 below. One, three
Programmes have delivered all the outputs
they planned for the year under review. Two,
ve have achieved more than they did not
achieve. Three, two has delivered an equal
number of outputs to the ones they did not
achieve. Four, one Programme delivered less
than it did not achieve. Thus, there was an
erratic pattern of performance across
Programmes during the year under review.
However, three Programmes, Corporate
Figure 1: Performance Outputs by Programme

outputs which the three Programmes
delivered during the year under review.

Table 2 below presents performance of the
Authority by Strategic Outcome Oriented Goal
(SOOG). Analysis of performance by SOOG
allows for determination of Programme
outputs' degree of contribution towards
achievement of the long-term strategic goals
of the Authority.

Corporate Services, Finance, Human
Resources, Internal Audit, Legal Risk,
Complaints & Compliance Committee,
Engineering & Technology, Regions and
Compliance and Consumer Affairs together
contributed 56.8% towards improvement of
organisational service delivery SOOG with 25
outputs which they delivered during the
period under review.

Licensing and Engineering & Technology have
made a combined contribution of 11.4%
towards achievement of the universal access
to broadband services through a total of ve
(5) outputs which both Programmes delivered
during the year under review.

Policy Research & Analysis, Regions and
Compliance and Consumer Affairs together
contributed 11.4% towards achievement of
common national identity and social cohesion
with 5 outputs which they delivered together
during the year under review.

Both Programmes and Compliance and
Consumer Affairs also made a combined
contribution of 20.4% towards achievement
of access to communication services at
affordable prices through a total of eight (8)
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Table 2: Programme Performance by Strategic Outcome Oriented Goal

Although performance of the Authority during
the year under review is within moments of
variance to last year's performance, it was
achieved amid a challenging environment.

The main challenge was employees' industrial
action which took approximately two months
out of the Authority's time.
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Table 3 below presents the Authority's Programmes and pre-determine Strategic Outcome
Oriented Goals to which they contribute in pursuit of the two agendas stated above.

Table 3: Strategic Outcome Oriented Goals by Programme
Programme

Strategic Outcome Oriented Goal

Programme 1: Administration
l Sub-programme: CEO's Ofce
l Sub-Programme: Corporate
Services
l Sub-programme: Finance
l Sub-programme: Human
Resources
l Sub-programme: Internal Audit
l Sub-programme: Legal, Risk,
Complaints and Compliance
Committee

l Improve organisational
delivery

Programme 2: Licensing

l Universal Access to Broadband
Services
l Access to communication
services at affordable prices
l Common national identity and
Social Cohesion

Programme 3: Policy, Research and
Analysis

l Universal Access to Broadband
Services
l Access to communication
services at affordable prices
l Common national identity

Programme 4: Engineering and
Technology

l Universal Access to Broadband
Services
l Improve organisational
delivery

Programme 5: Regions

l Improve organisational
delivery
l Common national identity

Programme 6: Compliance and
Consumer Affairs

l Improve organisational
delivery
l Universal Access to Broadband
Services
l Access to communication
services at affordable prices
l Common national identity
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During the year under review, Irregular
expenditure of R198 372 and Fruitless and
Wasteful expenditure of R3 962 873.50 was
identied, with R7 189 recovered. The total
amount identied by the end of the nancial
year was R4 161 245.50. Included in the total
amount was an amount of R3 000 000 which
was condoned by Council during the current
nancial year.

Programme 1: Administration
The purpose of the Division is to provide
coordinated strategic leadership,
management and support to the organisation
to deliver on its mandate.
Sub-Programme: Ofce of the CEO
The purpose of the function is to provide
administrative leadership and strategic
management to ensure that the Authority
lives up to its mandate as spelled out in
Section 192 of the Constitution, the ICASA
Act and its underlying statutes in line with
relevant government policies as developed
from time to time.

Actual Revenue of R984 921 674 was
collected against a planned amount of R994
870 378 which accounts to 99% of what was
planned.
Eighty-eight percent (88%) of invoices
received from suppliers were paid within 30
days. The target to pay 95% of received
invoices was not met due to delays in
resolving queries on invoices with suppliers.
The Eighty-eight percent (88%) constitutes
1381 out of 1570 invoices received during the
year under review.

Performance of the Ofce of the CEO for the
year under review is marked by the 74.5%
which the Authority achieved. It is also
marked by the 2016/17FY strategic plan
which was accepted and approved by the
Minister of Communications and Parliament.
The 2016-17FY set out organisational predetermined objectives, baselines and targets
formulated in line with the National Treasury
Framework for Strategic Plans and Annual
Performance Plans of August, 2005 and the
Framework for Programme Management
Performance Information of May 2007. It is
also marked by the unqualied audit which
the organisation received for the year under
review.

As part of promoting SMMEs, the Authority
took a resolution to pay 100% of SMMEs
invoices received within 15 days. The
Authority paid 71% of all invoices received
from SMMEs against a 100% target. The
performance was due to delays in resolving
queries on invoices received from the SMMEs
suppliers. In actual gures, 197 invoices were
paid against 277 which were received.

Sub-Programme: Corporate Services
The purpose of the function is to provide
corporate support services to the Authority
through communication, information
technology, security, facilities and
administration of the highest quality.

The sub-programme also managed to
increase support to programmes from 88% to
95% as per the planned target. The division
provided support in the form of both budget
and acquisition management to all units
within the organisation.

During the year under review, the subprogramme successfully integrated 50% of
the organisational processes and systems,
migrated 50% of the organisational records
to a centralised knowledge management
system, increased the Authority's corporate
communication reach from 10% to 40%,
coordinated and fostered the Authority's
mandate regarding international relations by
increasing international afliations to three
(3) and increased security and Organisational
Health Safety from 20% to 40%.

Sub-Programme: Human Resources
The purpose of the function is to ensure that
the Authority can plan for required human
resources, recruit the right talent in the right
positions at the right time, continuously
develop the talent to maintain the required
levels of competence, create a conducive
environment that enables employee
engagement and a high-performance culture.
During the year under review, the subprogramme increased talent sourcing from
20% to 50%. It also increased employees'
relations interventions from 20% to 50%.
Under talent sourcing, the sub-programme
specically reduced vacancy rate from 9.4%
to 9%, successfully continued to implement
the Graduate Development Programme,
reduced the time it takes to ll vacant

Sub-Programme: Finance
The purpose of the function is to provide an
efcient and effective support service to the
Authority from a nance perspective, through
implementation of sound nancial
management and fostering compliance with
all applicable legislation and policies.
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Programme 2: Licensing

positions to 10 weeks and achieved a 50%
response rate on on-boarding survey which
was done. Three (3) diversity management
workshops were conducted as part of the
employees' relations interventions.

The purpose of the Division is to authorize,
issue, renew, amend, transfer and revoke
broadcasting services, electronic
communications services, electronic
communication network service, postal
services and spectrum licences; process
applications for numbering resources,
equipment type approval and channels
authorizations; as well as authorizing licence
exemptions for the purposes of socioeconomic development and promotion of
competition.

The following deliverables were not achieved
under management and organisational
development: succession management
process workshop was not held, career
management policy, secondment policy,
rotation policy, standard terms and conditions
of employment, termination policy and
recognition and reward policy were no
nalised due to consultations which took
longer than expected. Furthermore, the HRD
strategy workshop which was planned did not
take place due to internal consultations which
took longer than expected.

During the year under review, the Division
performed in the following manner:
Universal access to broadband services
The Division published an Invitation to Apply
(ITA) with the intention of licensing available
spectrum in the 2600/700/800 MHz bands for
purpose of providing access to national
wireless broadband services. To reduce
regulatory burden for equipment
manufacturers and importers, the Division
published a position paper on exemption of
devices from type approval. It also developed
regulations on Premium Rated Services code
of conduct to implement measures for
protection of consumers from harmful
practices.

Sub-Programme: Internal Audit
The purpose of the function is to provide
assurance to management and Audit, Risk,
Ethics and Disclosures Committee by
evaluating the effectiveness of risk
management, control and governance
processes.
During the year under review, the subprogramme successfully delivered an
automated monthly issue tracking process
and optimisation of the combined assurance
model. Increased coverage of continuous
monitoring initiatives was not achieved due to
inability to ll the vacant position of
information technology auditor due to nonresponsive advertisements for candidates.
Out of twenty-six (26) planned audits,
twenty-two (22) were successfully executed.
In addition, the Division received eighteen
(18) management review requests for the
year which was successfully completed.

Access to communication services at
affordable prices
To increase competition in the electronic
communications sector, the Division
conducted a consultation process on the
review of the existing Number Portability
Regulations to enable the portability of all
number ranges. In order to increase
competition and diversity in the commercial
broadcasting sector the Division completed
one licensing process for commercial sound
broadcasting services in Northern Cape. The
Programme also successfully published an
ITA for Commercial Television Broadcasting
Service.

Sub-Programme: Legal, Risk and
Complaints and Compliance Committee
The purpose of the function is to safeguard
the Authority's interests and to ensure that
all its actions and decisions are legally
compliant with the Constitution, enabling
legislation and other applicable laws.

The Division undertook to license 45% of Mux
3 capacity for subscription broadcasters. The
deliverable was not achieved due to
extension of the submission deadline to 24
April 2017 on request by the qualifying
applicants.

The sub-programme managed to successfully
deliver on all the deliverables it planned for
the year which are: development of a
repository for analysed legal cases, case law
and Complaints and Compliance Committee
ndings at a target of 50%; an overachievement of risk level maturity of Level 2
against a target of Level 1; an increase in the
amount of drafted and vetted legal
documents as well as nalization of a
regulation drafting manual, litigation strategy
guidelines and contract templates.

Figure 2 below presents performance of the
Division in processing applications for
licences, transfers, amendments, change of
control and authorisations. The Division
exceeded targets in the processing of licence
amendments, transfer, change of control and
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type approval applications and radio
frequency spectrum applications.

and ECNS, postal registrations licence
applications and authorisations due to
accumulated backlog resulting from reduced
capacity in the month of July caused by
employees’ industrial action.

However, it partially achieved its target in
processing of class broadcasting service, ECS
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Figure 2: Performance on other Deliverables

Programme 3: Policy, Research
and Analysis

was not realised due to unexpected delays at
information gathering stage. A draft
discussion document has been developed and
it will be published in May 2017.

The purpose of the Division is to conduct
research and policy analysis into all the
regulatory sectors in line with the mandate of
the Authority to promote competition.

The Division also undertook to draft
regulations on call termination. The target
was not achieved. However, the following
partial achievements which are necessary for
achievement of the nal deliverable are
worthy of note:
Published a notice and a questionnaire to
conduct the review of 2014 procompetitive remedies
Received information from licensees in
terms of the questionnaire
Draft ndings document on the review of
2014 pro-competitive remedies

Universal access to broadband services
The Division undertook a study to identify
priority markets that are susceptible to exante regulation. The study was not completed
due to delays in procurement of services of a
service provider. However, publication of the
notice to conduct market inquiry (with the
questionnaire) in terms of section 4B of the
ICASA Act read with Section 67(4) of the ECA
was completed.

.
.
.

Access to communication services at
affordable prices
The Division undertook to develop a
discussion document on subscription
broadcasting market for the period under
review. However, the discussion document

Common National Identity and Social
Cohesion
To promote common national identity and
social cohesion, the Division successfully
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achieved its target of publishing a discussion
document on community broadcasting
regulatory framework during the year under
review.

meet the annual objective of having nal
regulations in place by year-end.
Four, a framework for millimetre-wave Vband and E-band spectrum was published.
It was completed successfully as per the
plan.

Programme 4: Engineering and
Technology
The purpose of the Programme is to do
future planning, including research, on the
regulation of radio frequency spectrum and
type approval. It includes monitoring the
use of spectrum nationally and
recommending technical standards for type
approval of equipment using new
technologies. The Programme also monitors
the quality of service of mobile operators. It
furthermore represents the Authority at
international regulatory forums.

Five, maps showing broadband coverage of
cellular operators and one limited-mobility
operator were processed from data received
from the operators and published on the
Authority's website. This was for the rst
time ever and represents signicant progress
in serving the public.
Improve Organisational Service Delivery
Six, an increase in distance of at least 15%,
as compared to 2015/16, was planned for the
quality of service drive-tests that the division
undertook for the four provinces targeted for
the year. The gure was well exceeded.

Universal Access to Broadband
Eight outputs for the year under review were
planned. The following applies:

Seven, the advanced spectrum management
system that the Authority is putting in place
was planned to be fully operational and
showing a reduction in turn-around time in
licensing and type approval authorisations
from 30 days to 28 days. However,
delays in the implementation process
prevented the system from being operational
in time.

One, inputs that were to be received from a
5G Forum, to be able to make 5G-related
contributions to the ITU and other bodies,
did not materialise. Although establishing
the Forum was approved on 6 September
2016 (together with a terms of reference)
and although invitation letters were sent to
150 organisations for nominees of members
to the Forum, not all organisational
processes could be completed in time for
meetings to be held.

Eight, the aim was to resolve, within 60 days
of receiving complaints, all cross-border
interference complaints and complaints on
spill-over of cellular coverage. This was
achieved.

Two, an updated National Radio Frequency
Plan (NRFP) was produced and approved.
However, with the publication of the NRFP
having to await formal approval of the
Minister, and this not having happened, the
frequency migration plan could also not be
published.
Three, two research reports and a position
paper on dynamic and opportunistic
spectrum management were completed.
In addition, draft regulations on TV
Whitespace (TVWS) spectrum were
published. The draft regulations alone did not
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Programme 5: Regions
The purpose of the Division is to enable
unimpeded national provision of electronic
communications, broadcasting and postal
services through compliance monitoring and
enforcement.

Access to communication
services at affordable prices
The division implemented the Reseller RIA
recommendations based on the RIA report on
the ECS/ECNS reseller market which was
completed during the 2015/2016 nancial
year.

Improvement of Organisational Service
Delivery
The following outputs were successfully
achieved as per targets during the year under
review:
Ÿ Increased access to a range of ICASA
services through the establishment of a
regional ofce in Limpopo. A Regional
Manager was appointed, equipment
delivered, ofce accommodation secured
and ofce occupied,
Ÿ One additional licensing function (Class
ECS/ECNS License Applications) was
processed in the regional ofces, and
Ÿ 95.2% of interference cases were resolved
against a 92.5% target.

Improvement of Organisational
Service Delivery
The Division successfully achieved the
following targets for the year under review:
Ÿ Publication of nal Consumer Advisory
Panel Regulations to facilitate the
establishment of a Consumer Advisory
Panel.
Ÿ Completion of 3 planned compliance
reports from monitoring of compliance
with licence terms and conditions by
licensees for postal, broadcasting and
ECS/ECNS services,
Ÿ Completion and approval of a consumer
protection strategy and 1st year
implementation plan, and
Ÿ Resolution of 92% of consumer complaints
against a target of 80%. Development of a
nal code for persons with disabilities
regulations was partially achieved.

Common Identity and Social Cohesion
Ÿ All events planned to increase consumer
awareness were executed successfully in
the following provinces:
§ Eastern Cape (18 February 2017),
§ KZN (4 November 2017), and
§ Limpopo (14 October 2017).

Common national identify and social
cohesion
A compliance report was completed for
monitoring of coverage of municipal elections
by broadcasting service licensees during
2016 in line with the Authority's mandate to
maintain equitable coverage of political
parties in 2016 and 2020.
A discussion document was developed
successfully on review of ownership and
control regulations in line with the Authority's
mandate to promote equity ownership by
BBBEE / HDIs in the ICT sector.

All the following NatJoints instructions
were received and successfully executed:
§ State of the Nation Address,
§ COP 17,
§ AIDS Conference,
§ Samora Machel memorial function,
§ January 8th Statement,
§ Africa Aerospace and Defence,
§ Manifesto Launch EC, and
§ Fort Hare Centenary.

Programme 6: Compliance and
Consumer Affairs

Each Programme is presented in Annexure A
below which is a detailed performance
information table of the Authority for the year
under review.

The purpose of the Division is to ensure
compliance by licensees with the terms and
conditions of their licences, regulations and
the requirements of the relevant legislation
and to protect the interest of consumers in
the ICT sector.
Universal access to broadband services
The Division planned to impose one
obligation for ECS/ECNS and postal services
licensees for the period under review. The
target was partially achieved due to the draft
USO amendments not being timeously
submitted for Council consideration and
approval because of unforeseen delays in the
consultative process.
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Programme

Knowledge
exchange and
learning

Knowledge
exchange and
learning

3.4

3.5

International
relations events
coordinated

Information
sharing

3.3

Increase
security and
OHS from 20%
to 80% by 2019

Afliations with
international
organisations

Efcient
access to
organizational
records

3.2

Safety in the
workplace

Increased
security and OHS

Increased ICASA
communication
reach

Records migrated
into a centralized
system

Integrated
processes and
systems

Migration of
records from
10% to 80%
into a
centralized
knowledge
management
system by 2019
Increase
ICASA’s
corporate
communication
reach from 10%
to 80% by 2019
on relevant
platforms
To coordinate
and foster
ICASA mandate
through
international
relations
through
increased
afliations from
3 to 5 by 2019

Systems
efciency

3.1

Key Output

Increase
integration of
processes and
systems from
0% to 80% by
2019

Key Outcome

Strategic
Objective
Number

Strategic
Objective

Annexure A : Performance Information Table

Corporate
Services

Corporate
Services

Corporate
Services

Corporate
Services

Services
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Corporate
Services
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% increase in
safety and OHS

Number of
coordinations

Number of
afliations with
international
organisations

% of
communications
platforms used

% of records
migrated to a
centralized
system

% of processes
and systems

Performance

50%

15
international
relations
stakeholders
coordinated

3 afliations

10%

10%

30%

Baseline

60%

17 international
relations
stakeholders
coordinated

3 afliations

40%

50%

50%

Target

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Performance
Level

Variance

Reason for
Variance
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Finance

Finance

Programme

3.2

3.1

Reduce
irregular and
fruitless and
wasteful
expenditure
from 32m to
R0m by 2019

To increase
collection of
revenue

Strategic
Objective
Number

Strategic
Objective

Increased
organizational
revenue

Efcient usage
of
organizational
funds

Key Outcome

Revenue
collected

Reduced irregular
and wasteful
fruitless
expenditure

Key Output

Annexure A : Performance Information Table

% of revenue
collected

Amount of
fruitless and
wasteful
expenditure

Performance

99%

32 million

Baseline

99%

16 million

Target

Broadcasting

ECS/ECNS 99%
(754 003 883
billed, collected
753 243 636)

Postal 0%
(R17m billed,
collected 80
874)

Actual
Performance:
Actual Revenue
of R984 921
674 was
collected for
the quarter
against a
budgeted
amount of
R994 870 378=
99%

Irregular,
Fruitless and
Wasteful
expenditure
report which
shows amount
incurred Irregular
Expenditure of
R198 372.00
and Fruitless
and Wasteful
expenditure of
R3 962 873.50
was identied,
with R7 189.07
recovered.
Total identied
for the quarter
was only
fruitless and
wasteful
expenditure of
R4 161 245.50
Achieved

Achieved

Performance
Level

Variance

Reason for
Variance

Programme

3.3

3.4

3.5

Payment of
SMMEs

Increase
nance support
to Programmes
from 88% to
100% by 2019

Strategic
Objective
Number

Compliance
with regulations
on supplier
payments 92%
to 100% within
30 days by
2019

Strategic
Objective

Efcient
functioning of
Programmes

SMMEs
promoted

PFMA
compliance on
payment of
suppliers

Key Outcome

Increased nance
support to
programmes

SMMES paid
within 15 working
days

Regulations on
supplier
payments
complied with by
paying suppliers
within 30 days

Key Output

Annexure A : Performance Information Table

Finance

Finance
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Finance

ICASA | 2016/17 ANNUAL REPORT
% of support to
programmes

% of SMMEs
paid within 15
working days

% of suppliers
paid within 30
days

Performance

88%

100%

92%

Baseline

95%

100%

95%

Target

CRASA AGM
from a budget
of R700 000 to
R3 600 000
was approved

Monthly
Management
accounts till 28
February 2017
were prepared
and submitted
to the divisions

Only 71% (197
of 277) of
SMMEs were
paid within 15
days
Achieved

Not Achieved

Payments of
suppliers
dashboard for
2016-2017 87% ( 1 447 of
1
646payments)

Evidence:
Finance
Reports
Not Achieved

Spectrum &
Broadcasting
94% (632 295
280 billed,
collected 191
240 267 for
2016-17 and
R404 929 563
for March 2016
annual billing)

98% (111 710
128 billed,
collected 109
634 987 for
2016-17)

Performance
Level

Variance

Reason for
Variance

Provide risk
based audit
assurance to
ARC and
management on
100% audit
projects
identied in an
approved
annual audit
plan
Implement an
automated
monthly issue
tracking process
in respect of
reporting,
ageing, and
escalation of
100% of issues
tracked by 2017

Strategic talent
management
framework fully
implemented by
2019

Strategic
Objective
Number

Management
of
organizational
risk status

Quicker
resolution of
issues

3.2

Effective
human
resources

Organisational
capacity
building

Enough skill
for the
organization
Human
resource
organizational
value addition

Key Outcome

3.1

3.1.4

3.1.3

3.1.2

Strategic
Objective

3.1.1

Programme

An automated
monthly issue
tracking process
implemented

Risk-based audit
provided to ARC
and management

Employee
relations
interventions
carried out

Human resource
development
initiatives
implemented

Performance
management &
OD implemented

Talent sourced

Key Output

Annexure A : Performance Information Table

Huma
n
Resou
rces

Human Resources

Human
Resources

Human
Resources

Internal Audit
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Internal Audit
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Number of
monthly issues
tracked reports

% audit plan

% of Employee
relations
interventions
carried out

% of Human
resource
development
initiatives
implemented

% of
Performance
management &
OD
implemented

% of talent
sourced

Performance

12

84%

20%

20%

20%

20%

Baseline

12

85%

50%

50%

50%

50%

Target

Achieved

26 audits
planned;
22 audits
completed;
85% achieved.
18 Ad hoc
reviews
undertaken.

Achieved

Achieved

Not Achieved

Not Achieved

Achieved

Performance
Level

0

33%

25%

Variance

Consultation
process on
strategy took
longer than
expected
because of the
introduction of
the new union.

Consultation
process on
some policies
took longer
than expected
because of the
introduction of
the new union.

Reason for
Variance
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Programme

Increase risk
and compliance
maturity level
from 1 to 3 by
2019

3.2

3.1

3.4

3.3

Increase
coverage of
continuous
monitoring
initiatives from
1 to 4 high risk
processes by
2019

Optimise the
combined
assurance
model in
respect of
identifying all
gaps and
duplication of
risk assurance
across the
organization by
2019
Develop a
repository of
analysed legal
opinions, case
law and CCC
ndings by
2019

Strategic
Objective
Number

Strategic
Objective

Organisational
risk maturity

Proper legal
data
management

Efcient
combined
assurance
model

Risk mitigated

Key Outcome

Increased risk
and compliance
maturity level

Half of repository
of analysed legal
opinions, case
law and CCC
ndings
developed

Optimised
Combined
assurance model
reports

High risk
processes
monitored

Key Output

Annexure A : Performance Information Table

Internal Audit

Internal Audit

Legal, Risk & CCC

Legal, Risk & CCC
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Rating

Number of
repositories

Number of
combined
assurance
reports

Number of high
risk processes

Performance

Level 1

0

1

1

Baseline

Level 1

0.5

4

1

Target

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Only HR CM in
place. Revenue
process
identied but
CM not in
place.

Not Achieved

Performance
Level

Level 2
maturity

36%

0

-1

Variance

Effective
meetings with
Risk
Champions(Q1
35%,Q2
20%,Q3 27%
and Q4 35%)

Analysed112
out of 130

Data Analytics
position vacant
since August
2016.
Recruitment of
quality
candidate took
longer than
anticipated.

Reason for
Variance
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Programme

Reduced
regulatory
burden for
equipment
manufacturers
and importers

Consumers
protected from
harmful
practices in
the use of
Premium
Rated Services

1.3

Increased
access to
broadband
spectrum

Achievement
of SAL
agreement

Key Outcome

1.2

1.1

3.3

Drafted and
vetted legal
documents and
managed
litigation as well
as regulation
drafting
manual,
litigation
strategy
guidelines and
contract
templates by
2019

Increased
access to
available
broadband
spectrum from
566MHz to
890.305MHz by
2019
Reduced
regulatory
burden for
equipment
manufacturers
and importers
by determining
regulatory
position to
exempt certain
devices from
the type
approval
process by
2017
To protect
consumers from
harmful
practices in the
use of premium
rated services
by determining
regulatory
position related
to premium
rated services
code of conduct
by 2017

Strategic
Objective
Number

Strategic
Objective

Regulatory
position for
Premium Rated
Services

Final Invitation
To Apply (ITA)
for International
Mobile
Telecommunicati
ons (IMT)
spectrum
published
Regulatory
position to
exempted
devices

Drafted and
vetted legal
documents and
managed
litigation drafting
manual, litigation
strategy
guidelines and
contract
templates

Key Output

Annexure A : Performance Information Table

Legal, Risk & CCC

Licensing

Licensing

Licensing
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Number of
regulatory
positions for
Premium Rated
services

Number of
regulatory
positions for
exempted
devices

Number of
published ITAs
for IMT
Spectrum

% as per SLA

Performance

Approved
draft
regulations
on Premium
Rated
Services

Type
approval
regulations
2013

566Mhz

20% as per
SLA

Baseline

1 regulatory
position for
Premium Rated
Services

1 regulatory
position for
exempted
devices

1 published ITA
for IMT spectrum

50% as per SLA

Target

1 regulatory
position for
Premium Rated
Services

1 regulatory
position for
exempted
devices

1 published ITA
for IMT
spectrum

Achieved

Performance
Level

22%

Variance

92 out of 128
vetted within
the SLA time
frames.
Litigation
strategy and
Drafting
manual
approved in
Q2.

Reason for
Variance
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Programme

Increased
competition in
the Electronic
Communicatio
ns sector

Increased
competition
and diversity
in the
commercial
broadcasting
sector

2.3.1

Increased
competition
and diversity
in the
commercial
television
broadcasting
sector

Key Outcome

2.3

2.1

Increased
competition and
diversity in the
commercial
television
broadcasting
sector by
licensing of
100% of MUX3
capacity to
subscription
and free to air
broadcasters by
2019

Increase
competition in
the Electronic
Communication
s sector by
review the
existing number
of portability
regulations to
enable the
portability of all
number ranges
by 2017
Increase
competition and
diversity in the
commercial
broadcasting
sector by
completing one
licensing
process for
commercial
sound
broadcasting
services in
Northern Cape
by 2017

Strategic
Objective
Number

Strategic
Objective

Completed
licensing process
of commercial
sound
broadcasting
services in the
Northern Cape

Public hearings
and deliberations

Council decision
on the licensing
of 45% of Mux 3
capacity for
subscription
broadcasters

Key Output
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Licensing

Licensing

Licensing
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Number of
completed
licensing
processes of
commercial
sound
broadcasting
service in the
Northern Cape

Number of
regulatory
positions on
number
portability

% of MUX 3
capacity
licensed

Performance

Public
hearings and
deliberations

Approved
terms of
reference for
the
appointment
of a service
provider

ITA 45% of
MUX 3 for
subscription
broadcasters

Baseline

1 licensing
process

Public hearings
and deliberations

Licensing of 45%
of Mux 3 capacity
for subscription
broadcasters.

Target

1 licensing
process for
commercial
sound
broadcasting
services in the
Northern Cape
completed

The Authority
analysed the
received
applications.
The invitation
and bidding
rules were sent
to the
successful
applicants.
Council decided
to extend the
submission
deadline for the
Sealed Bids for
spectrum for
45% of MUX 3
Capacity to 24
April 2017 on
the request by
the qualifying
applicant.
Public hearings
and
deliberations

Performance
Level

Variance

Extension of
the submission
deadline to 24
April 2017 on
the request by
the qualifying
applicant.

Reason for
Variance
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Programme

2.3.3

2.3.2

Improved
service delivery
in processing of
class
broadcasting
service licences,
Class ECS and
ECNS licenses
and postal
registrations
license
applications and
authorisations
within 30 days
of receipt, from
91.5% to an
average of 96%
where there is
no outstanding
or further
information
required by
2019

Improved
service delivery
in processing of
type approval
applications
within 30 days
of receipt, from
18% to an
average of
70%, where
there is no
outstanding or
further
information
required by
2019

Strategic
Objective
Number

Strategic
Objective

Improved
service
delivery in
processing of
type approval
applications

Improved
service
delivery in
processing of
class
broadcasting
licences

Key Outcome

Type approval
applications /
authorisations
processed within
30 working days
of receipt where
there is no
outstanding or
further
information
required

Class service
licensing
applications,
(including class
registrations,
renewals,
amendments,
transfers,
exemptions,
postal service
registrations and
broadcasting
channel
authorisations
processed within
30 working days
from date of
receipt where
there is no
outstanding or
further
information
required

Key Output

Annexure A : Performance Information Table

Licensing

Licensing

% of type
approval
applications
processed
within
stipulated
timeframes

% of class
licenses, postal
registrations
and
authorisations
applications
that are
processed
within
stipulated
timeframes

Performance

18%

91.5%
average

Baseline

50% average

92% average

Target

65.04% of
Type Approval
Applications
processed
within 30
working days

75% of class
service
licensing
applications,
(including class
registrations,
renewals,
amendments,
transfers,
exemptions,
postal service
registrations
and
broadcasting
channel
authorisations)
processed
within 30
working days

Performance
Level

Variance

The Authority
accumulated a
backlog
resulting from
reduced
capacity in the
month of July
due to an
industrial
action. The
backlog was
however
cleared by the
end of Q4

Reason for
Variance

32

Programme

Improved
service
delivery in
processing of
License
amendments,
transfers and
change of
control
applications

Improved
service
delivery in
processing of
radio
frequency
spectrum
applications

2.3.6

Improved
service
delivery in
processing of
numbering
applications

Key Outcome

2.3.5

2.3.4

Improved
service delivery
in processing
numbering
applications
within 20 days
of receipt, from
94% to an
average of 98%
where there is
no outstanding
or further
information
required by
2019

Improved
service delivery
in processing of
licence
amendments,
transfer and
change of
control
applications
within 180 days
of receipt, from
88.9% to an
average of 96%
where there is
no outstanding
or further
information
required by
2019
Improved
service delivery
in processing of
radio frequency
spectrum
applications
within 60 days
of receipt, from
81% to an
average of 87%
where there is
no outstanding
or further
information
required by
2019

Strategic
Objective
Number

Strategic
Objective

New,
amendment,
renewal and
transfer spectrum
applications
processed within
approved 60
working days
where there is no
outstanding or
further
information
required

Individual service
licence
amendment,
transfers and
change of control
applications
processed within
180 working days
of receipt where
there is no
outstanding or
further
information
required

Numbering
applications
processed within
20 working days
from date of
receipt where
there is no
outstanding or
further
information
required.

Key Output

Annexure A : Performance Information Table
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Licensing
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Percentage of
applications
processed
within
turnaround
time.

% of
amendments,
transfers and
change of
control
applications
processed
within
stipulated
timeframes

% of numbering
applications
processed
within
stipulated
timeframes

Performance

81%

88.90%

94%

Baseline

83% average

92% average

96% average

Target

97.73% of
Spectrum
Applications
processed
within 60
working days

100% of
individual
service licence
amendment,
transfers and
change of
control
applications
processed
within 180
working days of
receipt

96% of
Numbering
Applications
processed
within 20
working days

Performance
Level

Variance

Reason for
Variance
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Programme

2.3.7

Increased
competition and
diversity in the
commercial
broadcasting
sector by
completing one
licensing
process for
Free-to-Air
Commercial
Television
Broadcasting
Service by 2019

Increased
competition
and diversity
in the
commercial
broadcasting
sector

Key Outcome

Improved social
cohesion
through
community
television
broadcasting
sector by
licensing of
15% of MUX1
capacity to
community
television
broadcasters by
2019
To facilitate
increased
competition by
identifying
priority markets
by 2021

Improved
social cohesion
through
community
television
broadcasting
sector

Predened
relevant
markets

4.1

1.1

SOOG 4: Common National Identity and Social Cohesion

Strategic
Objective
Number

Strategic
Objective

Completed study
on denition of
priority markets
that are
susceptible to exante regulation

No deliverable

ITA on Free to Air
(FTA)
Commercial
Television
Broadcasting
Services
approved by
Council

Key Output

Annexure A : Performance Information Table
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Licensing

Policy Research and Analysis
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Number of
studies to
dene the
priority markets
that require
regulatory
intervention

Number of
published ITAs
for FTA
Commercial
Television
Broadcasting
Service

Performance

RIA on open
access

Digital
migration
2012

2015/16
Council
decision not
to grant any
licence in
respect of
the FTA
Commercial
Licensing
process

Baseline

Study on
denition of
priority markets
that are
susceptible to exante regulation

No deliverable

1 published ITA
for FTA
Commercial
Television
Broadcasting
Service

Target

Not Achieved

One (1) ITA for
FTA
Commercial
Television
Broadcasting
Services was
published

Performance
Level

Council
approved the
publication of
the notice to
conduct
market
inquiry (with
the
questionnaire
) in terms of
sec 4B of the
ICASA Act
read with Sec
67(4) of the
ECA.

Variance

Delay in
procurement
of services of a
service
provider.

Reason for
Variance

Programme

Inputs from
5G Forum to
make IMT
2020
contributions
to ITU

1.1

Fair price to
consumers

Environment
conducive to
community
broadcasting
services
created

2.2

Review 2014
call termination
regulations by
2017

Barriers to
entry into the
subscription
broadcasting
market
reduced

Key Outcome

4.1

2.1

Reduce barriers
to entry into
subscription
broadcasting
market

Create an
environment
conducive to
community
broadcasting
services by
March 2019
To get inputs
from the 5G
Forum for
ICASA to make
IMT2020
contributions to
the ITU, by 31
March 2019

Strategic
Objective
Number

Strategic
Objective

All relevant
inputs received
from Forum and
relevant
contributions
made to ITU
entitles and other
bodies

Community
broadcasting
regulatory
framework
published

Draft regulations
on call
termination

Discussion
document on
subscription
broadcasting
market

Key Output

Annexure A : Performance Information Table

Policy Research
and Analysis

Policy Research and Analysis

Policy
Research and
Analysis
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Engineering & Technology
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Number of
inputs received
from 5G Forum
and number of
contributions
made to ITU

Number of
Community
broadcasting
regulatory
framework
published

Number of 2014
call termination
regulations
reviewed

Number of
Subscription
broadcasting
market reports

Performance

5G Forum
founded

Discussion
document of
community
broadcasting

Review of
2014 call
termination
regulations

-

Baseline

All relevant
inputs received
from Forum and
relevant
contributions
made to ITU
entitles and other
bodies

Publication of
draft community
broadcasting
regulatory
framework

Draft regulations
on call
termination

Discussion
document on
subscription
broadcasting
market

Target

Not achieved.
On 6
September
2016 Council
approved the
terms of
reference for
the
establishment
of the 5G
Forum.
Invitation
letters were
sent in October
2016 to 147
organisations

Achieved

Not Achieved

Not Achieved

Performance
Level

1. Published a
notice and a
questionnaire
to conduct
the review of
2014 procompetitive
remedies
2. Received
information
from licensees
in terms of
the
questionnaire.
3. Draft
ndings
document on
the review of
2014 procompetitive
remedies

Discussion
Document will
be published
in May 2017.

Variance

The 5G Forum
has not held a
meeting yet,
as such no
inputs have
been received
from the
Forum.

Project
commenced
on 01 Oct
2016 as per
regulation 8 of
the 2014 Call
Termination
Regulations.
APP targets for
2016-17FY
were captured
incorrectly.

The project
experienced
unexpected
delays at the
information
gathering
stage.

Reason for
Variance
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Programme

To align South
Africa’s
frequency plans
with ITU
frequency plans
by 31 March
2019

Strategic
Objective

1.2

Strategic
Objective
Number

ITU frequency
plans aligned
Africa
frequency
plans

Key Outcome

Draft of updated
National Radio
Frequency Plan
and relevant
radio frequency
migration
plans(s)
submitted to
Council for
approval

Key Output

Annexure A : Performance Information Table

Engineering & Technology

Number of
National Radio
Frequency plans
and Radio
Migration Plan

Performance

Final report
on
contributions
to WRC-15
agenda
items
presented at
Council

Baseline

Draft of updated
National Radio
Frequency Plan
and relevant
radio frequency
migration
plans(s)
submitted to
Council for
approval

Target

requesting
them to
appoint ofcials
to serve on the
5G Forum. 48
of them
responded with
nominations.
This represents
25% of the
achievement of
the target.
The updated
NRFP has been
approved by
Council

Performance
Level

Variance

Reason for
Variance
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Programme

1.4

1.5

To develop a
comprehensive
set of
broadband
service-based
maps, for use
by potential
investors in
infrastructure
by 31 March
2019

1.3

To develop
regulatory
frameworks for
dynamic and
opportunistic
spectrum
management by
31 March 2019

To publish a
regulatory
framework for
making
available the
millimetre-wave
band (V band
and E band) by
31 March 2019

Strategic
Objective
Number

Strategic
Objective

Comprehensiv
e set of
broadband
service-based
maps for use
by consumers
and by
potential
investors in
infrastructure

Millimetrewave band (V
band & E
band) made
available

Proper
dynamic and
opportunistic
spectrum
management
through a
Framework for
dynamic and
opportunistic
spectrum
management

Key Outcome

Updated and
redened
broadband
coverage maps
and
infrastructure
maps published
on the ICASA
website

Published
framework on Vband and E-band
spectrum

Research report
on TV white
space regulations

Key Output

Annexure A : Performance Information Table

Engineering & Technology

Engineering &
Technology

Engineering &
Technology
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Number of
maps and
versions of
maps published

Number of
regulatory
frameworks on
V-band & Eband spectrum

Number of
regulatory
frameworks in
place on the
dynamic and
opportunistic
spectrum
management

Performance

Draft
regulations
on V band &
E band
approved by
Council for
agenda
items
prescribed at
Council
Published
broadband
coverage
map(s) on
ICASA
website

Findings
document on
dynamic and
opportunistic
spectrum
management
approved by
Council

Baseline

Updated and
redened
broadband
coverage maps
and infrastructure
maps published
on the ICASA
website

Publish a
framework on Vband and E-band
spectrum

Research report
and TV white
space regulations

Target

100%

Achieved. Final
regulations on
E-band and Vband were
published on
22 November
2016.

Not fully
achieved. Two
research
reports have
been produced
by CSIR for
ICASA. TVWS
draft
regulations and
the position
paper on
framework for
dynamic and
opportunistic
spectrum
management
were approved
by Council at
the meeting of
23 March 2017.
This represents
75%
achievement of
the target.

Performance
Level

Variance

A position
paper on the
framework for
dynamic and
opportunistic
spectrum
management
(which was not
included in the
APP) had to be
developed
prior to
drafting the
TVWS
regulations, in
line with the
regulatory
making
process. As
such, it took
longer than
anticipated to
nalise the
regulations.

Reason for
Variance

Programme

3.2

To contribute to
the increase of
the quality of
communication
by increasing
QoS distance by
15% and by
extending
measurements
to include data,
by 31 March
2019

Increased
access to a
range of ICASA
services
through the
establishment
of regional
ofces in all
province by
2019
Increased
access to a
range of ICASA
services
through the
establishment
of regional

Improved
customer
reach

Increased
organisational
effectiveness
and
stakeholder
Access to
ICASA services

3.1.1

Reduced
harmful,
spillover and
interference

Quality of
communicatio
n
improvement

Decreased
turnaround
time on
licensing and
authorisations

Key Outcome

3.1

3.3

3.1

To provide
ICASA with the
technical
processing
capacity to
decrease, for all
licensing and
authorisations,
turnaround
times by at
least 8 days by
31 March 2019

Resolve 10% of
harmful
interference and
spill-over cases
reported by 31
March 2019

Strategic
Objective
Number

Strategic
Objective

Report on
Processed
applications for
class ECS / ECNS
license

Ofces

100% of
interference and
spillover cases
reported resolved

Increased
distance of
measurement

Processing
technical capacity
provided for
ICASA to
decrease for
licensing and
authorisations
turnaround times

Key Output

Annexure A : Performance Information Table
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Engineering & Technology

Engineering &
Technology

Regions
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Regions
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Number of
licensing and
consumer
complaint
resolution
functions
decentralised to

Number of
ofces

% of
interference
and spillover
cases resolved
within 60 days
of receiving
complaint

Amount of
increased
measured
distance

Number of
turnaround
days

Performance

0

100% of
interference
and spillover
cases
resolved
within 60
days of
receiving
complaint
6

Estimated
5600 km of
distance
surveyed per
annum

30-day
turnaround
time for type
approval and
spectrum
licensing

Baseline

1 additional
licensing function
(Class ECS
/ECNS License
Applications)
processed in the
regional ofces

7

100% of
interference and
spillover cases
resolved within
60 days of
receiving
complaint

Increased
distance of
measurement of
15% w.r.t
2015/16 estimate

A decrease to 28
days’ turnaround
time

Target

Achieved. Class
ECS/ECNS
licences,
Unreserved
Postal
Registrations
and Exemption

Achieved. RM
Appointed,
Equipment
Delivered,
Ofce
Accommodatio
n secured and
occupied

100%

100%

Not achieved.
35% progress
has been
achieved.

Performance
Level

Turnaround
time could not
be
demonstrated

Variance

Interference
cases reported
to the NSM
Unit for Q1
and Q2 of
2016/17

The target was
unrealistic in
terms of the
project plan

Reason for
Variance
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Programme

Execute all
instructions for
campaigns for
National Joint
Operational
Centre

4.2

4.1

Well executed
campaigns

Awareness by
all consumers

No
interference

All instructions
for campaigns for
National Joint
Operations at
Centre executed

Increased
consumer
awareness

Interference
cases resolved

Performance

Execute all
instructions for
campaigns for
National Joint
Operations at
Centre

% increase in
consumer
awareness

% of
interference
cases resolved
within 30 days

3.2

Key Output

Increase
resolution of
cases of
harmful radio
frequency
interference
from 90% to
97.5% within
30 days by
2019
Develop and
implement
consumer
activation
campaigns to
increase
awareness of
ICASA by 20%
by 2019

Key Outcome

Regional ofces

Strategic
Objective
Number

ofces in all
province by
2019

Strategic
Objective

Annexure A : Performance Information Table
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Regions

Regions
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100%

0

90%

Baseline

100%

5%

92.50%

Target

Achieved.
-Events
executed in the
Eastern Cape
(18 February
2017), KZN (4
November
2017) and
Limpopo (14
October 2017)
-7% Increase
in Consumer
Awareness
Achieved.
Achieved.
100%
Execution of
instructions.
-State of the
Nation Address
-COP 17,
-AIDS
Conference,
-Samora
Machel,
-January 8th
Statement,
-Africa
Aerospace and
Defence,
-Manifesto
Launch EC,
-Fort Hare
Centenary,

Applications
processed in
the Regional
Ofces
Achieved.
95.2%
interference
cases resolved
within 30
working days

Performance
Level

Variance

Reason for
Variance

Programme

2.1

Clarication of
the ECS/ECNS
reseller
exemption
regulations by
2019

Develop and
implement a
consumer
protection
strategy by
March 2019

Ensure
compliance with
licence terms
and conditions
by licensees in
postal,
broadcasting
and ECS/ECNS
services
annually
3.3

3.2

3.1

1.1

Imposition of
obligations for
broadcasting:
ECA/ECNS and
postal services
from 4 licensees
to level 7 by
2019

A review of the
current CAP
regulations to
establish a
consumer
advisory panel
by Q1 2017/18

Strategic
Objective
Number

Strategic
Objective

Compliance
with license
terms and
conditions by
licensees in
postal
broadcasting
and ECS/ECNs
services
ensured
annually
Consumers
protected

Current CAP
regulations to
establish a
consumer
advisory panel
reviewed

ECS/ECNS
reseller
exemptions
claried

Compliance
with
obligations

Key Outcome

Consumer
protection
strategy
developed and 1 st
year
implementation
plan

Compliance
reports

Final CAP
regulation
published

RIA
recommendation
implemented

Obligations
imposed for
broadcasting
ECS/ECNS and
postal services
from 4 licenses to
7

Key Output

Annexure A : Performance Information Table
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Consumer Affairs

Compliance and
Compliance and
Consumer
Consumer Affairs
Affairs

Compliance and
Consumer Affairs
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Compliance
and Consumer
Affairs
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Number of
consumer
protection
strategies and
implementation
plans

Number of
compliance
reports on
broadcasting
ECS/ECNS and
postal

Number of
regulations
reviewed

Number of
markets
claried

Number
of
licenses
with
obligations

Performance

1 consumer
protection
strategy

3 compliance
reports

1 draft CAP
regulation

1 RIA report
on the
ECS/ENS
reseller
market

4

Baseline

1 approved
consumer
protection
strategy and 1st
year
implementation
plan

3 compliance
reports

1 published nal
CAP regulation

1 implementation
of the RIA
recommendations

5

Target

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Achieved

Not Achieved

Performance
Level

69 Annual
Broadcasting
Compliance
Reports
approved
ECS/ECNS
Annual
Compliance
report on 94
Licensees
approved

Amended
USO for one
additional
ECS/ECNS
licensee not
approved by
Council

Variance

Draft USO
amendments
published,
comments
received. Final
USO
amendments
not submitted
to Council for
consideration
and approval

Reason for
Variance
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Programme

3.5

Promote
consumer
participation in
the ICT sector

4.2

4.1

3.4

Increase
consumer
complaints
resolution from
65% to 90% by
March 2019

Monitor
coverage of
municipal and
national
elections by
broadcasting
service
licensees to
maintain
equitable
coverage of
political parties
in 2016 and
2020
Revision of
ownership and
control
regulations on
equity
ownership and
promotion
BBBEE by 2019

Strategic
Objective
Number

Strategic
Objective

Revised
ownership and
control
regulations on
equity
ownership and
promotion of
BBEE

Equitable
coverage of
municipal and
national
elections by
political
parties

Consumer
participation in
the ICT sector
promoted

Consumer
complaints
resolution
increased

Key Outcome

Discussion
document

Complaints report
published

Final code for
persons with
disabilities
regulations

80% consumer
complaint
resolved

Key Output
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Number of
regulations
revised

Number of
reports
compiled

Number of
regulations
reviewed

Number of
complaints
resolved

Performance

1 old
regulation

Regulations
on Municipal
Elections
published in
the
Government
Gazette

Draft code
for persons
with
disabilities
regulations

75%
consumer
complaint
resolved

Baseline

1 discussion
document

1 compliance
report published

Final code for
persons with
disabilities
regulations

80% consumer
complaint
resolved

Target

Achieved

Achieved

Not Achieved

Achieved

Performance
Level

Final Code for
Persons with
Disabilities
not approved
by Council

92% of
consumer
complaints
resolved

Variance

Decision to
publish a
further draft
Code for
Persons with
Disabilities for
public
comments
extended the
project beyond
the 2016-17FY

Reason for
Variance

Linking performance with budgets

Actual Revenue Per Category (Figures in Rand)

Year To Date

Classs
Revenue

Category
Total grants appropriated
Other Income
Interest Income
Deferred grants realised

Revenue Total

YTD - Budget
YTD - Actual
YTD Variance YTD Var %
(414 481 000)
(414 481 000)
(0)
0.0
0
(452 651)
452 651
0.0
(11 000 000)
(23 939 973)
12 939 973 (117.6)
0
(16 885 352)
16 885 352
0.0
(425 481 000)

(455 758 976)

30 277 976

(7.1)

Revenue
The Authority’s initial annual budgeted grant revenue of R 414 481 000, was duly
received in quarterly tranches. Further to this also earned were accrued interest of
R23 939 973 , insurance claim settlements totaling R 450 651 and miscellaneous
receivables of R 2000, which brought total revenue to R 438 873 624 excluding
deferred granted realized of R 16 885 352. Total budgeted revenue for the
organization was R 425481 000.
The unspent ring-fenced and carried over from 2015/16 was R 60 661 162, the
projects that were completed resulted in the Authority surrendering amount of
R35 368 581 to National Treasury. The remaining funds afforded projects that were
still carried out in 2016/17 to spend R16 885 352 and brought closing balance to R
9 615 947 for the unspent ring-fenced projects at the end of the year.

Expenditure
Table – Actual Expenditure Per Programme (Figures in Rand)

2016/17
Class
Expenses

Programme

Budget

Actual

243 856 565

253 923 169

Programme 2: Licensing

45 838 825

Programme 3: Engineering & Technology

2015/16
(Over)/Under
Expenditure

(Over)/Under
Expenditure

Budget

Actual

(10 066 604)

298 564 781

283 849 569

14 715 212

47 383 950

(1 545 126)

48 060 711

59 507 485

(11 446 774)

16 646 472

16 169 488

476 985

31 749 824

12 053 979

19 695 845

Programme 4: Policy Research & Analysis

23 505 032

20 703 133

2 801 899

33 808 918

18 738 856

15 070 062

Programme 5: Compliance & Consumer Affairs

28 432 858

29 657 835

(1 224 977)

9 728 783

11 682 321

(1 953 538)

Programme 6: Regions

70 011 109

61 490 254

8 520 855

0

0

0

Programme 1: Administration

Expenses Total

428 290 860 429 327 829

(1 036 969) 421 913 017 385 832 210

36 080 807

Grand Total

428 290 860 429 327 829

(1 036 969) 421 913 017 385 832 210

36 080 807
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The total budgeted expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2017 was R 428 290 860.
The actual total expenditure incurred was R 429 327 829 and represented spending
level of100.2%. In the previous year (2015/16) the spending level was at 91.4%. The
increase in the year under review could mainly be attributed to the execution of normal
projects.

Table – Actual Projects Expenditure Per Category (Figures in Rand)

Category
OPEX

Total expenditure including CAPEX
2016/17
(Over)/Under
Budget
Actual
Budget
Expenditure
416 248 585

406 108 867

12 042 276

20 561 605

0

16 885 352

13 412 689

7 464 701

Total expenses (including capex) 441 703 549

451 020 525

Normal project
Ring-fenced projects
Capex

10 139 718

2015/16
Actual

(Over)/Under
Expenditure

387 012 739

367 420 814

19 591 925

(8 519 330)
(16 885 352)

34 950 279

12 361 493

22 588 786

0

25 196 885

(25 196 885)

5 947 988

10 485 000

7 435 472

3 049 528

(9 316 976) 432 448 018 412 414 664

20 033 354

Actual operational expenditure (OPEX) was R406 108 867 (2.4%) less as
compared to the budget amount of R416 248 585.
Normal projects actual spending of R 20 561 605 was R8 556 152 (70.7%) more
to the budget of R 12 042 276, the below were mainly the cause for the over
spending: 1. The project – ‘Local Elections Monitoring’ head count costs for the
ofcers who were temporarily employed initially budgeted with lower scale
packages and were actua lly salaried with higher scales going over by R 5
369 839
2. The projects – ‘Quality of Service(QoS) Monitored’ and ‘ Frequency
Migration strategy/plan and updated National Band Plan and
reviewed broadcasting plan’ both were under budgeted for resulting in
in over spending of R1 663 826
3. The number of small projects under support division make up balance of the
remaining amount of R1m.
4. The actual amount incurred during the current nancial is inclusive of the
prior year accruals paid during the current nancial year.

Spending patterns on the OPEX for the year under review indicate that 101% was
achieved compared to 91% in 2015 /16. For the normal projects 171 % was
achieved as compared to the 53% in 2015/16.
Relating to and translating expenditure on economic classication, the breakdown
comparing budget versus actual during 2016/17 was as follows:
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Table - Figures in Rand

Year To date
Values
Class

ECR Category

YTD - Budget

Expenses Compensation of employees
Goods and services
Grand Total

267 009 694

YTD - Actual YTD Variance
252 458 348

YTD Var %

14 551 346

5.4

161 281 167

176 869 481

(15 588 315)

(9.7)

428 290 860

429 327 829

(1 036 969)

(0.2)

Budgeted cost of employment represented the major portion of the total expenditure
allocation at 62% to the baseline allocation whilst the actual portion was 58.8%. The
savings of R 14 551 346 were due to key management and staff positions not been
lled.
Over spending in goods and services inter alia emanated from training costs, legal
fees, motor vehicle running costs and advertising & publicity expenses.
At the programme level shown on the earlier table, the overall expenditure trend has
been kept within budgetary connements as compared to the previous year. This was
mainly due the Authority exercising controls on key major cost drivers to be within
cost containment prescripts.
SUB-PROGRAMME 2: FINANCE
The work of this business unit is expanded on in Part F of this document
The division provides support to all staff and divisions of the Authority by managing
nancial resources, processing business procurement needs and collecting licence
fees from the licence holders. This is achieved through:
•
•
•
•

Providing effective and efcient support services to ICASA;
Providing nancial management in line with the PFMA, Treasury Regulations,
GRAP and other relevant regulations;
Ensuring compliance with all applicable legislations and policies; and
implementation of sound nancial management.

Management accounts
•
•
•
•

Responsible for asset management;
Physical verication of assets on a bi-annual basis;
Asset tagging;
Asset recording;
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•
•
•

Disposals of assets;
Insurance and storage functions; and
Responsible for quarterly, monthly and annual reporting (both internal and
external stakeholders).

Budgeting Process
•
•
•
•
•

Annual Budgets
Medium Term Expenditure Frameworks (MTEF)
Estimates of National Expenditure (ENE)
Budget Review – Half yearly exercise
Cash management (Treasury)

Capital investment, maintenance and asset management plan
Capital investment
In the rst month of every quarter the Authority receives a tranche for the quarter
from the DoC based on the approved draw-down schedule. The funds for the latter
two months of the quarter are treated as surplus funds and are invested on a
short-term basis with of the major banks providing a better rate of return for
investment. The below tables indicates actual interest earned for both 2016/17
and 2015/16 respectively: Figures in rand
2016/17
Category
Interest income

Budget

2015/16

Actual

11 000 000 23 939 973

(Over)/Under
Expenditure

Budget

Actual

(Over)/Under
Expenditure

-12 939 973 10 400 002 22 052 079

-11 652 077

Assets management plan
Assets replacements
The Authority relies solely on both National Treasury and the DoC availing CAPEX
funds, especially on infrastructural needs such as the acquisition of the equipment
and motor vehicles used for monitoring purposes.
Assets verication
Assets verication is conducted bi-annually, at mid-year and year-end.
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During the 2016/17 nancial year the annual verication success rate was 97.3 per
cent, compared to 96.6 per cent in 2015/16. The slight improvement was due to
Finance taking over Facilities stores management at the HO ofce and introducing
more stringent internal controls. Investigations are still taking place regarding
unaccounted assets. The table below depicts the results per region.

Asset register management
Asset control forms are completed by the custodians for every movement that
takes place; these are collected by the nance assets management team on a
weekly basis and the asset register is updated regularly to ensure accuracy as well
as completeness. Inventor y lists are updated immediately after verication and
distributed to all users. Acquisitions are also updated on a weekly basis.

Assets conditions
The overall assets base can be categorised as follows:
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Verication results

Type of Assets
Tec hnical Equipment
Moto r Vehicles
Computer Equipment
Oﬃce Equipment
Furniture & Fi ngs
Leasehold Improvements

Poor (%)
30
20
5
30
40
10

Condit on
Fair (%)
Good (%)
10
60
30
50
10
85
40
30
30
30
10
80

From the above table, 50 per cent of the asset population is technical equipment
and, considering its age and condition, this is a major concern for the Authority.
Repairs and Maintenance
Major repairs and maintenance projects have been undertaken during the period
as shown in the table below. These were primarily related to technical equipment
and motor vehicles.

Class
Descripton
Expenses Total

2016/17
(Over)/Under
Budget Actual Expenditure Budget
1 771 882 3 543 691 (1 771 809) 1 153 529

2015/16
(Over)/Under
Actual Expenditure
1 614 312
(460 783)

The over expenditure on repairs and maintenance wasmainly due to the following:
•
•

Additional expenditure of R 221 782 incurred for repairs on old motor
vehicles
Additional expenditure of R 901 256 incurred for maintenance of monitory
equipment.

Administered Revenue unit
This unit is responsible for payment of all revenue collected to the National Revenue
Fund (through the DoC) within the legislated timelines. It is also responsible for
revenue collection for the following services:
•
•
•
•

Postal Services;
Spectrum Management;
ECS and ECNS; and
Broadcasting Services.
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Accounts Payable unit
The unit is responsible for processing of payments for service providers within the
legislated timelines including:
•
•

Ensuring that all proper nancial controls are in place; and
Ensuring that all subsistence and travel claims submitted are in line with the
Authority’s policy.

The unit is also responsible for payroll and other salary related payments.

Supply Chain Management (SCM) unit
All purchases and acquisitions are done through the SCM unit in line with SCM policy
and National Treasury Regulations including:
•
•
•
•
•

Bid processes;
RFQ processes;
Inventory management;
Disposal management; and
Contract management.

The unit is responsible for managing all travel requirements and bookings with the
applicable travel agency. It is also responsible for the recording and monitoring of
fruitless, wasteful and irregul ar expenditure in accordance with guidelines issued
by National Treasury.
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SECTION C

INTRODUCTION
relevant legislation and underlying statutes.
Regulatory role
Ÿ Licensing of electronic communications
Ÿ Licensing of Broadcasting services
Ÿ Licensing of postal services
Ÿ Development of regulations for all license
services

Corporate governance embodies processes
and system by which public entities are
directed, controlled and held to account. In
addition to legislative requirements based on
a public entity’s enabling legislation, and the
Companies Act, corporate governance with
regard to public entities is applied through
the precepts of the Public Finance
Management Act (PFMA) and run in tandem
with the principles contained in the King
Report on Corporate Governance. Parliament,
the Executive and the Accounting Authority of
the public entity are responsible for corporate
governance.

Governance role
Ÿ Act as the focal point for, and custodian of,
corporate governance by managing its
relationship with management, the
Minister and parliament, as well as other
stakeholders along corporate governance
principles;
Ÿ Provide effective leadership on an ethical
foundation;
Ÿ Ensure that ICASA is, and is seen as, a
responsible organisation by having regard
to not only the nancial and regulatory
aspects of ICASA, but also the impact
ICASA’s operations have on the
environment and the society within which
it operates;
Ÿ Ensure that ethics are effectively managed
within ICASA;

The Accounting Authority/Council
The ICASA Council is the Accounting
Authority. The Council provides leadership
and is responsible for monitoring the
implementation by management of its
decisions and strategies. The Council ensures
that ICASA adheres to good governance
practices and that it complied with all
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Ÿ
Ÿ
Ÿ
Ÿ

Ÿ
Ÿ
Ÿ
Ÿ

Ÿ

Ÿ
Ÿ
Ÿ

Monitor management in implementing
Council decisions and strategy; and
Ÿ Develop ICASA’s strategy and vision.

Ensure that ICASA has an independent and
effective Audit and Risk Committee;
Be responsible for the governance of risk;
Be responsible for information technology
governance;
Ensure that ICASA complied with
applicable laws and considers adherence to
non binding rules and standards;
Ensure that there is an effective risk-based
internal audit;
Appreciate that stakeholders’ perceptions
affect ICASA’s reputation;
Ensure the integrity of ICASA’s integrated
report;
Act in the best interests of ICASA by
ensuring that individual councillors adhere
to legal standards of conduct;
Are permitted to take independent advice
in connection with their duties following an
agreed procedure;
Disclose real or perceived conicts to
Council and deal with them accordingly;
Appoint and evaluate the performance of
the CEO;
Ensure that disputes, over the labour
disputes, are resolved effectively,
efciently and expeditiously;

Ÿ

Council Charter
As recommended in the King III Code of
Good Governance, the Council endorses the
principles recommended in the code. Council
applies these principles where appropriate
and applicable, on the condition that the King
Code is not in contravention with
constitutional and legislative mandates. The
Council has an approved Council Charter that
sets out policies to guide Council,
management and staff to effectively
discharge their duties.
The Council Charter includes:
Ÿ The demarcation of roles, responsibilities
and powers of the Chairperson, Councillors
and the Chief Executive Ofcer;
Ÿ Powers delegated to various committees of
the Authority;
Ÿ Matters reserved for nal decision-making
by Council; and
Ÿ Roles and procedures of meetings of
Council and its committees.
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ICASA COUNCIL

Mr Rubben Mohlaloga

Ms Botlenyana Mokhele

Ms Nomvuyiso Batyi

Ms Katharina Pillay

Mr Paris Mashile

Mr Peter Zimri

Dr Keabetswe Modimoeng
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Mr P. Mashile

Mr R.M
Mohlaloga

Composition of ICASA Council

Electronic

Msc (Public Policy
)

ICASA Councillors are appointed through a public parliamentary process outlined in the ICASA Act.
The term of ofce of the Chairperson is ve years and that of Councillors is four years

TERM OF OFFICE
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Mr P. Zimri

Ms B.
Mokhele

Dr. K
Modimoeng

PhD (Management Sciences)

Ms N. Batyi

Ms K. Pillay
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Council Commitees

The Council of ICASA has established the following committees to assist in attending to all
governance-related matters effectively:
1.
2.
3.
4.

Complaints and Compliance Committee (CCC)
Audit, Risk, Ethics and Disclosure Committee (AREDC)
Human Resources and Remuneration Committee (REMCO); and
Information Technology Review Committee (ITRC).

The table shows the composition of these committees and meetings attended by members

Committee

No. of meetings

Name of member

No. of meeting

Information Technology
Review Committee –

4

Pierre Cronje
Potlaki Maine

4
4

Audit, Risk, Ethics and
Disclosures Committee
– AREDC

7

Masaccha Mbonambi

6

Mpho Mosweu

5

Anton du Toit

5

Suren Maharaj

3

Rowan Nicholls
Remuneration Committee
– REMCO

Complaints and
Compliance Committee –
CCC

5

See Section E

Charles Mohalaba

5

Nomkhitha Mona

5

Luyolo Geza

5

Prof. JCW van
Rooyen

33
24

Ms Nomvuyiso Batyi
20
Prof. Kasturi
Moodaliyar

15

Mr. Jacob Medupe

8

Ms. Nomfundo

27
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COUNCIL PROJECTS 2016/17
ENGINEERING AND TECHNOLOGY
5G Forum – more than 140 organisations
were invited to nominate representatives for
a national 5G Forum to work on regulatory
matters relating to 5G technologies. However,
it was not possible to have a rst meeting of
the Forum within the time available.

Cross-border interference – regular
inspections are done to ensure no
interference takes place coming or going into
neighbouring countries. Where interference
occurs, investigations are conducted and
resolved on an expedited basis.

National Radio Frequency Plan (NRFP)
and Migration Plan – the NRFP was
developed following the ITU World Radio
Conference of 2015 and a public consultation
process. However, a migration plan could not
be done.

COMPLIANCE AND CONSUMER
AFFAIRS
Universal Service and Access Obligations
(USAO) – the draft amendments aim to
improve the sustainability and relevance of
USAO's for operators and the communities
they service.

Dynamic and opportunistic spectrum,
including TV whitespace regulations – a
position paper and draft regulations for the
use of TV White Space spectrum for wireless
broadband access (especially in rural areas)
were developed. In addition, research on
dynamic and opportunistic spectrum, in order
to stay abreast of developments in this eld,
was conducted for ICASA and presented in
reports by two universities.

Consumer Advisory Panel (CAP) – The
CAP Regulations were amended to enable the
establishment of a viable panel that will
represent the voice of consumers in the ICT
industry and assist ICASA to improve on the
execution of its consumer protection
mandate.
Code for Persons with Disabilities – The
Code is being reviewed to improve the
delivery of ICT products and services to
persons with disabilities.

E-band and V-band regulations –
regulations for the use of the V and E bands
were published in November 2016. The
availability of this spectrum was immediately
taken up by a variety of users, who are
beneting from short-range, high-capacity
wireless links making use of millimeterwavetechnologies.

Compliance monitoring of Municipal
Elections – the aim of the monitoring of the
coverage of the 2016 Municipal Elections by
Broadcasting Licensees was to ensure that all
of the 200 registered political parties were
given equitable treatment in terms of Party
Election Broadcasts and Political
Advertisements.

Broadband maps – geographic maps
showing which parts of the country are
served by broadband access from the cellular
operators were published on ICASA's website.

Ownership and control by HDG /BBBEE –
the discussion document was published to
give notice of the Authority's intention to
conduct a section 4B enquiry (in terms of the
ICASA Act) on equity ownership by
Historically Disadvantaged Groups /
Individuals as well as BBBEE, particularly the
needs of women, the youth and persons with
disabilities.

The maps provide a means of informing the
public as to what areas have a broadband
service.
Advanced spectrum management system
– good progress was made in the
implementation a spectrum management
system - for spectrum licensing and
equipment type approval.

POLICY, RESEARCH AND
ANALYSIS

Quality of Service Monitoring – there is
continued publication of quality of service
monitoring reports to ensure coverage
around the different provinces. Reports for
Eastern Cape, KwaZulu-Natal, Limpopo and
Northwest were published.

Priority Markets – this is being done to
identify and prioritise markets that require
regulatory intervention.
Review of the 2014 Call Termination
Regulations – the project is one of the ways
in which the Authority intervenes to ensure
further reduction of the cost to communicate
in South Africa.
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Inquiry into subscription television
broadcasting services – to ensure that the
subscription broadcasting market remains not
only open, but competitive and sustainable as
well.

Licensing of MUX 3 radio frequency
spectrum – this process aims to promote
diversity and competition in the Digital
Terrestrial Television platform by licensing
spectrum for 45% of MUX 3 capacity to
provide a subscription television

Framework for the regulation of
Community Broadcasting – to develop an
effective regulatory policy and licensing
framework for existing and new community
broadcasting services that will cater for the
needs of the communities served, focusing on
both radio and television

Number portability regulations review
– The Authority conducted public hearings on
the inquiry into number portability
regulations. This was also a precursor to the
review process aimed at promoting
competition by ensuring the portability of all
numbers.

LICENSING
Licensing of IMT spectrum
– The ITA was published to afford interested
parties an opportunity to apply for the radio
frequency spectrum licenses in the 2.6 GHz,
700 MHz and 800 MHz IMT bands for the
purposes of providing national broadband
wireless access services for urban and rural
areas.

Licensing of Commercial Sound
Broadcasting Services in the Northern
Cape – the ITA was published to afford
interested parties an opportunity to apply for
a commercial sound broadcasting licence.
This process sought to increase choice and
diversity in sound broadcasting services in
the Northern Cape.

Type Approval exempted devices – The
Authority has, in the spirit of section 35(2) of
the ECA, read with Regulation 3(1) of the
Type Approval Regulations, published a
Position Paper to clarify which equipment and
circumstances may be considered for
exemption. Manufacturers, importers,
Distributors and retailers of exempted
equipment will be required to ensure
conformity of their equipment to the
prescribed technical standards.

Licensing of Individual Commercial Free
To Air Television Broadcasting Service
– the ITA was published to afford interested
parties an opportunity to apply for a
commercial Free to Air television
broadcasting service licence. This process
aims to promote choice and diversity in the
Free to Air television broadcasting sector in
South Africa.

Premium Rated Services Code of
Conduct Regulations – the Authority
published regulations on the code of conduct
for premium rated services with a view to
protect the interests of consumers and
promote transparency.
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RISK AND BUSINESS CONTINUITY
ICASA has adopted the Public-Sector Risk
Management Framework, published by
National Treasury and manages strategic
risks associated with the objectives in its
strategic plan, as well as operational risks in
line with its mandate. The Risk Management
Framework provides guidelines to staff and
management. The risk management process
has been automated to ensure that all risks
are captured and reviewed on a quarterly
basis. Risks workshops are conducted with
staff where risks are identied and the ICASA
risk register is updated with the identied
risks.

support of the corporate strategy. The faster
pace and need for innovation, combined with
signicant risk based events have focused
attention on risk management as an essential
tool in sound decision making and
accountability within the Authority.
The Authority takes a holistic risk
management approach and all risk
management activities are aligned to
corporate goals, objectives and the Authority
priorities and aims to protect and enhance
the reputation and standing of the Authority.
It is critical to the Authority to conduct its
business with due regard to the safety and
health of its employees, visitors and
contractors, and for the protection and
preservation of property and the environment.

Risks are identied at the beginning of each
nancial year, reviewed on a quarterly basis
and submitted to the AREDC for input on risk
mitigation then recommended to Council for
approval. The PFMA requires effective,
efcient and transparent systems of nancial
and risks management and internal control.

Continuity of operations is vital and
must be maintained, even under the
most adverse circumstances. It is therefore
vital that all of the Authority's operations
have practical and robust plans to respond to
any major threat or incident. The Business
Continuity Plan (BCP) identies and evaluates
risks to its assets and operations, provides
proactive and reactive procedures to mitigate
the effects of unforeseen losses by having
process of continuity and recovery in place
that are audited at least once a year tested
and updated.

In addition, the Treasury Regulations for
Departments Institutions and Public Entities
require that risk assessment should be
facilitated to determine the material risk to
which ICASA may be exposed to and evaluate
the strategy of managing those risks.
The Authority recognises that it has to deliver
services in an increasingly litigious and riskaverse society and therefore uses risk
management to promote innovation in
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INTERNAL CONTROL
Internal Audit
The Internal Audit function is based at Head
Ofce and reports centrally, with the
responsibility for reviewing and providing
assurance on the systems of internal control,
risk management and governance processes
across all ICASA's operations (Head Ofce as
well as Regional Operations). Internal Audit
assists management in identifying, evaluating
and assessing signicant risks and provides
reasonable assurance as to the adequacy and
effectiveness of related internal controls, i.e.
whether controls are appropriate and
functioning as intended. Where controls are
found to be decient or not operating as
intended, recommendations for enhancement
or improvement are provided. This is done in
collaboration with internal and external
assurance providers. The Chief Audit
Executive is responsible for reporting the
ndings of the Internal Audit work against
the approved Internal Audit Plan to
management and the Audit, Risk, Ethics and
Disclosures Committee (AREDC).

discussed the single view of risks in the
organisation and who is taking responsibility
for the mitigation actions instituted.
Combined Assurance is still in its early stages
and can only improve in the ensuing nancial
years.
Continuous Monitoring
Continuous Monitoring (CM) initiatives in the
Human Resources Division continues with
monthly reports produced. We experienced a
setback with regards to the CM initiatives in
the Revenue process which had commenced
however due to the resignation of the Data
Analytics Internal Auditor in August 2017 and
challenges faced in securing a suitable
replacement the initiative was placed on hold.

AREDC
In compliance with the Public Finance
Management Act 1999, (Act 1 of 1999) and
the Treasury Regulations the Accounting
Authority has established the Audit, Risk,
Ethics and Disclosures Committee
comprising of 5 independent nonexecutive members. During the nancial
year, the Committees' responsibilities was
expanded to include ethics and disclosures.
The AREDC's Terms of Reference was
reviewed and approved.

The division planned to conduct twentysix(87%) of the thirty audits for the year and
achieved this target. The results of audits
performed for the year were reported
periodically to AREDC as required per
mandate.

The Chief Audit Executive has direct access to
the AREDC, primarily through its
Chairperson. The AREDC receives and deals
with any concerns or complaints, whether
from within or outside the ICASA, relating to
the accounting practice and internal audit of
the ICASA, the content or auditing of the
ICASA's Financial Statements, the internal
nancial controls of the ICASA and related
matters.

Quality Assurance Review
In March 2016, the Internal Audit function
underwent an external Quality Assurance
Review as required by the International
Standards for the Professional Practice of
Internal Auditing published by the Institute of
Internal Auditors (IIA) which resulted in a
favourable rating of “Generally Conforms”
being issued by the IIA. To maintain this
standard and ensure that the function does
not regress the structure was revised to
accommodate a Quality Assurance Specialist.

The AREDC is responsible for ensuring that
the ICASA's Internal Audit function is
independent and has the necessary
resources, standing and authority within the
ICASA to enable it to discharge its duties.

Combined Assurance
The Combined Assurance (CA) strategy was
revised during the year with the changes
from three lines of defence to ve lines of
assurance the role that each play as part the
CA strategy. ICASA top ten risks and an
assessment thereof was reported with the
underlying risks from each of the regulatory
/operations divisions.

Furthermore, the AREDC oversees cooperation between the various assurance
providers including, Internal Audit, External
Auditors, Risk and Compliance management
and serves as a link between the Council and
these functions. The Annual Audit Plan and
three year rolling plan was approved by the
AREDC. Furthermore, AREDC approved the
combined assurance and continuous
monitoring strategy of ICASA as presented to
it by the Internal Audit Division

The Combined Assurance forum that was
formed in the previous nancial year had met
during 2016/17 nancial year and debated
the assurance mapping draft report and
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AUDIT, RISK, ETHICS AND DISCLOSURES COMMITTEE REPORT
The Committee consists of the members
listed hereunder. During the current year,
seven meetings were held and attendance
was as follows:

We are pleased to present the report of the
Audit, Risk, Ethics and Disclosure Committee
(Committee) for the nancial year ended 31
March 2017, as required by the Treasury
Regulations and the Public Finance
Management Act 1 of 1999 (PFMA), as
amended.

Name & Surname

4Mar16

5-May16

7-July16

25-July16

25-Aug16

31Oct-16

23-Jan17

Ms. Masaccha
Mbonambi
(Chairperson)

Yes

No

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Ms. Mpho Mosweu

Yes

Yes

No

Yes

Yes

No

Yes

Prof. Anton du Toit* Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

Yes

N/A

Mr. Suren Maharaj

N/A

N/A

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

Mr. Rowan Nicholls

N/A

N/A

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

Yes

*Deceased
AREDC RESPONSIBILITIES
The Committee reports that it has complied
with its responsibilities arising from the Public
Finance Management Act, 1999(Act No.1 of
1999) (PFMA) and the applicable Treasury
Regulations.

COMPLIANCE MANAGEMENT
During the 2016/17 nancial year, the
Committee monitored and was comfortable
with the compliance of various pieces of
legislation impacting ICASA. The Committee
is not aware of any areas of non-compliance.

The Committee also reports that it has
adopted appropriate formal terms of
reference as its Audit, Risk, Ethics and
Disclosure Committee charter, has regulated
its affairs in compliance with the charter and
has discharged all its responsibilities as
contained therein.

RISK MANAGEMENT
The Committee noted progress on the
implementation of the risk management
policy, which was reported on a quarterly
basis. The Committee is satised that the
actual management of risk is receiving
attention, although there are areas that still
require improvement. Management should
take full responsibility for the entire
Enterprise Risk Management process and
continue to support the risk function to
further enhance the performance of ICASA.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Committee is of the opinion that ICASA
continues to strive towards complying with
sound principles of corporate governance and
is not aware of any issues of non-compliance
with corporate governance.

INTERNAL AUDIT
AREDC is satised that Internal Audit
properly discharged its functions and
responsibilities to the Authority during the
year under review. The industrial action
during July and August 2016 resulted in
backlog of work which adversely impacted
the planned audits and time had been lost
due to the unavailability of the clients which
had a knock on effect in subsequent periods.

The Code of Ethical Conduct and Disclosures
of Interests Policy was approved and areas
were identied for improvement e.g.
monitoring of ethical conduct and the
reporting to AREDC thereof.
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partially adequate and partially effective.

The Committee has noted considerable
improvement in the communication between
the Executive Management, the AuditorGeneral South Africa (AGSA) and the Internal
Audit function, which has strengthened the
Corporate Governance initiatives within
ICASA.

PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT
The Committee is of the opinion that the
performance management system was fully
functional during the period under review and
this has resulted in ICASA being in a position
to accurately measure and reect the
performance against predetermined
objectives as required by the legislation.

Internal audit work conducted during the
year focused on a nancial, compliance, asset
management supply chain management,
human resource, licensing monitoring and
enforcement, information technology
(systems, general controls and security) and
performance information management.
Internal Audit was also involved in a
consulting role on the Advanced Spectrum
Management System development project.
Management have provided action plans to
address the inadequacies and weaknesses
reported.

THE QUALITY OF QUARTERLY
MANAGEMENT REPORTS SUBMITTED IN
TERMS OF THE PFMA AND TREASURY
REGULATIONS
The Committee is satised with the content
and quality of quarterly reports prepared and
issued by the authority during the year under
review.
EVALUATION OF THE ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Committee has:
• reviewed and discussed the audited
nancial statements to be included in the
annual report, with the AGSA and the
Department;
• reviewed changes in accounting policies
and practices;
• reviewed signicant adjustments resulting
from the audit; and
• reviewed the AGSA management letter
and management's response thereto;

EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL
CONTROLS
The systems of controls are designed to
provide cost effective assurance that assets
are safeguarded and that liabilities and
working capital are effectively managed. In
line with the PFMA and King III Report on
Corporate Governance requirements, Internal
Audit provides the Committee with assurance
that the internal controls are appropriate and
effective. This is achieved by means of
reviews and testing of the design,
implementation and effectiveness of internal
controls, as well as the identication of
corrective actions and suggested
enhancement to the internal controls and
processes.

AUDITOR-GENERAL OF SOUTH AFRICA
The Committee has also reviewed ICASA's
implementation of the audit action plan on
issues raised in the prior year, and is satised
that most of the signicant matters have
been adequately addressed.

From the various reports of the Internal
Auditors, the Audit report on nancial
statements, and the management letter of
the Auditor-General of South Africa (AGSA),
it was noted that there have been certain
control deciencies reported. Accordingly, we
can report that the systems of internal
controls for the period under review were

The Committee concurs and accepts the
conclusions of the Auditor-General on the
annual nancial statements and recommends
that the audited annual nancial statements
should be read and accepted, together with
the report of the Auditor-General.

____________________________
Ms. M.K. Mbonambi
Chairperson of the Audit, Risk, Ethics and Disclosure Committee
31 July 2017
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SECTION D

INTRODUCTION
process of transforming the HR division from
Transactional HR to Strategic HR. This
strategic transformation allows HR
professionals to spend less time on
administrative issues and more time on
workforce strategy and talent management.
This entails the transformational
interventions mentioned in the table below:

T

he Human Resources Division is the
custodian of the overall human capital
management function, with the
responsibility to ensure that ICASA is able to
deliver on its mandate and achieve its
strategic goals through the optimum
utilisation of its human capital. In doing so,
the function is guided by its long-term vision
of working in partnership with business to
create an environment where employees can
thrive and are enabled to deliver sustainable
organisational performance. Currently,two
longer-term strategic priorities have been
identied for HR:
1. Approval of the Training and Development
Strategy and,
2. Reduction of vacancy rate to 7%.

THE STRATEGIC HR AGENDA
Since 2014 HR has been involved in the

Below are the Human Resource matters and
priorities which support the alignment of the
Authority’s workforce with its priorities,
mission, strategic plan and budgetary
resources. Amongst other things, the Human
Resource division aims to ensure that ICASA:
Ÿ has the right people at the right time to
full its strategic plan and achieve its goals
and objectives;
Ÿ develops talent to address competency
gaps, ensure the correct depth of
knowledge and skills for the required
outputs at all levels of the organisation;
Ÿ builds effective leadership capability;
Ÿ develops retention strategies to maintain a
low level of employee turnover, thereby
reducing recruitment costs and preserving
high employee productivity rate;
Ÿ ensures sound labour relations between
the Authority and its employees, through
clearly articulated HR policies;
Ÿ creates a conducive working environment

that enables employee engagement and
high-performance culture;
Ÿ maintains an inclusive work environment
that reects the diversity of our society, to
ensure equal opportunities for all
employees within the Authority; and
Ÿ provides timely and relevant Human
Resource information to other functions
within the Authority to enable effective
decision making.
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ICASA HUMAN RESOURCES BUSINESS MODEL

The above illustrates the service delivery
model of the HR division. This model ensures
that HR is geared to carry out its mandate
and to deliver on its strategic objectives.

employee development allowed employees to
be ready for technological advances, which is
important for ICASA because ICASA is on the
cutting edge of technological advancements,
this also helps employees have fullling
careers within the Authority. ICASA also
seeks to position itself as an employer of
choice; one that rewards excellence and high
performance and offers a comprehensive
range of benets.

Applying human capital expertise in
partnership with the business
The delivery of business consulting capability
and professional HR services is designed to
positively impact business results. This
includes bringing HR’s knowledge of human
capital trends to support ICASA’s Strategic
Plan 2015/16 - 2019/20 and to ensure
availability of the requisite skills for the
strategy’s successful implementation. There
has also been a particular focus on
demographic trends and how they affect the
Authority’s compliance with the Employment
Equity Act, No 55 of 1998.

The next sections contain information that
serves to demonstrate the successful
execution of the strategy and interventions
explained above.
Appointment of Executive Positions
The following executive positions were lled
before the end of the nancial year 2016/17:
Ÿ Chief Financial Ofcer
Ÿ 4 Councillors

One of the key aspects that enhance ICASA’s
employee value proposition is our employee
development agenda. This effort has been
embedded in our organisational culture, this
is demonstrated by the high uptake of
training and bursary interventions in the
nancial year 2016/17. In addition to
supporting the execution of ICASA’s strategy,

Creating an inclusive and diverse
workforce
ICASA is committed to an inclusive culture
that respects and embraces the diversity of
employees, clients, and communities. The
Authority aims to attract, develop and retain

ICASA | 2016/17 ANNUAL REPORT
65

the most capable employees from all
cultures, and of all ethnicities, races,
genders, sexual orientations, beliefs,
backgrounds, and experiences.

Diversity is a key enabler for long-term
success. Only by building teams of people
with different backgrounds, education, skills,
and experiences can we successfully carry
out ICASA’s mandate.
At the end of the nancial year
2016/17, the Authority had a total of 357
staff members. The demographics of the
organisation are illustrated in the table below.

Diversity is central to ICASA’s culture, and its
leaders are expected to foster an inclusive
and respectful work environment where all
employees can be themselves, contribute
their best work and succeed based on merit.

Population
group

2016/17

2016/17

Total number

Actual %

EAP%
Variance

from

EAP%

of employees
African

281

79%

74,9%

Coloured

27

8%

10,8%

Indian

16

4%

3,0%

White

33

9%

11,3%

Grand Total

357

100%

100%

4%
-3%
1%
-2%

LEGISLATION THAT GOVERNS HR MANAGEMENT
The information provided in this part is prescribed by the Public Service Regulations
(Chapter 1, Part III J.3 and J.4).
HUMAN RESOURCE OVERSIGHT STATISTICS: Personnel cost by programme

Programme

2016/17

2016/17

Total

Personnel

Expenditure

Expenditure

No. of
employees

2016/17
Average personnel
cost per employee

Basic

217 241 573

357

608 519

Training

10 630 319

330

32 213
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Staff complement
2015/16
Approved posts
Number of employees in approved

2016/17

Variance

Movement

356

356

0%

0

291

305

5%

14

353

357

1%

4

36

30

-20%

-6

10%

8.4%

-19%

-2%

structure
Total number of employees
Vacancies
Vacancies (vacancy rate percentage)

Personnel cost by division
Row Labels

2015/16

2016/17

Variance

Movement

CEO

4 410 424

3 945 850

-12% -

464 574

Comms & Int'l Affairs

4 401 802

3 903 175

-13% -

498 627

Compliance and Consumer Affairs

8 421 364

8 184 291

-3% -

237 073

COO Ofce

3 258 290

3 541 692

Engineering & Tech

9 434 960

11 928 096

21%

Corporate Services

15 564 144

15 606 464

0%

Finance

20 456 600

21 548 858

5%

HR

25 240 385

11 054 088

-128% -

Internal Audit

9 535 863

9 909 302

4%

Legal & CCC

8 272 671

9 276 513

11%

1 003 842

Licensing

48 805 202

56 103 563

13%

7 298 361

Policy Research & Analysis (PRA)

14 168 725

18 237 162

22%

4 068 437

Regions

38 982 657

41 712 270

7%

2 729 613

Council & Secretariat

1 073 801

2 290 249

53%

1 216 448

Grand Total

212 026 888

217 241 573
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8%

-12%

283 402
2 493 136
42 320
1 092 258
14 186 297
373 439

5 214 685

Training costs

Business Unit

No. of

Training

Average of

employees

Expenditure

Training Cost per

trained

R

Employee R

CEO Oﬃce

3

215 377

71 792.24

11

483 193

43 926.64

4

276 714

69 178.44

Corporate Services

45

1 043 104

23 180.10

Council & Secretariat

17

860 263

50 603.73

Engineering & Tech

22

557 286

25 331.20

Finance

50

1 025 374

20 507.48

HR

14

1 528 710

109 193.54

Int Audit

13

393 542

30 272.47

Legal & Risk

12

582 030

48 502.53

Licensing

39

1 277 244

32 749.86

Policy Research & Analysis

22

539 734

24 533.36

Regions

78

1 847 747

23 689.07

10 630 319

573 460

Compliance and Consumer Aﬀairs
COO Oﬃce

330

GRAND TOTAL

Headcount and vacancies per occupational level.
Programme

2015/201

2015/2016

2016/17

2016/17

%

6

Vacancies

No. of

Active

vacancies

Employees

Vacancies

No.

of

Employees
in

in

approved

approved

Top Management

positions
4

0

positions
7

0

Senior

10

1

11

1

92

14

96

13

Skilled

141

15

143

14

Semi-skilled

42

6

46

2

Unskilled

2

0

2

0

TOTAL

291

36

305

30

0%
8%

Management
Professional

12%

qualied
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9%
4%
0%

8,4%

of

Employment changes
Salary Band

Employment

Appointments

Terminations

Employment
at end
of period

at the beginning
Top

4

4

0

7

Senior

10

1

1

11

Professional

96

11

10

99

Skilled

169

11

14

168

Semi-skilled

71

6

3

69

Unskilled

3

0

0

3

Total

353

33

28

357

Reasons for staff attrition
% of total no. of staff
Reason

Number

Dismissal

4

Resignation

23

Retirement

1

Total

28

leaving

14%
82%
4%
100%

Labour relations: Misconduct and disciplinary action
Nature
Natur of disciplinary Action

Number
1

Labour Court

4

CCMA

10

Disciplinary

22

Grievance
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Equity target and employment equity status
Occupation
al Levels

Male

Foreign
National

Female

G
r
a
n
d
T
o
t
a

Male

Female

Target

White

Target

Indian

Target

Coloured

Target

African

Target

White

Target

0

0

0

0

2

2

3

0

0

1

1

0

0

0

0

7

0

1

0

1

2

3

1

0

1

0

0

1

0

0

0

11

4

3

6

3

7

2

22

16

2

1

1

1

1

1

1

0

99

54

12

4

2

4

11

14

69

47

5

3

2

1

6

5

0

0

168

17

16

1

1

1

2

3

3

40

46

2

3

2

1

3

2

0

0

69

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

3

3

4

5

2

55

24

61

Top

1

Indian

Target

Coloured

Target

African

l

manage
ment
Senior
manage
ment
Professio
nally
Qualied
Skilled
Technicia
n and
academic
ally
qualied
workers
Semiskilled
and
discretio
nary
decisionmaking
Unskilled
and
dened
decision-

Disabled staff per gender
Occupational Level

Female Male

Grand
Total

Top management

0

0

0

Senior management

0

0

0

Professionally Qualied

0

1

0

Skilled Technician and 1
academically qualied
workers

3

5

Semi-skilled
and 0
discretionary decisionmaking

1

1

Unskilled

0

0

0

Grand Total

1

5

6
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SECTION E:
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Annual Report

SECTION E

CHAIRPERSON’S REPORT
INTRODUCTION

The Mandate of the Complaints and
Compliance Committee
The mandate of the CCC is spelt out in the
ICASA Act, and is as follows:

T

he Complaints and Compliance
Committee (the “CCC”/ “Committee”) is
a creature of statute, established in
terms of section 17A of the Independent
Communications Authority of South Africa Act
no. 13 of 2000 (the “ICASA Act”). The Act
dictates that there should not be more than
seven (7) members and one of them must be
a Councillor. The term of members is three
(3) years which is renewable for one
additional term only.
The CCC was recognised as an independent
tribunal by the Constitutional Court in 2008.
Its decisions are taken in terms of the ICASA
Act, the Electronic Communications Act, the
Postal Services Act and the Broadcasting Act.
In the case of references by Compliance at
ICASA or complaints from the public it
reaches a decision, mostly after a hearing, on
the merits of the matter. It then advises
Council on the appropriate sanction.
Otherwise, it also resolves certain disputes,
referred to it by Council of ICASA, between
licensees in terms of the Electronic
Communications Act.

. It must investigate, and hear if

appropriate and make a nding on:

Ÿ all matters referred to it by the Authority;
Ÿ complaints received by it; and
Ÿ allegations of non-compliance with the Act

or underlying statutes.

.
.
.

The CCC may make any
recommendation to the Authority necessary
or incidental to:
The performance of the functions of
the Authority in terms of the ICASA Act or the
underlying statutes; and
Achieving the objects of the ICASA
Act and the underlying statutes.

Underlying statutes are dened in the ICASA
Act as the Broadcasting Act, the Postal
Services Act and the Electronic
Communications Act.

The Chairperson presides at the hearings and
the parties appearing there at are usually
assisted by a legal representative or other
adviser in line with the provisions of section
17C of the ICASA Act. The hearings are open
to the public and the media.
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During this year of reporting the following main
areas were addressed by the Tribunal with the
high level support of the CCC Ofce:

. References from the Consumer and
Compliance Division.
. References concerning the 2016
.

Municipal Elections from the Compliance
Unit.
Complaints from the Public.

The main focus was on three areas: municipal
election complaints, complaints in terms of the
Broadcasting Act 1999 against the SABC and
working down the back-log of references from
the Compliance Unit.
In so far as the complaints against the SABC
under the Broadcasting Act were concerned:
(a) An urgent complaint was lodged that the
SABC had decided to apply pre-censorship
against all news that related to the destruction
of public property as a result of service
complaints from the public. The CCC held that
this amounted to censorship which was in
conict with the Constitutional right of the public
to information and advised the Council of ICASA
to order that the SABC withdraw its decision in
this regard. Council followed the advice and
ordered the SABC to withdraw the said decision.
This was all done on an urgent basis. The SABC
also conrmed that it had withdrawn the
decision.
(b) A complaint was lodged against the SABC for
implementing a new Editorial Policy in January
2016 without consultation with the public. The
complaint was upheld and the 2016 policy was
set aside by the Council of ICASA on the
recommendation of the CCC.
(c) A Complaint was lodged against the SABC by
the producer of a drama series (“High Rollers”
produced by Rous Hous) for having cancelled
the further broadcast of the series without
having consulted the public in terms of the
Broadcasting Act.

It was held by the CCC that the SABC had acted
within the contract with the producer, which made
provision for the cancellation of the series with
proper notice. The CCC and the Council of ICASA,
accordingly, did not have a ground to intervene in
terms of the Broadcasting Act.
The contract was, in any case, subject to an
arbitration clause. In private law an arbitrator
might have the authority in civil law to intervene.
But that did not fall within the powers of the CCC.
In so far as election complaints were concerned,
the main area within which the references from
Broadcasting Compliance fell was within the eld
of political advertisements which, as per
Regulation, are not permitted to be broadcast
directly after each other. The Regulation is based
on the protection of the public against confusion
insofar as the relevant political party is
concerned.
The transgressions had been unintentional, but
nevertheless amounted to a contravention. In
one case, the defense of impossibility was,
however, accepted owing to an urgent shift of the
broadcasting centre. One complaint was against
a community broadcaster which made a erce
and unbalanced attack against one of the
competing political parties. This complaint was
upheld.
One complaint against the inclusion of manners in
which the Executive of a Provincial Government
addressed public complaints, in a drama series,
was regarded as not amounting to promotion.
In so far as the omission to make an electronic
copy of a broadcast by a community radio station
was concerned, the defence that the station was
in the process of moving was not accepted. A ne
was imposed by the ICASA Council on the advice
of the CCC.
A complaint by an organisation within the
broadcasting area of a community broadcaster
was upheld on the basis that the Board had acted
outside its powers by dismissing the Chairperson
that had been elected by the Annual General
Meeting.
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The ICASA Council, on the advice of the CCC, directed that the Board Members appointed at a
following AGM step down at the next AGM and that a new Board be elected on this occasion. The
membership of the earlier Chairperson was also re-instated by the ICASA Council. The order by
the ICASA Council was also that its order be broadcast on the station's news bulletin.
As to the 2013 back-log referred by the Compliance Unit was concerned, 90% of it has been dealt
with by the CCC and the Council of ICASA.

Prof JCW van Rooyen SC
Chairperson of the CCC
31 July 2017
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Committee Membership and Attendance
Terms of Ofce
The members depicted in Table 1 served on the CCC during the period under review:
Committee Member

Commencement of
Term
18 December 2014

Expiry date of
Term
17 December 2017

2. Cllr. Nomvuyiso
Batyi

01 February 2013

20 April 2017

3. Prof.Kasturi
Moodaliyar

01 December 2014

30 November 2017

4. Mr. Jacob Medupe

01 December 2014

30 November 2017

5. Ms. Nomfundo
Maseti

01 February 2014

31 January 2017

6. Mr. Jack Tlokana

01 February 2014

31 January 2017

7. Ms. Mapato
Ramokgopa

01 February 2014

31 January 2017

1. Prof. JCW van
Rooyen

Attendance
Item

Member

7

3

Internal

Quarterly

Meetings

Meetings

4
Deliberations

19
Hearings

0

Total

Strategic
Session

Attendance
per
Member

(Over a
period of
2 days)
1.

Prof. JCW van
Rooyen

7

3

4

19

0

33

2.

Cllr. N. Batyi

0

3

4

17

0

24

3.

Prof. K.
Moodaliyar

0

2

4

14

0

20

4.

Ms. N. Maseti

1

0

1

6

0

8

5.

Ms. M.O.
Ramokgopa

1

1

4

17

0

23

6.

Mr. J. Tlokana

1

3

4

19

0

27

7.

Mr. J. Medupe

1

2

0

12

0

15

Number of Complaints adjudicated by the CCC during the period under review

Postal

Broadcasting
0

16
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Index
The reports and statements set out below comprise the annual nancial statements presented to the parliament:
Index

Page

Accounting Ofcer Report

79

Auditor General Report

81 - 88

Statement of Financial Position

91

Statement of Financial Performance

92

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

93

Cash Flow Statement

94

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

95

Accounting Policies

96 - 111

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements

112 - 142

The annual nancial statements set out on pages 80 to 143 , which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were
approved by the Council of the Authority on 31 May 2017 and were signed on its behalf by:

Willington A Ngwepe
Acting Chief Executive Ofcer

Rubben M Mohlaloga
Acting Chairperson
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SECTION F

REPORT BY THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER

management in the Authority is that of
identifying, assessing, managing and
monitoring all known forms of risk across the
Authority. While operating risk cannot be fully
eliminated, the Authority endeavours to
minimise it by ensuring that appropriate
infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical
behaviour are applied and managed within
predetermined procedures and constraints.

The Accounting Ofcer is required by the
Public Finance Management Act (Act 1 of
1999) (PFMA), to maintain adequate
accounting records and is responsible for the
content and integrity of the annual nancial
statements and related nancial information
included in this report. It is the responsibility
of the Accounting Ofcer to ensure that the
annual nancial statements fairly present the
state of affairs of the Authority as at the end
of the nancial year and the results of its
operations and cash ows for the period then
ended.

The Accounting Ofcer is of the opinion,
based on the information and explanations
given by management, that the system of
internal control provides reasonable
assurance that the nancial records may be
relied on for the preparation of the annual
nancial statements. However, any system of
internal nancial control can provide only
reasonable, and not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or decit.

The external auditors are engaged to express
an independent opinion on the annual
nancial statements and were given
unrestricted access to all nancial records
and related data. The annual nancial
statements have been prepared in
accordance with Standards of Generally
Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP)
including any interpretations, guidelines and
directives issued by the Accounting Standards
Board.

The auditors are responsible for auditing and
reporting on the Authority's annual nancial
statements. The annual nancial statements
have been examined by the Authority's
external auditors and their report is
presented below.

The annual nancial statements are based
upon appropriate accounting policies
consistently applied and supported by
reasonable and prudent judgements and
estimates. The Accounting Ofcer
acknowledges that he is ultimately
responsible for the system of internal
nancial control established by the Authority
and place considerable importance on
maintaining a strong control environment. To
enable the Accounting Ofcer to meet these
responsibilities, the Accounting Ofcer sets
standards for internal control aimed at
reducing the risk of error or decit in a costeffective manner.

The annual nancial statements set out in the
Annual Report, which have been prepared on
the going concern basis, were approved by
the accounting ofcer on 31 May 2017 and
were signed on its behalf by:

_________________
Willington Ngwepe
Acting Chief Executive Ofcer
31 July 2017

The standards include the proper delegation
of responsibilities within a clearly dened
framework, effective accounting procedures
and adequate segregation of duties to ensure
an acceptable level of risk. These controls are
monitored throughout the Authority and all
employees are required to maintain the
highest ethical standards in ensuring the
Authority's business is conducted in a manner
that in all reasonable circumstances is
beyond reproach. The focus of risk
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91

142

,

together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit South Africa.
(IESBA)

ICASA | 2016/17 ANNUAL REPORT
81

The accounting ofcer

the accounting

the accounting ofcer

ICASA | 2016/17 ANNUAL REPORT
82

Sub-Programme 1

Sub-Programme 1

Legal, Risk and CCC

18
18 - 19

Policy, Research and Analysis

20 - 21

Engineering and Technology

21

Compliance and Consumer Affairs

22

Legal, Risk and CCC

Refer to the annual performance report on page 13-40 for information on the achievement of
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Legal, Risk and CCC. As management subsequently corrected only some of the

not in line with the requirements of Treasury Regulation 5.2.4

. This is not in line with the requirements of Treasury Regulation 5.2.4

the requirements of Treasury Regulation 5.2.4

performance report on page 13 to 40 for information on the achievement of
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Policy, Research and Analysis . As management subsequently corrected only some of the

Engineering and Technology

. This is not in line with the requirements of Treasury Regulation 5.2.4

Research reports and TV white spaces Regulations”

Treasury Regulation 5.2.4
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13 to 40 for information on the achievement of

Engineering and Technology

Compliance and Consumer Affairs

PFMA Material misstatements of non
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ofcer is
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, my
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.

.
.
.

.
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Independent Communications Authority of South Africa (ICASA)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2017
Note(s)

2017
R

2016
R

Assets
Current Assets
Inventories
Receivables from exchange transactions
National Revenue Fund receivables
Prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents

3
4
5
6
7

489 576
6 022 320
806 647 505
9 704 751
754 960 180

579 617
3 727 201
736 950 694
15 326 843
711 179 788

1 577 824 332 1 467 764 143
Non-Current Assets
Equipment
Intangible assets

8
9

Non-Current Assets
Current Assets
Total Assets

122 546 401
18 840 674

110 707 241
10 186 400

141 387 075

120 893 641

141 387 075 120 893 641
1 577 824 332 1 467 764 143
1 719 211 407 1 588 657 784

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Finance lease obligation
Operating lease liability
Payables from exchange transactions
Payables from non - exchange transactions
National Revenue Fund payables
Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Provisions

10
11
12
13
14
15
16

289 696
1 604 344
1 048 252
29 067 621
36 259 559
20 937
20 937
1 355 918 275 1 188 133 415
9 615 947
60 661 162
19 693 431
17 605 357
1 416 210 251 1 303 728 682

Non-Current Liabilities
Finance lease obligation
Operating lease liability

10
11

Non-Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

349 217
976 857

2 435 036

1 326 074

2 435 036

1 326 074
2 435 036
1 416 210 251 1 303 728 682
1 417 536 325 1 306 163 718

Assets
Liabilities
Net Assets

1 719 211 407 1 588 657 784
(1 417 536 325)(1 306 163 718)
301 675 082 282 494 066

Accumulated surplus

301 675 082
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282 494 066

Independent Communications Authority of South Africa (ICASA)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Statement of Financial Performance
Note(s)
Revenue
Revenue from non exchange transactions
Revenue from exchange transactions

17
18

Total revenue
Expenditure
Employee related costs
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment loss/ Reversal of impairments
Finance costs
Repairs and maintenance
General Expenses

19
20
21
22
23

2017
R

2016
R

431 817 003
23 941 973

418 830 737
22 068 699

455 758 976

440 899 436

(254 667 868) (220 962 647)
(17 251 452) (15 503 242)
(24 863)
32 482
(163 273)
(4 606)
(7 383 541)
(6 069 022)
(149 868 236) (142 499 773)

Total expenditure

(429 359 233) (385 006 808)

Total revenue
Total expenditure
Operating surplus
Fair value adjustment to assets

455 758 976 440 899 436
(429 359 233) (385 006 808)
26 399 743
55 892 628
31 406
141 997
26 431 149
26 431 149

Surplus before taxation
Taxation
Surplus for the y ear
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56 034 625
56 034 625

Independent Communications Authority of South Africa (ICASA)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
Accumulated
surplus
R
Balance at 01 April 2015
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year

Total net
assets
R

226 459 441

226 459 441

56 034 625

56 034 625

56 034 625

56 034 625

Opening balance as previously reported
Adjustments
Funds surrendered to National Revenue Fund

282 494 070

282 494 070

Balance at 01 April 2016 as restated*
Changes in net assets
Surplus for the year

275 243 933

275 243 933

26 431 149

26 431 149

26 431 149

26 431 149

301 675 082

301 675 082

Total changes

Total changes
Balance at 31 March 2017
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(7 250 137)

(7 250 137)

Independent Communications Authority of South Africa (ICASA)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Cash Flow Statement
Note(s)

2017
R

2016
R

Cash ows from operating activities
Receipts
Finance income
Cash received from Department of Communications
Other receipts
Cash received by Administered Revenue for NRF

23 939 973
22 052 079
414 481 000 393 619 000
450 651
14 852
1 540 671 844 1 429 785 294
1 979 543 468 1 845 471 225

Payments
Employee costs
Suppliers
Finance costs
Cash paid by Administered Revenue for NRF

(231 437 012) (188 816 987)
(219 304 840) (167 452 817)
(90 581)
(4 606)
(1 444 314 003)(1 324 438 571)
(1 895 146 436)(1 680 712 981)

Total receipts
Total payments
Net cash ows from operating activities

25

1 979 543 468 1 845 471 225
(1 895 146 436)(1 680 712 981)
84 397 032 164 758 244

Cash ows from investing activities
8
8
9

Purchase of equipment
Proceeds from sale of equipment
Purchase of other intangible assets

(28 317 658)
(12 298 982)

(23 055 266)
22 746
(5 147 822)

Net cash ows from investing activities

(40 616 640)

(28 180 342)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

43 780 392
711 179 788

136 577 902
574 601 886

754 960 180

711 179 788

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the y

ear
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Independent Communications Authority of South Africa (ICASA)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
Budget on Cash Basis
Approved
budget

Adjustments

Final Budget

R

R

R

Actual
amounts on
comparable
basis
R

Difference
between nal
budget and
actual
R

Reference

Statement of Financial Performance
Revenue
Revenue from exchange
transactions
Other income
Revenue from non-exchange
transactions
Funding from the Department of
Communications
'Total revenue from exchange
transactions'
'Total revenue from nonexchange transactions'
Expenditure
Personnel
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment loss/ Reversal of
impairments
Finance costs
Repairs and maintenance
General Expenses
Total expenditure

Operating surplus
Fair value adjustment to assets

Surplus before taxation
Surplus before taxation
Taxation
Actual Amount on Comparable
Basis as Presented in the
Budget and Actual
Comparative Statement

11 000 000

-

11 000 000

23 941 973

12 941 973

Note 35

414 481 000

-

414 481 000

431 817 003

17 336 003

Note 35

11 000 000

-

11 000 000

23 941 973

12 941 973

Note 36

414 481 000

-

414 481 000

431 817 003

17 336 003

Note 36

(260 814 960)
(16 516 933)
-

-

(260 814 960) (254 667 868)
(16 516 933) (17 251 452)
(24 863)

6 147 092
(734 519)
(24 863)

Note 35
Note 35
Note 35

(5 322 480)
(134 428 057)

-

(163 273)
(5 322 480)
(7 383 541)
(134 428 057) (149 868 236)

(163 273)
(2 061 061)
(15 440 179)

Note 35
Note 35

(417 082 430)

-

(417 082 430) (429 359 233)

(12 276 803)

425 481 000
(417 082 430)
8 398 570
-

-

425 481 000 455 758 976
(417 082 430) (429 359 233)
8 398 570
26 399 743
31 406

30 277 976
(12 276 803)
18 001 173
31 406

Note 35
Note 35

8 398 570
8 398 570
-

-

18 001 173
31 406
18 032 579
26 431 149
26 431 149

Note 35
Note 35

8 398 570
8 398 570
-

Reconciliation
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26 399 743
31 406
26 431 149
26 431 149
26 431 149
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Ac counting Policies
1.

Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

The annual nancial statements h ave been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice ( GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 91(1) o f the Public Finance
Management Act (Act 1 of 1999) .
These annual nancial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical
cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specied otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand.
A summary of the signicant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these annual
nancial statements, are disclosed below.
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period.
1.1 Presentation currency
These annual nancial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the constitutional
institution.
1.2 Going concern assumption
These annual nancial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the Authority will continue to operate
as a going concern for at least the next 12 months.
1.3 Signicant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty
In preparing the annual nancial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts represented in the annual nancial statements a nd related disclosures. Use of available information and the
application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates
which may be material to the annual nancial statements . Signicant judgements include:
Trade receivables / Held to maturity

investments and/or loans and receivables

The Authority assesses its trade receivables, held to maturity investments and loans and receivables for impairment at the end
of each reporting period. In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in surplus o r decit, the Authority
makes judgements as to whether there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease/increase in the estimated future
cash ows from a nancial asset.
Allowance for slow moving, damaged and obsolete stock
An allowance for inventory to write stock down to the lower of cost or net realisable value. Management have made estimates
of the selling price and direct cost to sell on certain inventory items. The write down is included in the operation Authority note.
Impairment testing
The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and individual assets have been determined based on the higher of valuein-use calculations and fair values less costs to sell. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions.
The Authority r eviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. If there are indications that impairment may have occurred, estimates are prepared of
expected future cash ows for each group of assets. Ex pected future cash ows used to determine the value in use of tangible
assets are inherently uncertain and could materially change over time. They are signicantly affected by a number of entityspecic variables such as existing disputes between the Authority and the licensee and long outstanding fees billed under
repealed regulations, as well as economic factors such as ination, exchange rates and interest.
Provisions
Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available. Additional disclosure of
these estimates of provisions are included in note 16 - Provisions.
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Ac counting Policies
1.3 Signicant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Allowance for doubtful debts
On debtors an impairment loss is recognised in surplus and decit when there is objective evidence that it is impaired. The
impairment is measured as the difference between the debtors carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
ows discounted at the effective interest rate, computed at initial recognition.
1.4 Equipment
Equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one period.
The cost of an item of equipment is recognised as an asset when:
it is probable that future economic benets or service potential associated with the item will ow to the Authority;
and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
Equipment is initially measured at cost.
The cost of an item of equipment i s the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and rebates are
deducted in arriving at the cost.
Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.
Where an item of equipment i s acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a combination of
monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item's fair
value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.
When signicant components of an item of equipment h ave different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items
(major components) of equipment.
Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of equipment and costs incurred subsequently to add to,
replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of equipment, the carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
The initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located is also
included in the cost of equipment, where the entity is obligated to incur such expenditure, and where the obligation arises as a
result of acquiring the asset or using it for purposes other than the production of inventories.
Recognition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of equipment c eases when the item is in the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.
Items such as spare parts, standby equipment and servicing equipment are recognised when they meet the denition of
equipment.
Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of equipment and which meet the recognition criteria
above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of equipment. Any remaining inspection costs from the previous
inspection are derecognised.
Equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
Equipment i s carried at revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses.
Revaluations are made with sufcient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would
be determined using fair value at the end of the reporting period.
When an item of equipment is revalued, any accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is restated proportionately
with the change in the gross carrying amount of the asset so that the carrying amount of the asset after revaluation equals its
revalued amount.
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1.4 Equipment (continued)
When an item of equipment is revalued, any accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is eliminated against the
gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated to the revalued amount of the asset.
Any increase in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is credited directly to a revaluation surplus. The
increase is recognised in Authority or decit to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognised in Authority or decit.
Any decrease in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in Authority o r decit i n the current
period. The decrease is debited directly to a revaluation surplus to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation
surplus in respect of that asset.
The revaluation surplus in equity related to a specic item of equipment is transferred directly to retained earnings when the
asset is derecognised.
The revaluation surplus in equity related to a specic item of equipment is transferred directly to retained earnings as the asset
is used. The amount transferred is equal to the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount and
depreciation based on the original cost of the asset.
Equipment are depreciated on the over their expected useful lives to their estimated residual value.
Equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
Equipment i s carried at revalued amount, being the fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are made with sufcient regularity such that the
carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the end of the reporting
period.
Any increase in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is credited directly to a revaluation surplus. The
increase is recognised in Authority or decit to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognised in Authority or decit.
Any decrease in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in Authority o r decit i n the current
period. The decrease is debited in revaluation surplus to the extent of any credit balance existing in the revaluation surplus in
respect of that asset.
The useful lives of items of equipment have been assessed as follows:
Item

Depreciation method

Average useful life

Furniture and xtures
Motor vehicles
Ofce equipment
Computer equipment
Computer software
Leasehold improvements

Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line
Straight line

Technical equipment
Ofce and Computer Equipment under Finance Lease

Straight line
Straight line

7 - 27 years
10 - 19 Years
7 - 26 Years
5 - 26 Years
5 - 19 Years
Depreciated over
period
5 - 29 Years
Depreciated over
period

lease

lease

The depreciable amount of an asset is allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life.
Each part of an item of equipment with a cost that is signicant in relation to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately .
The depreciation method used reects the pattern in which the asset’s future economic benets or service potential are
expected to be consumed by the Authority. The depreciation method applied to an asset is reviewed at least at each reporting
date a nd, if there has been a signicant change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benets or
service potential embodied in the asset, the method is changed to reect the changed pattern. Such a change is accounted for
as a change in an accounting estimate.
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1.4 Equipment (continued)
The Authority assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that the Authority expectations about the residual
value and the useful life of an asset have changed since the preceding reporting date. If any such indication exists, the
Authority r evises the expected useful life and/or residual value accordingly. The change is accounted for as a change in an
accounting estimate.
The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in Authority o r decit u nless it is included in the carrying amount of
another asset.
Items of equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic benets or service
potential expected from the use of the asset.
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of equipment i s included in Authority o r decit w hen the item is
derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of equipment is determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.
Assets which the Authority holds for rentals to others and subsequently routinely sell as part of the ordinary course of activities,
are transferred to inventories when the rentals end and the assets are available-for-sale. Proceeds from sales of these assets
are recognised as revenue. All cash ows on these assets are included in cash ows from operating activities in the cash ow
statement.
The Authority separately discloses expenditure to repair and maintain equipment in the notes to the nancial statements (see
note 22).
1.5 Intangible assets
An asset is identiable if it either:
is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or
exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, identiable assets or liability, regardless of
whether the entity intends to do so; or
arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of whether those rights are
transferable or separable from the Authority or from other rights and obligations.
A binding arrangement describes an arrangement that confers similar rights and obligations on the parties to it as if it were in
the form of a contract.
An intangible asset is recognised when:
it is probable that the expected future economic benets or service potential that are attributable to the asset will
ow to the Authority; and
the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.
The Authority a ssesses the probability of expected future economic benets or service potential using reasonable and
supportable assumptions that represent management’s best estimate of the set of economic conditions that will exist over the
useful life of the asset.
Where an intangible asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is measured
at its fair value as at that date.
Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred.
An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised when:
it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale.
there is an intention to complete and use or sell it.
there is an ability to use or sell it.
it will generate probable future economic benets or service potential.
there are available technical, nancial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
asset.
the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably .
Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
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1.5 Intangible assets (continued)
An intangible asset is regarded as having an indenite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no foreseeable
limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inows or service potential. Amortisation is not
provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the
asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a straight line basis over their useful life.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date.
Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a nite useful life after it was classied as indenite is an indicator that
the asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over
its useful life.
Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not recognised as
intangible assets.
Internally generated goodwill is not recognised as an intangible asset.
Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows:
Item

Depreciation method

Average useful life

Computer software

Straight line

5 - 19 Years

The Authority discloses relevant information relating to assets under construction or development, in the notes to the nancial
statements (see note 9).
1.6 Financial instruments
A nancial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a nancial asset of one entity a nd a nancial liability or a residual
interest of another entity.
The amortised cost of a nancial asset or nancial liability is the amount at which the nancial asset or nancial liability is
measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the effective
interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or
through the use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility .
A concessionary loan is a loan granted to or received by an entity on terms that are not market related.
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a nancial instrument will cause a nancial loss for the other party by failing to discharge
an obligation.
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash ows of a nancial instrument will uctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates.
Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised nancial asset or nancial liability from an entity’s statement of
nancial position.
A derivative is a nancial instrument or other contract with all three of the following characteristics:
Its value changes in response to the change in a specied interest rate, nancial instrument price, commodity price,
foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index , or other variable, provided in the case of
a non-nancial variable that the variable is not specic to a party to the contract (sometimes called the ‘underlying’).
It requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would be required for other types
of contracts that would be expected to have a similar response to changes in market factors.
It is settled at a future date.
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1.6 Financial instruments (continued)
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a nancial asset or a nancial liability (or group of
nancial assets or nancial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of
the nancial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the nancial asset or nancial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash ows considering all contractual terms of the
nancial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider future credit losses. The
calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions), transaction costs, and all other premiums
or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash ows and the expected life of a group of similar nancial instruments can be
estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably estimate the cash ows or the expected life
of a nancial instrument (or group of nancial instruments), the entity s hall use the contractual cash ows over the full
contractual term of the nancial instrument (or group of nancial instruments).
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable willing parties in
an arm’s length transaction.
A nancial asset is:
cash;
a residual interest of another entity; or
a contractual right to:
receive cash or another nancial asset from another entity; or
exchange nancial assets or nancial liabilities with another entity u nder conditions that are potentially
favourable to the entity.
A nancial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specied payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specied debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modied terms of a
debt instrument.
A nancial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:
deliver cash or another nancial asset to another entity; or
exchange nancial assets or nancial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the entity.
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash ows of a nancial instrument will uctuate because of changes in
market interest rates.
Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity i n the event of difculty in meeting obligations associated with nancial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another nancial asset.
Loan commitment is a rm commitment to provide credit under pre-specied terms and conditions.
Loans payable are nancial liabilities, other than short-term payables on normal credit terms.
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash ows of a nancial instrument will uctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.
Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash ows of a nancial instrument will uctuate because of changes in
market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors
specic to the individual nancial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar nancial instruments traded in the
market.
A nancial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due.
A residual interest is any contract that manifests an interest in the assets of an entity a fter deducting all of its liabilities. A
residual interest includes contributions from owners, which may be shown as:
equity instruments or similar forms of unitised capital;
a formal designation of a transfer of resources (or a class of such transfers) by the parties to the transaction as
forming part of an entity’s net assets, either before the contribution occurs or at the time of the contribution; or
a formal agreement, in relation to the contribution, establishing or increasing an existing nancial interest in the net
assets of an entity.
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1.6 Financial instruments (continued)
Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a nancial asset or
nancial liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the entity h ad not acquired, issued or
disposed of the nancial instrument.
Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative nancial assets or non-derivative nancial liabilities that have xed
or determinable payments, excluding those instruments that:
the entity designates at fair value at initial recognition; or
are held for trading.
Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests that do not have a quoted market price in an active market,
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.
Financial instruments at fair value comprise nancial assets or nancial liabilities that are:
derivatives;
combined instruments that are designated at fair value;
instruments held for trading. A nancial instrument is held for trading if:
it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near-term; or
on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identied nancial instruments that are managed together and for
which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short term prot-taking;
non-derivative nancial assets or nancial liabilities with xed or determinable payments that are designated at
fair value at initial recognition; and
nancial instruments that do not meet the denition of nancial instruments at amortised cost or nancial
instruments at cost.
1.7 Leases
A lease is classied as a nance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is
classied as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.
When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classication of each element separately .
Finance leases - lessee
Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of nancial position at amounts equal to the fair value
of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the statement of nancial position as a nance lease obligation.
The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the lease .
Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the nance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The nance
charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of on the remaining balance
of the liability.
Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Operating leases - lessor
Operating lease revenue is recognised as revenue on a straight-line basis over the lease term .
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging operating leases are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense over the lease term on the same basis as the lease revenue.
The aggregate cost of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental revenue over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
The aggregate benet of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
Income for leases is disclosed under revenue in statement of nancial performance .
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1.7 Leases (continued)
Operating leases - lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between
the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability .
1.8 Inventories
Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired through a non-exchange transaction, then their
costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for;
distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge; or
consumption in the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution.
Current replacement cost is the cost the Authority incurs to acquire the asset on the reporting date.
The cost of inventories c omprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.
The cost of inventories o f items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and segregated for
specic projects is assigned using specic identication of the individual costs.
The cost of inventories is assigned using the formula. The same cost formula is used for all inventories having a similar nature
and use to the Authority.
When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are recognised when the goods are distributed, or
related services are rendered. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value or current replacement cost
and all losses of inventories a re recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value or current replacement cost, are
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.
1.9 Impairment of cash-generating assets
Cash-generating assets are assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial return. An asset generates a
commercial return when it is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a prot-oriented entity .
Impairment is a loss in the future economic benets or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recognition
of the loss of the asset’s future economic benets or service potential through depreciation (amortisation).
Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of nancial position a fter deducting any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.
A cash-generating unit is the smallest identiable group of assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial
return that generates cash inows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inows from other assets or
groups of assets.
Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding nance costs and income tax
expense.
Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.
Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.
Recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.
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1.9 Impairment of cash-generating assets (continued)
Useful life is either:
(a) the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the Authority; or
(b) the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the Authority.
1.10 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets
Cash-generating assets are assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial return. An asset generates a
commercial return when it is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a prot-oriented entity .
Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets.
Impairment is a loss in the future economic benets or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recognition
of the loss of the asset’s future economic benets or service potential through depreciation (amortisation).
Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of nancial position a fter deducting any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.
A cash-generating unit is the smallest identiable group of assets managed with the objective of generating a commercial
return that generates cash inows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inows from other assets or
groups of assets.
Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding nance costs and income tax
expense.
Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.
Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction between
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.
Recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating asset’ s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.
Useful life is either:
(a) the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the Authority; or
(b) the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the Authority.
1.11 Employ ee benets
Employee benets are all forms of consideration given by an entity in exchange for service rendered by employees.
A qualifying insurance policy is an insurance policy issued by an insurer that is not a related party (as dened in the Standard
of GRAP on Related Party Disclosures) of the reporting entity, if the proceeds of the policy can be used only to pay or fund
employee benets under a dened benet plan and are not available to the reporting entity’s own creditors (even in liquidation)
and cannot be paid to the reporting entity, unless either:
the proceeds represent surplus assets that are not needed for the policy to meet all the related employee benet
obligations; or
the proceeds are returned to the reporting entity to reimburse it for employee benets already paid.
Termination benets are employee benets payable as a result of either:
an entity’s decision to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement date; or
an employee’s decision to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benets.
Other long-term employee benets are employee benets (other than post-employment benets and termination benets) that
are not due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.
Vested employee benets are employee benets that are not conditional on future employment.
Composite social security programmes are established by legislation and operate as multi-employer plans to provide postemployment benets as well as to provide benets that are not consideration in exchange for service rendered by employees.
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1.11 Employ ee benets (continued)
A constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where by an established pattern of past practice,
published policies or a sufciently specic current statement, the entity has indicated to other parties that it will accept certain
responsibilities and as a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties that it will discharge
those responsibilities.
Short-term employee benets
Short-term employee benets are employee benets (other than termination benets) that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service.
Short-term employee benets include items such as:
wages, salaries and social security contributions;
short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave and paid sick leave) where the compensation for the
absences is due to be settled within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the employees
render the related employee service;
bonus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months after the end of the reporting
period in which the employees render the related service; and
non-monetary benets (for example, medical care, and free or subsidised goods or services such as housing, cars
and cellphones) for current employees.
When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognise the undiscounted amount
of short-term employee benets expected to be paid in exchange for that service:
as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid exceeds the
undiscounted amount of the benets, the entity recognise that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent
that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and
as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the benets in the cost of an asset.
The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase
their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. The entity m easure the expected
cost of accumulating compensated absences as the additional amount that the entity expects to pay as a result of the unused
entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.
The entity recognise the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the entity has a present
legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation can
be made. A present obligation exists when the entity has no realistic alternative but to make the payments.
Post-employment benets
Post-employment benets are employee benets (other than termination benets) which are payable after the completion of
employment.
Post-employment benet plans are formal or informal arrangements under which an entity provides post-employment benets
for one or more employees.
Multi-employer plans are dened contribution plans (other than state plans and composite social security programmes) or
dened benet plans (other than state plans) that pool the assets contributed by various entities that are not under common
control and use those assets to provide benets to employees of more than one entity, on the basis that contribution and
benet levels are determined without regard to the identity of the entity that employs the employees concerned.
1.12 Provisions and contingencies
Provisions are recognised when:
the Authority has a present obligation as a result of a past event;
it is probable that an outow of resources embodying economic benets or service potential will be required to
settle the obligation; and
a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation.
The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the ex penditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at the
reporting date.
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1.12 Provisions and contingencies (continued)
Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specic to
the liability.
Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the
reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Authority
settles the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement does
not exceed the amount of the provision.
Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is
no longer probable that an outow of resources embodying economic benets or service potential will be required, to settle the
obligation.
Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reect the passage of time. This
increase is recognised as an interest expense.
A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating decits.
If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and
measured as a provision.
A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity:
has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least:
the activity/operating unit or part of a activity/operating unit concerned;
the principal locations affected;
the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for services being
terminated;
the expenditures that will be undertaken; and
when the plan will be implemented; and
has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that
plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it.
A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those that are both:
necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and
not associated with the ongoing activities of the Authority
No obligation arises as a consequence of the sale or transfer of an operation until the Authority is committed to the sale or
transfer, that is, there is a binding arrangement.
After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in entity combinations that are recognised separately are
subsequently measured at the higher of:
the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and
the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation.
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 27.
A nancial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specied payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specied debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modied terms of a
debt instrument.
Loan commitment is a rm commitment to provide credit under pre-specied terms and conditions.
The Authority r ecognises a provision for nancial guarantees and loan commitments when it is probable that an outow of
resources embodying economic benets and service potential will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made.
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1.12 Provisions and contingencies (continued)
Determining whether an outow of resources is probable in relation to nancial guarantees requires judgement. Indications that
an outow of resources may be probable are:
nancial difculty of the debtor;
defaults or delinquencies in interest and capital repayments by the debtor;
breaches of the terms of the debt instrument that result in it being payable earlier than the agreed term and the
ability of the debtor to settle its obligation on the amended terms; and
a decline in prevailing economic circumstances (e.g. high interest rates, ination and unemployment) that impact on
the ability of entities to repay their obligations.
Where a fee is received by the Authority for issuing a nancial guarantee and/or where a fee is charged on loan commitments,
it is considered in determining the best estimate of the amount required to settle the obligation at reporting date. W here a fee is
charged and the Authority considers that an outow of economic resources is probable, an Authority recognises the obligation
at the higher of:
the amount determined using in the Standard of GRAP on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets;
and
the amount of the fee initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance
with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions.
1.13 Commitments
Items are classied as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactions that will normally result in the
outow of cash.
Disclosures are required in respect of unrecognised contractual commitments.
Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a fair presentation should be disclosed in a note to the nancial
statements, if both the following criteria are met:
Contracts should be non-cancellable or only cancellable at signicant cost (for example, contracts for computer or
building maintenance services); and
Contracts should relate to something other than the routine, steady, state business of the entity – therefore salary
commitments relating to employment contracts or social security benet commitments are excluded.
1.14 Revenue from exchange transactions
Revenue is the gross inow of economic benets or service potential during the reporting period when those inows result in an
increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.
An exchange transaction is one in which the Authority
r eceives assets or services, or has liabilities
extinguished, and directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the
other party in exchange.
Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be ex changed, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in
an arm’s length transaction.
Measurement
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates.
Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satised:
the Authority has transferred to the purchaser the signicant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;
the Authority retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership
nor effective control over the goods sold;
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
it is probable that the economic benets or service potential associated with the transaction will ow to the
Authority; and
the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably .
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1.14 Revenue from exchange transactions (continued)
Rendering of services
When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with
the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome
of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satised:
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
it is probable that the economic benets or service potential associated with the transaction will ow to the
Authority;
the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and
the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably .
When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts over a specied time frame, revenue is recognised on a
straight line basis over the specied time frame unless there is evidence that some other method better represents the stage of
completion. When a specic act is much more signicant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed until the
signicant act is executed.
When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.
Interest, royalties and dividends
Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest, royalties and dividends or similar distributions is
recognised when:
It is probable that the economic benets or service potential associated with the transaction will ow to the Authority,
and
The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.
Interest is recognised, in Authority or decit, using the effective interest rate method.
Service fees included in the price of the product are recognised as revenue over the period during which the service is
performed.
1.15 Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Revenue comprises gross inows of economic benets or service potential received and receivable by an Authority, which
represents an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.
Conditions on transferred assets are stipulations that specify that the future economic benets or service potential embodied in
the asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as specied or future economic benets or service potential must be
returned to the transferor.
Control of an asset arise when the Authority c an use or otherwise benet from the asset in pursuit of its objectives and can
exclude or otherwise regulate the access of others to that benet.
Exchange transactions are transactions in which one entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and
directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to another entity in
exchange.
Expenses paid through the tax system are amounts that are available to beneciaries regardless of whether or not they pay
taxes.
Fines are economic benets or service potential received or receivable by entities, as determined by a court or other law
enforcement body, as a consequence of the breach of laws or regulations.
Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, an Authority
either receives value from another Authority without directly giving approximately equal value in exchange, or gives value to
another Authority without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.
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1.15 Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued)
Recognition
An inow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the extent
that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inow.
As the Authority satises a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inow of resources from a non-exchange
transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an amount of
revenue equal to that reduction.
Measurement
Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the
Authority.
When, as a result of a non-exchange transaction, the Authority recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue equivalent to
the amount of the asset measured at its fair value as at the date of acquisition, unless it is also required to recognise a liability.
Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the amount required to settle the
obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as revenue. W hen a liability is
subsequently reduced, because the taxable event occurs or a condition is satised, the amount of the reduction in the liability is
recognised as revenue.
Taxation
The Authority is exempted from paying Income Tax in terms of section 10 (1) (cA) of the Income Tax Act (Act No 58 of 1962).
Fines
Fines are recognised as revenue when the receivable meets the denition of an asset and satises the criteria for recognition
as an asset.
Assets arising from nes are measured at the best estimate of the inow of resources to the Authority.
Where the Authority collects nes in the capacity of an agent, the ne will not be revenue of the collecting entity .
1.16 Accounting by principals and agents
Identication
An agent is an entity that has been directed by another entity (a principal), through a binding arrangement, to undertake
transactions with third parties on behalf of the principal and for the benet of the principal.
A principal is an entity that directs another entity (an agent), through a binding arrangement, to undertake transactions with
third parties on its behalf and for its own benet.
A principal-agent arrangement results from a binding arrangement in which one entity (an agent), undertakes transactions with
third parties on behalf, and for the benet of, another entity (the principal).
Identify ing whether an entity is a principal or an agent
When the Authority i s party to a principal-agent arrangement, it assesses whether it is the principal or the agent in
accounting for revenue, expenses, assets and/or liabilities that result from transactions with third parties undertaken in
terms of the arrangement.
The assessment of whether an Authority is a principal or an agent requires the Authority to assess whether the transactions
it undertakes with third parties are for the benet of another entity or for its own benet.
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1.16 Accounting by principals and agents (continued)
Binding arrangement
The Authority assesses whether it is an agent or a principal by assessing the rights and obligations of the various parties
established in the binding arrangement.
Where the terms of a binding arrangement are modied, the parties to the arrangement re-assess whether they act as a
principal or an agent.
Assessing which entity benets from the transactions with third parties
When the Authority i n a principal-agent arrangement concludes that it undertakes transactions with third parties for the
benet of another entity, then it is the agent. If the Authority concludes that it is not the agent, then it is the principal in the
transactions.
The Authority is an agent when, in relation to transactions with third parties, all three of the following criteria are present:
It does not have the power to determine the signicant terms and conditions of the transaction.
It does not have the ability to use all, or substantially all, of the resources that result from the transaction for its
own benet.
It is not exposed to variability in the results of the transaction.
Where the Authority has been granted specic powers in terms of legislation to direct the terms and conditions of particular
transactions, it is not required to consider the criteria of whether it does not have the power to determine the signicant
terms and conditions of the transaction, to conclude that is an agent. The Authority a pplies judgement in determining
whether such powers exist and whether they are relevant in assessing whether the Authority is an agent.
Recognition
The Authority, as a principal, recognises revenue and expenses that arise from transactions with third parties in a principalagent arrangement in accordance with the requirements of the relevant Standards of GRAP.
The Authority, as an agent, recognises only that portion of the revenue and expenses it receives or incurs in executing the
transactions on behalf of the principal in accordance with the requirements of the relevant Standards of GRAP.
The Authority r ecognises assets and liabilities arising from principal-agent arrangements in accordance with the
requirements of the relevant Standards of GRAP.
1.17 Comparative gures
Where necessary, comparative gures have been reclassied to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.
1.18 Unauthorised expenditure
Unauthorised expenditure means:
overspending of a vote or a main division within a vote; and
expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a vote or, in the case of a main division, not in accordance with
the purpose of the main division.
All expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of nancial performance
the year t hat the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classied in accordance with the nature of the expense, and
where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of nancial performance .
1.19 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been
exercised.
All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of nancial
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classied in accordance with the nature of the
expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of nancial performance .
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1.20 Irregular expenditure
Irregular expenditure as dened in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in
contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including (a) this Act; or
(b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or
(c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government.
National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was issued in terms of sections 76(1) to 76(4) of the PFMA requires
the following (effective from 1 April 2008):
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identied during the current nancial and which was condoned before year end
and/or before nalisation of the nancial statements must also be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register . In
such an instance, no further action is also required with the exception of updating the note to the nancial statements.
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identied during the current nancial year and for which condonement is being
awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further action is required with the exception of
updating the note to the nancial statements.
Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous nancial year and is only condoned in the following nancial year , the
register and the disclosure note to the nancial statements must be updated with the amount condoned.
Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identied during the current nancial year and which was not condoned by the
National Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register . If liability for the
irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person is liable in law. Immediate
steps must thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the accounting
ofcer or accounting authority may write off the amount as debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant note to the
nancial statements. The irregular expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular expenditure has not
been condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against the relevant
programme/expenditure item, be disclosed as such in the note to the nancial statements and updated accordingly in the
irregular expenditure register.
1.21 Budget information
Authority are typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations (or equivalent), which is
given effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or similar .
General purpose nancial reporting by Authority s hall provide information on whether resources were obtained and used in
accordance with the legally adopted budget.
The approved budget is prepared on a cash b asis and presented by economic classication linked to performance outcome
objectives.
The approved budget covers the scal period from 01 Apr 2016 to 31 Mar 2017.
The budget for the economic entity includes all the entities approved budgets under its control.
The annual nancial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting therefore a comparison with the budgeted
amounts for the reporting period have been included in the Statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts .
1.22 Related parties
The Authority operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South African
Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the three spheres of government in South Africa, only
entities within the national sphere of government are considered to be related parties.
Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Authority, including those
charged with the governance of the Authority i n accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to perform
such functions.
Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be ex pected to inuence, or be
inuenced by, that management in their dealings with the Authority.
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1.22 Related parties (continued)
Only transactions with related parties not at arm’s length or not in the ordinary course of business are disclosed.
1.23 Events after reporting date
Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date and the
date when the nancial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identied:
those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting date);
and
those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the reporting
date).
The Authority will adjust the amount recognised in the nancial statements to reect adjusting events after the reporting date
once the event occurred.
The Authority w ill disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of its nancial effect or a statement that such estimate
cannot be made in respect of all material non-adjusting events, where non-disclosure could inuence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of the nancial statements.
1.24 Administered revenue on behalf of the National Revenue Fund
In terms of section 15 (3) of the Independent Communications Authority of South Africa Act (Act No 13 of 2000), the Authority is
required to pay all fees received and held on its behalf to the National Revenue Fund within 30 days after receipt of such
revenue, through the Department of Communications.
Separate bank accounts are held for the purpose of collecting these revenues and paying them across to the NRF. The
Authority has an obligation in terms of statute to administer these funds on behalf of National Treasury and to pay them across
within a prescribed time limit.
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New standards and interpretations

2.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current y ear
In the current year, the Authority has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the current
nancial year and that are relevant to its operations:
2.2 Standards and Interpretations early adopted
The Authority has chosen to early adopt the following standards and interpretations:
GRAP 20: Related parties
The objective of this standard i s to ensure that a reporting entity’s annual nancial statements c ontain the disclosures
necessary to draw attention to the possibility that its nancial position and surplus or decit may have been affected by the
existence of related parties and by transactions and outstanding balances with such parties.
An entity that prepares and presents nancial statements under the accrual basis of accounting (in this standard referred to
as the reporting entity) shall apply this standard in:
identifying related party relationships and transactions;
identifying outstanding balances, including commitments, between an entity and its related parties;
identifying the circumstances in which disclosure of the items in (a) and (b) is required; and
determining the disclosures to be made about those items.
This standard r equires disclosure of related party relationships, transactions and outstanding balances, including
commitments, in the consolidated and separate nancial statements of the reporting entity in accordance with the Standard
of GRAP on Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements. This standard a lso applies to individual annual nancial
statements.
Disclosure of related party transactions, outstanding balances, including commitments, and relationships with related
parties may affect users’ assessments of the nancial position and performance of the reporting entity and its ability to
deliver agreed services, including assessments of the risks and opportunities facing the entity. This disclosure also ensures
that the reporting entity is transparent about its dealings with related parties.
The standard states that a related party is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or
exercise signicant inuence over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common control, or joint
control. As a minimum, the following are regarded as related parties of the reporting entity:
A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the reporting entity if that person:
has control or joint control over the reporting entity;
has signicant inuence over the reporting entity;
is a member of the management of the entity or its controlling entity.
An entity is related to the reporting entity if any of the following conditions apply:
the entity is a member of the same economic entity (which means that each controlling entity, controlled
entity and fellow controlled entity is related to the others);
one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
an economic entity of which the other entity is a member);
both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;
one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity;
the entity is a post-employment benet plan for the benet of employees of either the entity or an entity
related to the entity. If the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are related to the entity;
the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identied in (a); and
a person identied in (a)(i) has signicant inuence over that entity or is a member of the management of
that entity (or its controlling entity).
The standard furthermore states that related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the
reporting entity and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged.
The standard elaborates on the denitions and identication of:
Close member of the family of a person;
Management;
Related parties;
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New standards and interpretations (continued)
Remuneration; and
Signicant inuence

The standard sets out the requirements, inter alia, for the disclosure of:
Control;
Related party transactions; and
Remuneration of management
The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance.
The Authority has early adopted the standard for the rst time when the Minister sets the effective date for the standard.
The adoption of this standard h as not had a material impact on the results of the Authority, but has resulted in more
disclosure than would have previously been provided in the annual nancial statements .
2.3 Standards and interpretations issued, but not y et effective
The Authority has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory
for the Authority’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 April 2017 or later periods:
GRAP 109: Accounting by Principals and Agents
The objective of this Standard is to outline principles to be used by an entity to assess whether it is party to a principalagent arrangement, and whether it is a principal or an agent in undertaking transactions in terms of such an arrangement.
The Standard does not introduce new recognition or measurement requirements for revenue, expenses, assets and/or
liabilities that result from principal-agent arrangements. The Standard does however provide guidance on whether revenue,
expenses, assets and/or liabilities should be recognised by an agent or a principal, as well as prescribe what information
should be disclosed when an entity is a principal or an agent.
It furthermore covers Denitions, Identifying whether an entity is a principal or agent, Accounting by a principal or agent,
Presentation, Disclosure, Transitional provisions and Effective date.
The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance.
The Authority expects to adopt the standard for the rst time when the Minister sets the effective date for the standard.
The expected impact of the standard i s detailed disclosure on Administered revenue on behalf of the National Revenue
Fund on the constitutional institution ’s annual nancial statements .
GRAP 108: Statutory Receivables
The objective of this Standard is: to prescribe accounting requirements for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of statutory receivables.
It furthermore covers: Denitions, recognition, derecognition,
provisions, as well as the effective date.

measurement, presentation and disclosure, transitional

The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance.
The Authority expects to adopt the standard for the rst time when the Minister sets the effective date for the standard.
It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on the Authority's annual nancial statements .
GRAP 32: Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor
The objective of this Standard is: to prescribe the accounting for service concession arrangements by the grantor, a public
sector entity.
It furthermore covers: Denitions, recognition and measurement of a service concession asset, recognition and
measurement of liabilities, other liabilities, contingent liabilities, and contingent assets, other revenues, presentation and
disclosure, transitional provisions, as well as the ef fective date.
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The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance.
The Authority expects to adopt the standard for the rst time when the Minister sets the effective date for the standard.
It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on the Authority's annual nancial statements .
IGRAP 17: Service Concession Arrangements where a Grantor Controls a Signicant Residual Interest in an Asset
This Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP provides guidance to the grantor where it has entered into a service
concession arrangement, but only controls, through ownership, benecial entitlement or otherwise, a signicant residual
interest in a service concession asset at the end of the arrangement, where the arrangement does not constitute a lease.
This Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP shall not be applied by analogy to other types of transactions or
arrangements.
A service concession arrangement is a contractual arrangement between a grantor and an operator in which the operator
uses the service concession asset to provide a mandated function on behalf of the grantor for a specied period of time.
The operator is compensated for its services over the period of the service concession arrangement, either through
payments, or through receiving a right to earn revenue from third party users of the service concession asset, or the
operator is given access to another revenue-generating asset of the grantor for its use.
Before the grantor can recognise a service concession asset in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Service
Concession Arrangements: Grantor, both the criteria as noted in paragraph .01 of this Interpretation of the Standards of
GRAP need to be met. In some service concession arrangements, the grantor only controls the residual interest in the
service concession asset at the end of the arrangement, and can therefore not recognise the service concession asset in
terms of the Standard of GRAP on Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor.
A consensus is reached, in this Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP, on the recognition of the performance obligation
and the right to receive a signicant interest in a service concession asset.
The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance.
The Authority expects to adopt the standard for the rst time when the Minister sets the effective date for the standard.
It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on the Authority's annual nancial statements .
2.4 Standards and interpretations not y et effective or relevant
The following standards and interpretations have been published and are mandatory for the Authority’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 01 April 2017 or later periods but are not relevant to its operations:

ICASA | 2016/17 ANNUAL REPORT
115

Independent Communications Authority of South Africa (ICASA)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
2017
R
3.

Inventories

Consumable stores
Groceries
Stationery
Toiletries

Inventories recognised as an expense during the year
4.

2016
R

154 329
73 997
242 968
18 282

199 124
94 901
250 925
34 667

489 576

579 617

759 532

596 601

4 416 476
1 633 001
(27 157)

2 846 554
1 215 757
(335 110)

6 022 320

3 727 201

Receivables from exchange transactions

Staff Receivables
Other receivables
Less: Provision for impairment of receivables

The abovementioned receivables are mainly related to bursaries, standing advances, travel and cellular phones. The
bursaries are recouped when the staff member stops studying, leaves the employment of the Authority or changes the
course for which the staff member was initially sponsored. The employee is expected to serve a term equivalent to the
period sponsored. Standing advances relate to amounts advanced to employees who are not ofce bound and are
repayable when the employee resigns.
Travel and cellphone receivables refer to amounts that the employee owes the Authority after a business trip or for
excess/personal usage of the cellphone provided to the employee by the Authority. Normally, no impairment is provided for
on these amounts as these amounts are recovered from employees on a regulated basis. The employees sign contracts for
bursaries, standing advances and cellphones, which give the Authority the right to deduct outstanding amounts. For training
related international travel, employees sign letters that give the Authority the right to deduct such amounts should
employees decide to leave before the stipulated period of time.
Credit quality of trade and other receivables
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned
above. The Authority does not hold any collateral as security.
Trade receivables
The rating of gross trade and other receivables was as follows:
Medium Risk
High Risk

6 022 320
27 157

3 727 201
335 110

6 049 477

4 062 311

The trade and other receivables balances are mainly granted to staff members and these are normally deducted from the
employees. Dealings outside the Authority are normally with reputable institutions with good credit ratings. The ratings are
as follows:
Medium risk: receivables with no defaults in the past and not provisionally-impaired.
High risk: receivables (more than 90 days) provisionally impaired.
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4.

2016
R

Receivables from exchange transactions (continued)

Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired
Trade and other receivables which are less than 3 months past due are not considered to be impaired. At 31 March 2017, R
1 992 177 (2016: R 525 776) were past due but not impaired.
The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:
1 month past due
2 months past due
3 months past due

1 966 086
26 091
4 057 300

245 571
280 205
3 201 425

Trade and other receivables impaired
As of 31 March 2017, trade and other receivables of R 27 157 (2016: R 335 110) were impaired and provided for.
The amount of the provision was R 27 157 as of 31 March 2017 (2016: R 335 110).
The ageing of these loans is as follows:
3 to 6 months
Over 6 months

157
27 000

335 110
-

335 110
27 157
(335 110)

335 110
-

27 157

335 110

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of trade and other receivables
Opening balance
Provision for impairment
Unused amounts reversed

5.

National Revenue Fund receivables

Broadcasting services
Spectrum receivables
ECS and ECNS services
Postal services
Allowance for impairment of NRF Receivables

119 214 146 113 263 125
239 328 971 252 591 859
675 892 678 624 268 597
14 613 553
33 423 927
(242 401 843) (286 596 814)
806 647 505

736 950 694

Accruals for licence fees relate to the accrual for all licences that were due at the end of the reporting period but were only
due for settlement after the end of the reporting period. These are based on either the actual results of the licensee, where
the licensee has nalised its nancial statements, in instances where actual results are not available at the end of the
reporting period, and the licensee submits the expected nancial results.
ECS and ECNS receivables relate to all the amounts that had been billed to but not settled by the Electronic
Communications Services and the Electronic Communications Network Services licensees. The broadcasting receivables
relates to all the outstanding licence fees for broadcasting licences.
The Authority acts as an agent for the National Revenue Fund. The transfer of licence fees received is paid over to the
Department of Communications, hence receivables on behalf of the National Revenue Fund.
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5.

2016
R

National Revenue Fund receivables (continued)

National Revenue Fund receivables past due but not impaired
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions which are less than 3 months p ast due are not considered to be
impaired. At 31 March 2017, R 1 034 435 795 (2016: R 733 085 716) were past due but not impaired.
The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows:
Current
1 months past due
2 months past due
3 months past due

1 034 435 795
14 613 553
242 401 843

733 085 716
359 367
238 713
289 863 712

National Revenue Fund receivables impaired
As of 31 March 2017, other receivables from non-exchange transactions of R (242 401 843) (2016: R 286 596 814) were
impaired and provided for.
Reconciliation of provision for impairment of national revenue fund receivables
Opening balance
Provision for impairment
Amounts written off as uncollectible
Reversal of impairments
Amounts recovered

(286 596 814) (249 262 994)
(9 841 906) (46 766 140)
9 080 641
6 448 289
2 984 031
44 956 236
(242 401 843) (286 596 814)

The licences are granted to various customers with very different credit proles. These include successful multinational
corporations, big security companies, medium-sized entities and very small entities. The credit proles of these entities vary
signicantly and, in terms of the legislation, the Authority cannot refuse to grant any entity licences due to its credit rating.
Despite the fact that no credit vetting takes place, all licences are granted after they have lodged their applications with the
Authority. In instances where the licensee fails to comply with its licence conditions, which include payment terms, the
licensee is referred to the Complaints and Compliance Committee or has its equipment sealed.
Amounts written-off during the year were previously included in the impairment provision. Council approved the write of f.
6.

Prepay ments

International training
Local training
Membership fees
Software licence and support
TV licence subscriptions
Insurance
IT maintenance and infrastructure
Library subscriptions
Advertising
Rent
Deposits

7.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
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2017

2016

86 194
78 075
1 017 044
9 066
34 556
724 774
350 116
2 108 875
1 971 978
3 324 072

321 766
84 840
890 094
9 066
40 185
849 035
5 928 690
3 954 826
3 248 341

9 704 750

15 326 843
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R
7.

2016
R

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

Bank balances
Administered revenue cash balance
Other cash and cash equivalents (bank)
Other cash and cash equivalents (other)

Bank statement balances
2017
Call accounts
Current accounts
Investments/Fixed deposits
Subtotal

2016

205 619 503
549 270 775
39 567
30 335

259 930 785
451 182 721
33 531
32 751

754 960 180

711 179 788

Cash book balances
2017

2016

58 311 329
54 707 286
92 267 779

45 330 849
33 531
201 716 244

58 311 329
54 707 286
92 267 779

45 330 849
33 531
201 716 244

205 286 394

247 080 624

205 286 394

247 080 624

205 286 394

247 080 624

205 286 394

247 080 624

Bank statement balances
2017

2016

Cash book balances
2017

2016

Current accounts - National Revenue Fund
Investments/Fixed deposits - National Revenue
Fund

14 928 216
534 342 559

222 024 891
229 444 920

14 928 216
534 342 559

222 024 891
229 444 920

Subtotal

549 270 775

451 469 811

549 270 775

451 469 811

549 270 775

451 469 811

549 270 775

451 469 811

*The above analysis of bank accounts excludes ‘Other cash and cash equivalents (other)’ as this is not bank accountrelated, cash and cash equivalents. An amount of R61 997 550 will be transferred to the National Revenue Fund
subsequent to year-end being funds from previous years erroneously invested .
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Furniture and xtures
Motor vehicles
Ofce equipment
Leasehold improvements
Test equipment
Work in Progress
Ofce and computer equipment under nance lease

Reconciliation of equipment - 2017
Additions
391 702
2 310 442
12 398 914
2 144 057
10 140 912
52 090
879 541
28 317 658

Opening
balance
5 516 436
11 830 556
21 049 356
1 522 173
59 552 595
11 236 125
110 707 241

(1 983 445)

(60 127)
(1 149 186)
(450 755)
1 250
(324 627)
-

Disposals

216 365 931

Total

Cost /
Valuation

11 519 849
17 529 680
53 108 941
9 458 972
112 580 733
11 288 215
879 541

Equipment

Furniture and xtures
Motor vehicles
Ofce equipment
Leasehold improvements
Test equipment
Work In Progress
Ofce equipment under nance lease

8.

Figures in Rand
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122 546 401

4 955 836
11 942 816
27 810 313
2 092 112
63 845 045
11 288 215
612 064

199 640 811

11 118 733
17 585 725
47 000 035
8 746 592
103 953 601
11 236 125
-

Cost /
Valuation

(88 933 570)

(5 602 297)
(5 755 169)
(25 950 679)
(7 224 419)
(44 401 006)
-

(52 090)

575 987

(14 994 087)

(24 863)

122 546 401

4 955 836
11 942 816
27 810 313
2 092 112
63 845 045
11 288 215
612 064

Total

110 707 241

5 516 436
11 830 556
21 049 356
1 522 173
59 552 595
11 236 125
-

Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment

2016

Other changes, Depreciation
Impairment
movements
loss
1 252
221 880
(1 115 307)
(1 048 996)
979 923
(6 142 262)
(24 863)
(1 252)
(590 394)
(983 722)
(52 090)
(35 422)
(5 436 323)
(267 477)
-

Transfers

(93 819 530)

(6 564 013)
(5 586 864)
(25 298 628)
(7 366 860)
(48 735 688)
(267 477)

Accumulated Carrying value
depreciation
and
accumulated
impairment

2017
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Equipment (continued)

29 588 181

Cost /
Valuation

(1 214 703)

Total

23 055 266

102 635 718

(128)
(290 713)
(24)
(886 920)
(36 918)

Disposals

18 736 150
10 852 031

Intangible assets

146 479
2 199 810
5 236 724
427 044
6 763 714
8 281 495
-

Additions

Opening
balance
5 849 637
10 426 263
20 655 569
2 137 684
51 917 627
11 482 502
166 436

Computer software
Work In Progress

9.

Furniture and xtures
Motor vehicles
Ofce equipment
Leasehold improvements
Test equipment
Work in Progress
Ofce equipment under nance lease

Reconciliation of equipment - 2016

8.

Figures in Rand
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226 383

(10 747 507)

(10 747 507)
-

18 840 674

7 988 643
10 852 031

Accumulated Carrying value
amortisation
and
accumulated
impairment

2017

(246 294)

19 279 465

18 379 549
899 916

Cost /
Valuation

(13 781 611)

110 707 241

5 516 436
11 830 556
21 049 356
1 522 173
59 552 595
11 236 125
-

Total

(9 093 065)

(9 093 065)
-

10 186 400

9 286 484
899 916

Accumulated Carrying value
amortisation
and
accumulated
impairment

2016

32 482

Other changes, Depreciation
Impairment
movements
loss
(24 226)
(470 340)
15 014
(795 517)
83
20 682
(4 568 338)
(4 651)
(1 042 531)
8 281 495
229 927
(6 775 367)
22 119
(8 527 872)
(129 518)
-

Transfers
received

Independent Communications Authority of South Africa (ICASA)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
2017
R
9.

2016
R

Intangible assets (continued)

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2017

Computer software
Work in Progress

Opening
balance
9 286 484
899 916

Additions

10 186 400

12 298 982

2 346 867
9 952 115

Disposals

Other changes, Amortisation
movements
(639 092)
(1 351 174)
(1 654 442)
-

7 988 643
10 852 031

(639 092)

18 840 674

(1 351 174)

(1 654 442)

Total

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2016

Computer software
Work In Progress

Opening
balance
4 632 569
2 066 496

Additions
4 247 906
899 916

6 699 065

5 147 822

Transfers

Other changes, Amortisation
movements
2 066 496
(1 660 487)
(2 066 496)
-

-

(1 660 487)

Total
9 286 484
899 916
10 186 400

10. Finance lease obligation
Minimum lease pay ments due
- within one year
- in second to fth year inclusive

341 804
370 288

-

less: future nance charges

712 092
(73 266)

-

638 826

-

289 696
349 217

-

638 913

-

349 217
289 696

-

638 913

-

Present value of minimum lease pay

ments

Present value of minimum lease pay
- within one year
- in second to fth year inclusive

ments due

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

The average lease term was 3 years and the average effective borrowing rate was 10% ( 2016: -%).
The Authority entered into a 36 - month nance lease agreement with Bytes Documents Solutions Pty Ltd for ofce
automation for 16 WC7835, 8 WC5325 and 1 WC6655 Xerox multi - function printers from 3 May 2016. The monthly
instalments are xed and do not contain any escalation clauses. Interest is charged at an ef fective rate of 10.25%.
11. Operating lease liability
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

(976 857)
(1 604 344)

(2 435 036)
(1 048 252)

(2 581 201)

(3 483 288)

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease period.
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12. Payables from exchange transactions
Trade payables
Interest payable
Structured savings
Third-party payables
Accrued leave pay
Accrued expenses

5 093 190
113 625
420 750
224 911
11 859 302
11 355 843

7 939 589
113 625
295 762
116 346
8 869 893
18 924 343

29 067 621

36 259 558

20 937

20 937

814 553 284
541 364 991

741 085 244
447 048 171

13. Payables from non-exchange transactons
Donations from Staff
14. National Revenue Fund Pay ables
NRF payables
Receipts in advance and other payables

1 355 918 275 1 188 133 415
15. Unspent conditional grants and receipts
Movement during the y ear
Balance at the beginning of the year
Funds returned to National Treasury
Income recognition during the year

60 661 162
(34 159 863)
(16 885 352)

85 858 047
(25 196 885)

9 615 947

60 661 162

Of the unspent conditional grant balance in the prior year of R 60 661 ,162 it mainly relates to ICASA's infrastructural
needs. R 34 159 863 were funds returned to National Treasury. The Automated Spectrum Management System
contract outstanding amount of R9.6m is being nalised by 31 September 2017. R 16 885 352 ( 2016
:
R 25 196 885 was recognised as revenue in the current year, which equalled the expenditure on these. The balance
of R 9 615 947 (2016: R 60 661 162 ) is shown as unspent conditional grant. W e have applied for permission to
retain 100% of the funds from National Treasury for funds committed and contractual obligations nalised by 31 March
2017.
16. Provisions
Reconciliation of provisions - 2017

Bonus provisions

Opening
Balance
17 605 357

Additions

Utilised during
Reversed
the year
during the year
19 693 431
(14 578 218)
(3 027 139)

Opening
Balance
2 582 194

Additions

Total
19 693 431

Reconciliation of provisions - 2016

Bonus provisions

Utilised during
Reversed
the year
during the year
15 023 163
-

Total
17 605 357

This provision relates to the provision for performance bonuses and the gure is based on the key performance criteria that
have to be met in order for the cash payout to be made. The cash payout is subject to approval by the Council. The timing
of the approval of the performance bonus incentives is always subject to approval by the Council. This then creates
uncertainty regarding the amount of the liability to be recognised in the nancial statements.
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17. Revenue from non - exchange transactions
Grant received from the Department of Communications - Current year
Unspent Grants of prior year recognised
Insurance claim settlements

414 481 000
16 885 352
450 651

393 619 000
25 196 885
14 852

431 817 003

418 830 737

The Authority received its funding from the Department of Communications in order to enable it to carry out its mandate as
laid out in the ICASA Act. The grant received from the Department of Communications above consists of an original
allocation of R 414 481 000 (2016: R 393 619 000 ).
18. Revenue from exchange transactions
Interest income
Other income

23 939 973
2 000

22 052 079
16 620

23 941 973

22 068 699

196 289 283
17 006 877
693 145
560 724
1 981 411
4 469 259
22 234 541
272 634
369 000
1 825 956
216 886
8 748 152

180 654 528
15 023 163
612 024
466 348
866 579
21 255 697
122 455
695 000
14 987
1 251 865

254 667 868

220 962 646

19. Employ ee related costs
Basic
Bonus
UIF
WCA
SDL
Leave pay provision charge
Dened contribution plans
Overtime payments
Long-service awards
Graduates Development Programme
Periodic payments*
Temporary Staff

Average staff
Total number of employees as at 31 March 2017: 356 (31 March 2016: 353)
20. Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation
Intangible assets

14 994 087
2 257 365

13 842 755
1 660 487

17 251 452

15 503 242

21. Finance costs
Finance leases
Other interest paid

ICASA | 2016/17 ANNUAL REPORT
124

72 692
90 581

4 606

163 273

4 606
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R

22. Repairs and maintenance
Ofce and computer equipment
Spectrum Management System
Monitoring equipment
Motor vehicles

2 076 978
3 432 895
1 141 256
732 412

1 023 700
3 562 133
760 030
723 159

7 383 541

6 069 022

23. General expenses
Advertising
Auditors remuneration
Bank charges
Cleaning
Consulting and professional fees
Legal fees
Training and conferences
Publications
Insurance
IT expenses
Motor vehicle expenses
Recruitment costs
Security
Telephone and fax
Travel and subsistence
Assets expensed
Electricity
Rates and taxes
Loss on disposal of assets
Printing and stationery
Operating lease maintenance costs
Lease rentals on operating lease
General and administrative expenses
Settlement for Spectrum System Bid ICASA 54/2009
Other expenses

9 896 205
3 720 211
112 635
2 169 595
7 521 192
13 461 360
14 256 931
3 484 786
1 068 702
12 893 469
2 000 291
1 102 032
2 526 995
3 498 578
21 058 532
430 739
1 990 219
4 162 856
2 019 615
1 020 689
754 180
26 271 732
5 196 738
3 000 000
6 249 954

5 402 785
6 745 937
102 695
1 665 932
13 124 597
27 114 298
9 128 648
1 433 371
1 054 122
9 507 557
2 055 416
1 675 657
1 685 740
5 031 885
15 994 700
27 565
2 742 284
2 458 491
1 292 723
908 316
368 684
27 235 043
1 839 343
3 903 984

149 868 236

142 499 773

Travel and subsistence expenditure includes International travel which increased in the current nancial year due to
increase in international membership afliations and stakeholder engagements including international forums.
General and administrative expenses includes employee wellness programmes and stakeholder engagements.
Other expenses includes international membership organisations and association workshops.
Refer to Note 33 for the Settlement agreement for Spectrum system Bid ICASA 54/2009.
24. Auditors' remuneration
External audit fees
Internal Audit - Consultants
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3 720 211
-

5 488 776
1 257 161

3 720 211

6 745 937
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25. Cash generated from operations
Surplus
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Income from equity accounted investments
Finance costs - Finance leases
Impairment loss (reversal)
Movements in operating lease assets and accruals
Movements in provisions
Loss on disposal of asset
Other non-cash items
Changes in working capital:
Inventories
Receivables from exchange transactions
National Revenue Fund receivable
Prepayments
Payables from exchange transactions
National Revenue Fund payables
Unspent conditional grants and receipts

26 431 149

56 034 627

17 251 452
(31 406)
72 692
24 863
(902 087)
2 088 074
4 841 886
(8 647 507)

15 503 242
(141 998)
(32 482)
(225 457)
15 023 163
1 315 468
(22 748)

90 041
(2 295 119)
(69 696 811)
5 622 092
(7 191 937)
167 784 865
(51 045 215)

(87 419)
(742 247)
8 000 923
(8 521 470)
6 792 817
97 058 710
(25 196 885)

84 397 032

164 758 244

1 071 802
10 595 493

13 829 213
23 233 355

11 667 295

37 062 568

356 692
-

3 805 460
2 362 161

356 692

6 167 621

11 667 295
356 692

37 062 568
6 167 621

12 023 987

43 230 189

26. Commitments
Authorised capital expenditure
Already contracted for but not provided for
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Not y et contracted for and authorised by members
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Total capital commitments
Already contracted for but not provided for
Not yet contracted for and authorised by members

This committed expenditure relates to equipment and intangible assets and will be nanced by government grants only.
Operating leases - as lessee (expense)
Minimum lease pay ments due
- within one year
- in second to fth year inclusive

16 314 664
11 795 023

22 956 259
20 561 708

28 109 687

43 517 967

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Authority f or certain of its ofce properties. Leases are
negotiated for an average term of ve years and rentals are xed for an average of ve years. No contingent rent is
payable.

ICASA | 2016/17 ANNUAL REPORT
126

Independent Communications Authority of South Africa (ICASA)
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2017

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
2017
R

2016
R

27. Contingencies

1. An employee was dismissed due to her probation not being conrmed due to poor
performance. The Applicant referred the dispute for Conciliation, the CCMA ruled in favour
of the Applicant, ICASA approached the Labour Court for a review of the decision of the
CCMA, and paid a security bond of amounts to R 1 778 195.
2. During December 2013 JASA and Others launched a review application to set aside
ICASA's decision authorizing ODM to broadcast pornographic channels. On 3/11/2014 the
Court ordered that the decision be set aside and the Defendants (including ICASA) to pay
the costs of the Application jointly and severally, the one paying in full and the other to be
absolved. ICASA paid the iniitial half of the costs and ODM was liable for the other half.
Upon failure by ODM to settle the remaining half, the Plaintiffs sought payment against
ICASA. ICASA settled the other half on 23/08/2017 to the value of R921 345.76. ICASA
issued summons against ODM on 3/05/2017 to recover the above mentioned funds. ODM
has offered settlement amount of R921 345.16 in payment instalments over 4 months
subsequent to 31 July 2017.
3. On 5 August 2016, the Minister of Telecommunications and Postal Services led an
Application for review interdicting the Authority from implementing licensing steps and
processes contemplated in an ITA published by the Authority on 15 July 2016 pending the
determination of the review application.The ITA published by the Authority is for radio
frequency spectrum licenses within the designated ranges for the purposes of providing
national broadband wireless access services. In terms of the review application, the
Telecoms Minister seeks an order declaring the decision of the Authority to initiate a
licensing process in terms of the ITA be declared unlawful, invalid and to declare the ITA
invalid and unlawful. In terms of Rule 53, the Authority is required to provide within 15
days from 5 August 2016, the record of proceedings (docments, memoranda and circular)
available at the time when the decision to initiate the ITA was taken and reasons provided
in relation thereto.
4. An employee was dismissed and thereafter reinstated. The employee is applying for
general damages.The Trial date was set for 12 August 2016. In court, the matter was
postponed sine die as there was no Judge available to hear the matter. Estimate unknown
5. HJ De Nysschen issued summons against ICASA for a damages claim for a damaged
fence at the value of R5 625,00 due to a motor vehicle collision allegedly caused by an
employee of ICASA, and the replacement of seven Njala's, spiral horned antelopes, who
allegedly escaped as a result of the compromised fence, at a cost of R20 000,00 per
Njala, total of R145 625.
6. A dispute arose between ICASA and a company called Waiters, regarding a process in
terms of which Waiters was irregularly added to the ICASA data base, and used to provide
services to ICASA. ICASA does not have a contract with Waiters, although it
acknowledges that services were provided and paid for. ICASA subsequently indicated
that it does not acknowledge W aiters as a service provider, whereafter, W aiters
International issued summons against ICASA for services that were allegedly going to be
rendered in future. (Steps were taken against the staff members involved in the irregular
process).
7. On 27 September 2012, ICASA entered into a contract with Duma Travel for the
provision of corporate travel management services. A contractual dispute arose regarding
the interpretation of provisions in the contract related to payment, and the annual travel
spent. Duma terminated the contract and claimed fees for services rendered which is
being disputed by ICASA.
8. Sentech SOC Limited led an application with the Registrar of the High Court of South
Africa, Gauteng Division (Johannesburg), to review and set aside ICASA’s decision and
ndings, with regard to the Broadcasting Transmission Services Discussion Document
published in the Government Gazette of 07 June 2013. Both parties are engaged in
negotiations with the intention to settle the dispute, ICASA is awaiting a formal notice of
withdrawal of the matter by Sentech. No Contingent liability amount is determined as the
Licensees seeks recourse from decisions made by the Authority
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27. Contingencies (continued)
9. On 12 December 2012, Telkom SA SOC Limited led an application in the South
Gauteng High Court, to interdict and prohibit ICASA and the Complaints and Compliance
Committee (“CCC”), from implementing and giving effect to a decision of the CCC. On 24
August 2012, the CCC made a ruling that a request by Neotel, to obtain access to
Telkom’s local loop in an unbundled manner was a valid request and that, Telkom was
obliged to comply with same. It is against this background that Telkom sought to interdict
the ruling of the CCC. However, Telkom has since abandoned part “A” of its application,
which deals with interdicting both ICASA and the CCC. The only outstanding matter which
is still to be determined is the review of the CCC decision. Pleadings are being exchanged
between the parties and we are nalising signature of the Answering Afdavit to change
details of deponent to the Afdavit. No Contingent liability amount is determined as the
Licensees seeks recourse from decisions made by the Authority. No Contingent liability
amount is determined as the Licensees seeks recourse from decisions made by the
Authority.
10. Mzanzi Community Satellite TV led an application in the High Court of South Africa,
Gauteng Division (Johannesburg) seeking relief to review ICASA’s decision to decline its
application for a licence. Pleadings have been exchanged, we have been awaiting an
allocation for a date of the hearing which the Applicant has failed to apply for, ICASA has
requested its legal representation to request a formal withdrawal of the matter and a
tender for legal costs. No Contingent liability amount is determined as the Licensees
seeks recourse from decisions made by the Authority.
11. Atretone (Pty) Ltd t/a Pulse FM led an application, seeking relief from the High Court
of South Africa, Gauteng Division (Johannesburg) to review ICASA’s decision to decline
its application for a licence. The review application consisted of two parts, namely, Part “A”
pertaining to urgency of its application and Part “B” pertaining to the merits of its
application. ICASA answered to Part “A” of the application (placing matter to be on urgent
roll) and led its answering afdavit on 1 July 2014. Applicant’s replying afdavit was led
on 10 November 2014. Applicant does not appear to be progressing the matter i.e. papers
have not been indexed and paginated in preparation for ling of heads of argument etc.
ICASA has requested its Attorneys of record to seek a formal withdrawal of the matter and
a tender for legal costs. No Contingent liability amount is determined as the Licensees
seeks recourse from decisions made by the Authority. No Contingent liability amount is
determined as the Licensees seeks recourse from decisions made by the Authority.
12. On 29 August 2014, the Authority issued an Invitation To Apply (ITA) for Individual
Commercial Free To Air Television Broadcasting Service Licences. On 15 March 2016,
the Authority announced its decision not to award licences to any of the applicants. On or
about 17 October 2016, Rubicon Investments led an application to review and set aside
ICASA's decision and that the Court should substitute or vary the decision and award the
licence applied for to the Rubicon Investments. The Authority has instructed external
attorneys to oppose the application, and le a record of the application with the court. No
Contingent liability amount is determined as the Licensees seeks recourse from decisions
made by the Authority.
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27. Contingencies (continued)
13. On 12 December 2016, Cell C (Pty) Ltd led an application to review, set aside and
substitute the Authority's decision taken on 29 June 2016 to refuse Cell C's application for
an amendmentto its radio frequency spectrum licences. On 20 December 2016, the
Authority requested Cell C to suspend proceedings until 31 March 2017 on the basis that
the Authority has embarked on a process of removing all USOs from radio frequency
spectrum licences and transfer same to electronic communications network service
licences. The transfer process is envisaged to be nalised by 31 March 2017. On 22
December 2016, Cell C requested the Authority to provide a detailed letter setting out the
process and time table the Authority intends to follow in implementing the administrative
process. The letter has to be submitted by 16.01.2017. On 19.01.2017 Cell C rejected
ICASA's proposed timelines for the imlpementation of the migration process. On
01/02/2017 ICASA attended consultation with Unterhalter SC wherein it was agreed that
ICASA should proceed with opposing the review application on the basis that the
remedies sought by Cell C are not fair, just or equitable. Further, the application may be
challenged on the basis of legality, as it is not unlawful for ICASA to have USO conditions
imposed on Cell C in the spectrum license. ICASA led the Rule 53 Record on
24/02/2017. Cell C led Supplementary Afdavit on 23/03/2017 and alleged that the
Record is bare and insufcient to enable them to le an appropriate answer. ICASA led
its Supplementary Record during April 2017 and Cell C will be ling a Supplementary
Afdavit in due course. No Contingent liability amount is determined as the Licensees
seeks recourse from decisions made by the Authority.
20. On 4 April 2016 the Applicant (former employee) referred a dispute to the CCMA and
has applied for Condonation for late ling of his application. The hearing for condonation
was held on 22 April 2016 and we are awaiting the award of the Commissioner. Estimate
unknown
21. Leef FM lodged a review application against ICASA in the High Court Pretoria. Legal
Costs should the matter proceed, estimated at R180 000. No Contingent liability amount is
determined as the Licensees seeks recourse from decisions made by the Authority.
22. SLAM Gauteng, SLAM Western Cape, and SLAM KwaZulu Natal (SLAM), led an
application to review and set aside ICASA’s refusal to grant slam a commercial sound
broadcasting license in three regions, namely Gauteng, W estern Cape and KwaZulu
Natal. No Contingent liability amount is determined as the Licensees seeks recourse from
decisions made by the Authority.
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28. Related parties
The Independent Communications Authority of South Africa is a Schedule 1 entity in terms of the Public Finance
Management Act (PFMA). The related party disclosure is required in terms of GRAP 20, related party disclosures, issued by
National Treasury.
National Departments
Department of Communications
The Authority receives its budget allocation from the Department of Communications, which is based on the approved
allocation from Parliament and therefore this is at arm’s length. The Authority collects the licence fees from communication
licensees, and application fees, on behalf of the National Revenue Fund and transfers this to the Department of
Communications, which is done at arm’s length.
The following departments are licensed under the Electronic Communications Act. All the transactions and the issued
licences are at arm’s length:
Department of Environmental Affairs;
Department of Defence and Military Veterans;
Department of Water Affairs; and
South African Police Service.
Entities
The following government entities are licensed under the Electronic Communications Act and Postal Service Act. All the
transactions and the issued licences are at arm’ s length
Broadband Infraco;
Sentech;
State Information Technology Agent;
South African Broadcasting Corporation;
South African Post Ofce;
Transnet; and
Telkom.
The Authority acquires services at arm’s length from the following entities:
Government Communication and Information Systems;
Government Printing W orks;
South African Post Ofce;
South African Broadcasting Corporation;
State Information Technology Agency;
Transnet; and
Telkom .
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Name
Mncube SS
Batyi NA
Mohlaloga MR
Pillay KGS

2016

Mokhele BC
Mashile P
Pillay KGS *
Zimri P

Name
Batyi NA *
Modimoeng K
Mohlaloga MR

2017

Council

Remuneration of management

28. Related parties (continued)

Figures in Rand

Councillor
Councillor
Councillor &
Acting
Chairperson
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor

Service as
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Chairperson
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor

Service as

01 Jul 2010
11 Feb 2013
01 Jul 2013
11 Feb 2013

Date of
appointment

04 Apr 2016
04 Apr 2016
11 Feb 2013
04 Apr 2016

11 Feb 2013
04 Apr 2016
01 Jul 2013

Date of
appointment

Independent Communications Authority of South Africa (ICASA)

30 Jun 2015

Date of
resignation/
end of term

10 Feb 2017

10 Feb 2017

Date of
resignation/
end of term

-

139 200

34 800
34 800
34 800

34 800
-

145 506
145 506
145 507
436 519

4 228 799

237 203

97 128
51 326
88 749

PostOther benets
employ ment
received
benets

948 903

155 106
12 658
156 640
156 113

156 640
155 106
156 640

PostOther benets
employ ment
received
benets

883 488
1 128 417
1 128 417
1 088 477

Basic salary

8 239 964

1 148 306
1 290 754
1 159 659
1 148 306

1 159 659
1 148 306
1 184 974

Basic salary

4 902 521

883 488
1 371 051
1 325 249
1 322 733

Total

9 328 067

1 338 212
1 338 212
1 316 299
1 339 219

1 316 299
1 338 212
1 341 614

Total
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Mtsweni BW

Nomtshongwana AZ
Sookharan AK
Mngomezulu PB**

Gidi NN
Khumalo AJM

Seeber RJ

Name
Pongwana PK
Ngwepe WA
Matabane BTA
Van der W alt ME

2017

Executive management

CEO
COO
CFO
GM:
Compliance &
Consumer
Affairs
GM :
Engineering &
Technology
GM: Licensing
GM: Policy
Research &
Analysis
GM: Regions
CAE
Executive:
Corporate
Affairs & Acting
CFO
Executive: HR

Service as

01 Jan 2014

16 Mar 2015
01 May 2014
01 Jul 2015

01 Feb 2015
01 Sep 2015

01 Mar 2013

01 Nov 2013
01 Sep 2014
04 Jul 2016
01 Mar 2015

Date of
appointment

Date of
resignation/
end of term

1 404 364

1 404 364
1 385 185
1 417 276

1 385 185
1 366 035

1 565 042

2 386 325
1 805 660
1 075 035
1 372 419

Basic salary

144 911

144 911
188 385
108 881

188 385
-

144 911

244 167
244 731
72 456

Bonuses and
performance
related
payments

161 883

161 371
187 102
147 766

187 799
184 516

-

250 678
236 905
84 244
185 378

24 000

28 800
24 000
47 526

28 800
28 800

28 800

24 000
21 600
24 000

PostOther benets
employ ment
received
benets

1 735 158

1 739 446
1 784 672
1 721 449

1 790 169
1 579 351

1 738 753

2 881 170
2 311 296
1 180 879
1 654 253

Total

* The term of ofce ended on 11 February 2017. Per Section 7 (4) of the ICASA Act as amended, which makes a provision for Councillors whose term of ofce has come to an end to
remain in ofce for an extended period that may not exceed forty-ve (45) working days until the commencement of the term of ofce of their successors. The Councillors opted for the
extended period, hence the period extended to 19 Apr 2017.
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Gidi NN
Khumalo AJM

Seeber RJ

Name
Pongwana PK
Ngwepe WA
Van der W alt ME

2016

Makola BD ***

28. Related parties (continued)
Mentz L

Figures in Rand

Executive:
Legal, Risk and
CCC
Senior
Manager:Legal
(Regulatory
Support &
Legislative
Drafting), Legal
& CCC &
Acting
Executive:
Legal, Risk and
CCC
-

CEO
COO
GM:
Compliance &
Consumer
Affairs
GM :
Engineering &
Technology
GM: Licensing
GM: Policy
Research &
Analysis

Service as
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01 Feb 2015
01 Nov 2015

01 Mar 2013

01 Nov 2013
01 Sep 2014
01 Mar 2015

Date of
appointment

02 Jan 2017

20 Jan 2015

-

Date of
resignation/
end of term

31 Dec 2016

Independent Communications Authority of South Africa (ICASA)

-

1 289 144
531 945

1 449 113

2 218 257
1 658 525
1 289 144

Basic salary

17 834 945

229 166

1 038 889

Bonuses and
performance
related
payments

-

-

-

1 670 123

-

188 385

321 765

23 439

18 000

157 213
69 096

-

285 916
220 443
157 213

39 914
12 000

21 551

120 850
297 216
24 000

PostOther benets
employ ment
received
benets

1 945 356

17 387

140 327

1 486 271
613 041

1 470 664

2 625 023
2 176 184
1 470 357

Total

21 772 189

269 992

1 385 601
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GM: Policy
01 Oct 2012
Research &
Analysis
GM: Regions 16 Mar 2015
CAE
01 May 2014
Executive:
01 Jul 2015
Corporate
Affairs & Acting
CFO
Executive: HR 01 Jan 2014
Executive:
20 Jan 2015
Legal, Risk and
CCC
Financial
01 Mar 2015
Specialist &
Acting CFO

**** Appointed Acting CFO from 1 March 2015 until 31 July 2015.

***Appointed Acting Executive: Legal, Risk and CCC from 2 January 2017.

** Appointed Acting CFO from 1 August 2015 until 3 July 2016.

*Refer to note "Employee related costs" 19

Hove M ****

Mtsweni BW
Mentz L

Nomtshongwana AZ
Sookharan AK
Mngomezulu PB **
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Grootes P
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31 Jul 2015

31 Oct 2015

Independent Communications A uthority of South Africa (ICASA )

-

-

15 357 163

-

-

-

268 782

1 288 364
1 289 144

1 215 644
1 268 144
752 477

838 480

1 763 922

32 813

157 993
157 213

157 213
157 213
123 479

88 117

1 127 122

38 531

12 961
24 269

133 549
34 380
357 709

10 192

18 248 207

340 126

1 459 318
1 470 626

1 506 406
1 459 737
1 233 665

936 789
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29. Change in estimate
Equipment
Management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charges for property , plant and equipment. The
estimates are based on the assessed conditions of the assets, changes in technology, such as new technical innovations
being introduced in the industry thus rendering our assets obsolete, as well as expected future spending on capital assets.
These estimates can change signicantly as a result of changes in the conditions of assets, introduction of new
technologies and availability of nance resources to fund expected future spending on capital assets.
The residual values and useful lives were reviewed during the course of the nancial year in line with paragraph 61 of
GRAP 17, and the effect thereof was as follows:
Depreciation

After changes in useful lives
and residual values
Before changes in useful lives
and residual values
Subtotal

Furniture Leasehold
Motor
and
improveme vehicles
ttings
nt

1 115 307
(533 730)

983 722 1 048 996

Computer
equipment

5 344 111

(967 391)(1 029 612) (6 043 780)

Ofce
equipment

Ofce
Test
Total
equipment equipmen
under
t
nance
lease
798 151
267 477 5 436 323 14 994 087

(580 913)

(267 477)(7 520 965)(16 943 868)

581 577

16 331

19 384

(699 669)

217 238

-(2 084 642) (1 949 781)

581 577

16 331

19 384

(699 669)

217 238

-(2 084 642) (1 949 781)

Intangible assets
After changes in useful lives and residual values
Before changes in useful lives and residual values

Computer
software
2 257 365
(2 477 642)

Total
2 257 365
(2 477 642)

(220 277)

(220 277)

30. Prior period errors
Expense items were incorrectly capitalised to furniture and ttings items. The cumulative adjustment was not appropriately
considered.
Operating lease liabilities were incorrectly not split between current and non-current liabilities
Refunds to Licensees were incorrectly classied as funds paid to Department of Communication.
The correction of the error(s) results in adjustments as follows:
Statement of nancial position
Equipment
Operating lease liability (Current)
Operating lease liability (Non-Current)

-

(24 224)
2 435 036
(2 435 036)

Statement of nancial performance
Depreciation expense
Repairs and Maintenance - Ofce and computer equipment
Repairs and Maintenance - Spectrum Management System

-

24 224
74 726
(74 726)
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30. Prior period errors (continued)
Cash ow statement
Cash ow from operating activities
Cash received by Administered Revenue for NRF
Suppliers
Cash paid by Administered Revenue for NRF

-

(2 290 981)
(287 090)
2 578 071

-

-

31. Risk management
Financial risk management
The Authority’s activities relating to the Administered Revenue’s exposure to risks, its objectives, policies and processes for
measuring and managing such risks, as well as quantitative disclosure, is discussed in this note.
Liquidity risk
The Authority’s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The Authority m anages
liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and funding through quarterly tranches received from DOC.
The table below analyses the Authority’s nancial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period
at the statement of nancial position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash ows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not
signicant.
At 31 March 2017
Payables from exchange transactions
Operating leases
National Revenue Fund payables
Finance lease obligation
At 31 March 2016
Payables from exchange transactions
Operating leases
National Revenue Fund payables

Less than 1
Between 1
Between 2
Over 5 y ears
year
and 2 y ears
and 5 y ears
(29 067 621)
(16 314 664)
(4 495 787)
(7 299 236)
(1 355 918 275)
(240 628)
(398 198)
Less than 1
Between 1
Between 2
Over 5 y ears
year
and 2 y ears
and 5 y ears
(36 259 558)
(22 956 259) (14 318 988)
(6 242 720)
(1 188 133 415)
-

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Authority will not be able to meet its nancial obligations as they fall due. The Authority
nances its operations through grants received from the Department of Communications and interest earned on positive
bank balances. These are the only sources of nance for the Authority due to the fact that the Public Finance M anagement
Act prohibits the Authority from raising loans and other forms of short and long-term borrowings.
The entity maintains a reasonable balance between the period over which assets generate funds and the period over which
the respective assets are funded.
The table above analyses the Authority’s nancial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period
at the statement of nancial position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash ows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not
signicant.
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31. Risk management (continued)
Credit risk
Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents, NRF receivables and Receivables from exchange
transactions. The Authority only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing and limits ex posure to any
one counter-party.
Receivables from exchange transactions mainly originate from transactions that the Authority enters into with the
employees. The main components of these receivables are bursary receivables, standing advance receivables, cellphone
receivables and Travel related receivables (other). The standing advance receivables are only payable when the employee
leaves the employment of the Authority, whether through resignation, disability, death or in search of greener pastures. The
bursary receivables originate when a qualifying employee of the Authority is granted a bursary to pursue studies in a
particular eld of study that would be useful to the Authority on completion of his/her studies. Cellphone receivables and
travel related receivables relate to day-to-day activities and these are recovered on a monthly basis from the employees
concerned. No signicant losses have ever been suffered from staff receivables. The staff receivables are owed by many
employees; they are diverse and they do not pose any major concentration of credit risk.
Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows:
`

Financial instrument
Broadcasting services
Frequency spectrum services
ECS and ECNS services
Postal services
Total Receivables from non-exchange transactions
Receivables from exchange transactions
Cash and cash equivalents

2017
2016
119 214 146 113 263 125
239 328 971 252 591 859
675 892 678 624 268 597
14 613 553
33 423 927
1 049 049 348 1 023 547 508
6 022 320
3 727 201
754 960 180 711 179 788

Credit risk is the risk that the Administered Revenue may suffer a nancial loss if a customer or counterparty to a nancial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. This arises mainly from Administered Revenue’s trade receivables. The
licensees of Administered Revenue have to apply in terms of the relevant legislations in order to be authorised to conduct
any activities.
Financial assets, which potentially subject the Administered Revenue to concentrations of credit risk, consist principally of
cash and cash equivalents and trade receivables.
The cash and cash equivalents are placed with high credit quality nancial institutions. Trade and other receivables are
presented net of the allowance for doubtful receivables.
ICASA Administered Revenue collects the majority of its revenue from the major mobile and xed line telecommunications
companies that have excellent reputations with regard to compliance with regulatory obligations for the payment of both the
annual licence and spectrum fees.
However, the Authority does face a risk in the collection of spectrum fees owed, in part due to the diverse nature of entities
able to apply and utilise available spectrum. Such licensees include government departments, major telecommunications
companies, broadcasting licensees, security companies, individuals, etc.
There is no signicant exposure from major corporations and government departments. However, there is risk associated
with the collection of revenue owed by those spectrum licensees who are not required to hold an ECNS licence, as these
licensees tend to be small companies with geographically diverse locations. The resources available at the Authority
represent a signicant risk in its ability to collect all outstanding revenues from such licensees.
The broadcasting services and postal services licensees do not pose any signicant risk regarding the collection of annual
or spectrum licence fees.
Market risk
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31. Risk management (continued)
Interest rate risk
As the Authority h axs no signicant interest-bearing assets, the income and operating cash ows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.
Foreign exchange risk
The Authority o perates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to the US dollar and the UK pound. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities.
The Authority does not hedge foreign exchange uctuations.
32. Going concern
The annual nancial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This
basis presumes that funds will be available to nance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.
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33. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure: Opening balance
Add: Fruitless and wasteful expenditure current year
Add: Fruitless and wasteful expenditure prior year (identied in the current year)
Less: Amounts condoned*
Less: Amounts recovered to date

2 878 478
10 700 961
1 567 287
(3 000 000)
-

2 549 573
202 054
170 303
(40 000)
(3 502)

12 146 726

2 878 428

Details of fruitless and wasteful expenditure – current y ear
Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings
1. Settlement of the litigation between Matsema Settlement approved by Council. Approval for
(Pty) Ltd and the Authority reached
condonation by the Minister still in progress
2. Writ of Execution for Doctors for Life
The Authority settled the other half on 23/08/2016 to
International NPC as the other party (On Digital the value of R921 345.76. ICASA issued summons
Media t/a Top TV or StarTimes Media South
against ODM on 03/05/2017 to recover the above
Africa Proprietary Limited) failed to meet its 50% mentioned funds. ODM has offered settlement
obligation and interest was incurrd as well
amount of R921 345.76 with interest and legal costs
3. Interest on late payment of Telkom invoice for Recovery processes in progress
30.06.2016 due on 31.07.2016
4. Cancellation of Allocation of Party Election
Displinary processes with the relevant Division in
Broadcast Slots to Political parties contesting the progress
Municipal Elections
5. Representative could not attend as He/She
The employee called in sick on the day of the
was sick and a 100% Cancellation fee for the 6th meeting. The Dispute Resolution representative had
of April 2016 meeting was charged
to be paid the full daily fee for late cancellation.
6. Interest for September 2016 on Invoices paid Recovery processes in progress
late
7. Interest on Rents - Tenants of R305.28
Recovery processes in progress
charged on 01.11.2016 paid on 03.11.2016
8. Interest on W ater arrears -charged on
Recovery processes in progress
14.09.2016 of R9.09.
9. Performance Management Bonus paid in
Council decision
2016-2017 to 56 employees who ordinarily would
not have received the Bonus per the current
Performance Management Development Policy
10. Salary increases to 56 employees who
Council decision
ordinarily would not have received an increase
per the current Remuneration policy
11. Payment of additional 23.3% Bonus to 311
Council decision
employees which is not in line with the
Remuneration policy (Organisational
Performance for 2015-2016 was 76.7%)
12. Security services provided to an employee
CEO decision
13. Cost containment - Social events utilised
National Treasury
from budget allocation - 6 events
14. Cost containment - Strategy session rates
National Treasury
above threshold

3 000 000
921 346

1 891
14 323

17 784

17
305
9
731 880

1 124 057

3 516 606

149 749
1 161 836
61 158
10 700 961

Details of fruitless and wasteful expenditure – previous y ear (identied in the current y ear)
Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings
1. Cost containment - Social events utilised from National Treasury
budget allocation - 3 events
Details of fruitless and wasteful expenditure condoned
Condoned by (condoning authority )
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R
33. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure (continued)
Settlement of the litigation between Matsema
Council
(Pty) Ltd and the Authority reached

2016
R

(3 000 000)

The fruitless and wasteful expenditure identied during the current year were investigated in terms of Section 38 and 51 of
the PFMA and disciplinary steps against relevant ofcials was taken where it was proven the relevant ofcials committed
the fruitless and wasteful expenditure as disclosed.
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R

34. Irregular expenditure
Opening balance
Add: Irregular Expenditure - current year
Add: Irregular Expenditure - previous years (identied in the current year)
Less: Amounts condoned

1 179 691
18 422 668
9 062 752
(1 378 063)

13 206 864
2 510 348
(14 537 521)

27 287 048

1 179 691

Details of irregular expenditure – current y ear
A service provider for Engineering and
Technology services installed equipment at new
sites without a valid contract. Deviation memo
was signed after the event occurred.
The Authority procured different types of ofce
furniture (e.g. chairs) for the regional ofces such
as back chairs and boardroom chairs without
specifying in the Request for Quotation the
prescribed minimum threshold for such ofce
chairs of 65%.
The Authority procured men’s and women’s
clothing and footwear as part of the textiles,
clothing, leather and footwear without specifying
in the Request for Quotation a minimum
threshold of 100%.
International training procured without folllowing
through normal SCM processes - International
Business School
International training procured without folllowing
through normal SCM processes - Other service
providers
Foreign service providers procured without
folllowing through normal SCM processes
Accommodation for Management Strategy
session procured without following SCM
processes
Catering services - Cost Containment Measures
Local training procured without folllowing through
normal SCM processes
Procurement process not fair, transparent,
equitable and competitive
Extension of more than 15% not approved by
Treasury
Reasons for deviation for not obtaining a
minimum three written quotations was not
documented/recorded

Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings
The matter was reported to the Executive Committee
(EXCO) on 29 September 2016. The CEO approved
the request for condonation of the expenditure.

198 372

Under investigation

528 176

Under investigation

661 195

Under investigation

1 292 402

Under investigation

458 231

Under investigation

6 001 026

Under investigation

507 612

Under investigation
Under investigation

1 332 041
6 112 136

Under investigation

259 920

National Treasury

579 059

Under invesitigation

492 498

18 422 668
Details of irregular expenditure – previous periods (identied current y ear)
Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings
The Authority procured different types of ofce
Under investigation
furniture (e.g. chairs) for the regional ofces such
as back chairs and boardroom chairs without
specifying in the Request for Quotation the
prescribed minimum threshold for such ofce
chairs of 65%.
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34. Irregular expenditure (continued)
The Authority procured men’s and women’s
clothing and footwear as part of the textiles,
clothing, leather and footwear without specifying
in the Request for Quotation a minimum
threshold of 100%.
International training procured without folllowing
through normal SCM processes - International
Business School
International training procured without folllowing
through normal SCM processes - Other service
providers
Foreign service providers procured without
folllowing through normal SCM processes
Catering services - Cost Containment Measures
Local training procured without folllowing through
normal SCM processes

2016
R

Under investigation

122 795

Under investigation

252 906

Under investigation

245 960

Under investigation

4 382 065

Under investigation

598 964
3 128 045
9 062 752

Details of irregular expenditure condoned
Condoned by (condoning authority )
E & T proceeded with installation of equipment at CEO
new sites without SCM being aware. Deviation
memo was signed after the event occurred.
Supply and support of Broadcast Monitoring
Council
System: the price of the bid was changed just
before it was presented to Council after the bids
were evaluated.
Supply and support of Broadcast Monitoring
Council
System: the price of the bid was changed just
before it was presented to Council after the bids
were evaluated.

198 372

903 942

275 749

1 378 063
The irregular expenditure identied during the current year were investigated in terms of Section 38 and 51 of the PFMA
and disciplinary steps against relevant ofcials was taken where it was proven the relevant ofcials committed the irregular
expenditure as disclosed.
35. Budget differences
Material differences between budget and actual amounts
Revenue
The allocated normal grants were used in ensuring the Authority delivers on its mandate as reected in the annual report for
2016/17. The deferred unspent grants which was part of the previous years’ unspent conditional grant R 60 661 162,
R16 885 352 w as realized in 2016/17, with R35 368 541 being returned to National Treasury. The only project in
progress relates to the Automated Spectrum Management System.
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R

35. Budget differences (continued)
Personnel
During 2016/17 the Authority lled most of those positions including 4 Full time Councillors from 4 April 2016 and CFO from
4 July 2016. Furthermore, paid a performance based bonus of R 14 578 218 based on the previous nancial period
performance.
Depreciation
The annual review for assets on useful lives and residual values resulted on increased residual values on technical assets
by 30% this followed earlier rand/dollar exchange loss during 2016-2017. The increased values following the review on
residual values for the technical equipment which mostly are imported.
Repairs and maintenance
Refurbishment of older technical assets have resulted in an overspending.
General Expenses
Savings on consultancy and professional services, printing and stationery, publicity and advertising have contributed
positively to the underspending of R2 045 027.
Property , plant and equipment, and intangible assets
The Authority committed R 12 023 987 towards capital acquisitions including the Automated Spectrum Management
System.
36. Events after the reporting date
Precautionary suspension of the CEO
The Council of the Authority placed the Chief Executive Ofcer (CEO), Mr Pakamile Pongwana on precautionary suspension
pending an internal disciplinary process on 4 July 2017. The Chief Operating Ofcer (COO), Mr Willington Ngwepe, was
appointed to be acting in the CEO's position until such time that the internal processes have been concluded.
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